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Places for People remalns committed to prowdmg more than ]ust homes. We take a holistic approach to the piaces we
build and manage.

Delivering strong performance

This has been another successful year far Places for People. Once again the Group delivered strong operational and financial
performance in spite of challenges in the wider operating environment.

Our country remains in the grip of a housing crisis which shows little sign of abating. Demand for housing continues
to outstrip supply and we are committed to doing our part to close the gap. Our mission is to deliver more high quality
places that support strong communities. Across our Group of companies we have a development pipeline of over
15,000 homes making us one of the largest housebuilders in the UK.

Places for People remains commltted to providing more than just homes. We are working to create aspirational homes and
inspirational places so we focus on much more than bricks and mortar. We take a holistic approach to the places we build
and manage, ensuring they have the infrastructure, services and public spaces needed to thrive.

This year the Government announced that housing association rents in England would be reduced by 1% each year until
2020. At Places for People we have reduced costs to counteract the reduction in income as well as continuing to increase
efficiency to protect our services and development pipeline.

Strategic partnerships

This year we secured the contract to deliver up to 3,000 much-needed homes in Aberdeen through a new partnership
with the city’s council. We will build and manage 1,000 affordable rented homes and deliver 1,000 homes for sale without
the need for government funds. Up to 1,000 further homes will be built after the initial phase as part of this ground-
breaking partnership to transform the housing landscape in Aberdeen,

: } . .
Elsewhere we continued to forge effective joint venture partnerships to maximise the difference we can make to
communities around the country. In the former Olympic Park site at East Wick and Sweetwater we pressed forward with
plans to build 1,500 homes in partnership with Balfour Beatty. Our Ruskin Square development in Croydon with Stanhope
and Schroders is now entering its final phase.-Our partnership with Urban Splash is creating much needed homes at
Lakeshore in Bristol, Park Hill in Sheffield and Icknield Port Loop in Birmingham. We are also transforming Smith’s Dock
on Tyneside, the north east’s largest regeneration project. .

Act'iire, healthy places

This has been a goad year for our leisure business too. Places for People Leisure has a reputation for providing effective,

. efficient, award-winning leisure management services to local authorities around the country. This year we secured two
new contracts and four contract extensions to run facilities on behalf of councils. In the last ten years we have designed
and built more centres than anyone else in the sector and opened the doors of two brand new leisure centres this year:
alone. In 2015-16, each week, 64,000 children had swimming lessons in one of our facilities, helping Places for People
Leisure to achieve its mission of ‘more people, more active, more often’. .

Robust governance

The Places for People Group board has seen some changes during the year with the. departure of Ehsan Mani who had
served diligently for seven years as a valued non-executive member. We were joined by Baroness Brenda Dean who
brings with her a wealth of experience in the governance of large organisations. Executive Director, David Shaw retired
from his position as Group Development Director. I joined with the board in thanking David for his contribution to the
Group over his 15 years in the post. We also welcomed two long-standing members of the management team to the
Group board, Colin Rae as Group Development Director in February 2016 and Pat Egan as Group Director, Affordable
Housing in May 2016. I am grateful for the continued support and commitment of all our board members who each make
a unique contribution by. sharing their professional expertise and skills with the Group so generously each year.

A positive future A : A -

. - ( . N 3
On behalf of the Group board, I would also like to acknowledge our colleagues across all of the Group’s businesses. Our
teams show incredible creativity as they constantly look to drive improvements in the organisation and keep ‘us at the
forefront of innovation in our businesses. In the face of a challenging operating environment we have maintained excellent
services to our customers and continued to improve neighborhoods and support communities. I am incredibly proud to
represent Places for People and look forward to another year of innovation and growth ahead. .
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Our ambitious business plans for the year were delivered across the board. Our “diversity of operatlon spreads rlsk between
social housing and non-social-housing activities.

Our highlights

Performance across the Group’s companies has been solid in the face of continued challenges in the wider economy and.
the Group has further diversified its offer as a multifaceted placemaking organisation. Our turnover reached £616.6m and
we achieved a profit before tax of £43.7m. We now own or manage 152,783 homes and have assets in excess of £3 billion.
We employ over 11,000 people and are active in 400 local authority areas.

Places for People recognised many years ago that we needed to promote a culture of innovation within the business. We
were the largest landlord to be recognised in the top 10 most innovative housing organisations this year as we continue to
spot trends and stay ahead by implementing practical and commercially viable initiatives.

"We have diversified our offering of products and services and are capable of delivering complex, multi-use and multi-tenure
projects from start to finish. We operate across the whole of the property value chain from initial procurement of sites,
through planning and project management to the delivery of high quality places with supporting infrastructure and strong
management. This flexibility in the market sets us apart and has given our orgamsat«on -a degree of resilience that provides
a strong foundation for future growth.

Our ambitious business plans for the year were delivered across the board. This year our new fund management business
gained accreditation with the Financial Conduct Authority and we will soon launch-a fund management service for investors
looking to enter the residential property market. Our diversity of operation spreads risk between social housing and non-
social housing activities, which include property management, regeneration, development and leisure management. This
builds our resilience against further changes to the housing rent regime and welfare system. It also paves the way for new
growth for the organisation. Our business model is predicated on listening to our customers and responding to their needs.
In the UK we have a growing elderly population and the number of people requiring specialist support, accommodation
and care is rising each year. To respond to this need we are refining our eX|st|ng specialist housmg and support services
and have established Places for People Retirement.

Expanding our capabilities

Through Places for People Retirement we are developing two high quality retirement living sites in a joint venture with -
Engli"sh Care Villages at Warwick and Tattenhall.. These attractive retirement villages are being marketed to appea! to
growing numbers of people seeking flexible housing options in later life. Girlings, our specialist lettings and management
business dealing exclusively with the 55-plus market, also further strengthens our offering to the retirement market as we
seek to meet the needs of people at all stages of the housing spectrum. We also recently launched Places for People
Living+, the new name for our Individual Support business. Living+ will focus on providing specialist support serwces
_older persons’ accommodation based services and personalised homes for people with various support needs. :

. Creating social value

The Group's affordable housing businesses also continued to deliver services to customers in our 54,008 affordable rented

homes around the UK. We continued to invest not only in the properties we own but also in the communities we serve, -

driving social return through our neighbourhood interventions. In 2015-16 we helped 570 people into employment,

supported 1,695 individuals into learning, helped 63 businesses to start up or develop and involved 2,934 young people in

capacity-building activities. Our financial inclusion strategies helped to boost household incomes by £2,366,078 through
~ financial advice, and we provided 849 affordable loans to those unable to borrow from high street lenders.

Growing our business

Our property management businesses, Touchstone (private rented sector) and RMG (leasehold management) have .

delivered strong performances in the year. Touchstone secured a new contract with the Dolphin Square Foundation in

London to deliver management services across-a range of new developments in the city. RMG now has 76,402 leasehold
. properties under management in the private sector and a contracted order book of 24,919 units under construction, thanks

to strong organic growth and the acquisition of F&S Property Services. Our public sector management portfolio also
. continued to grow making us one of the UK's Iargest property managers

Housebuilding

We have consolidated our construction capabilities through the integration of Allenbuild and ZeroC within the Group’s
existing development functions, which together provide development and construction services to the Group. . This
consolidated approach strengthens our ability to respond to challenges, capitalise on opportunities and operate more
efficiently. In 2015-16 the Group, together with its joint venture partners, completed 1,119 new homes and started
construction on a further 1,118 homes. At a.time when building rates nationally continue to falter, we have tripled our

g
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Pl
development pipeline. We remain committed to delivering high quality homes in attractive places with the mfrastructure
and services needed to make a place thrive.

Looking ahead

This has been a positive yeér. We have stepped up to the challenges presented by government policy change to deliver
more new homes, and to create new products and services to meet our customers’ needs. This forward momentum has
been possible because of the commitment, hard work and innovation of our staff, the strategic direction provided by our
board members and the participation and support of our customers, partners and stakeholders. I would like to thank them
" all for their contribution to this success.

In the coming year we will continue to push the boundaries and strengthen our posntlon in the market as we seek to create
more asplratlonal homes and inspirational places.

What we do

The Places for People Group is a leading pfoperty management, development, regeneration and leisure company. We now
own or.manage 152,783 properties, run 116kiure facilities, and have assets in excess of £3 billion. We aim to deliver high
quality places that support strong communities.

We have been developing homes since 1965 and continue to forge creative partnerships and find innovative ways to
develop high quality homes and create vibrant places, whatever the prevailing political or economic environment. In
2015-16 the Group, together with its joint venture partners, completed 1,119 new homes and started construction on a
further 1,118 homes. We aim to deliver over 15,000 new homes in the coming years.

With a supportive Group structure and a strong reputation for delivering large-scale regeneration, we have an
unrivalled ability to achieve our vision to create and manage aspirational homes and inspirational places.

The Group provides services to over half a million people, working closely with local communities to help them meet
their aspirations and improve their quality of life. As we extend our range of products and services, we are always
exploring new ways to meet the challenges of the social and political environment we work in, while enhancing the
sustainability of our operations.

As a not-for-dividend organisation with a strong social purpose, we use business methods to deliver social outcomes,
taking commercial decisions and reinvesting any financial surplus back into the busmess
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Our SPIRIT values
Our vision is ‘working to provide aspirational homes and inspirational places’

Our SPIRIT values help to deﬁne.what we stand for and how we deliver our services. They support and engage our
staff to achieve our vision. To continue our success, SPIRIT guides the behaivours of our staff.

Support

" Recognising when and how customers and colleagues need help and offenng support. Working with others,
removing barriers and resolving issues. Llstenlng
Positive
Focusing on what 'I CAN DO’ for customers and colleagues. Identifying optlons, alternatlves and solutions.
Integrity ‘
Delivering on promises and ensuring actions are in line W|th words. Being open and honest about the reality
of situations, providing information and explanation.
Respect '
Treating people fairly, valuing mdlvndual differences and apprecnatmg their contnbutrons
Innovative
New ideas and not constrained by the way things have been done in the past. Being prepared to try
things and learning from experlence
Together

. Recognising value in working with others, both within a team and across the orgamsatlon Believing
more can be achieved by working effectively together.

Our placemaking approach
Our approach goes much further than simply bricks and mortar.
We look at what an area needs to thrive — whether it is new schools, leisure facilities or shops, job opportunities or

specialist support services — and then we deliver them. Our business is about creating sustainable homes and
communities, with green spaces and a complete infrastructure, where people can enjoy living for the long term.

Making a positive difference

Our commercial success enables us to make a profit which, in turn, means that we make an even bigger difference to our
communities. We use our profit to give people a he|p|ng hand to reach their potential and to invest in the lasting
success of the places we create.

We are also playing our part in tackling the UK'’s housing shortage, and ultimately, everything we stand for and
everything we do is aimed at enriching lives and giving back to society. Over the last two decades, we have -

sought to break the mould of the traditional housing association and change forever the way places are built
and managed

Our ambitious strategy seeks to widen housing access, meeting demand and enabling customers to achieve their
aspirations. These priorities have driven the Group to broaden its offer and find innovative ways of doing things.

Our collaborative reach ' ,

We lead on major regeneration schemes and neighbourhood renewal projects, and provide homes across a wide spectrum
of tenures, including affordable rent, shared ownership, .market rent and owner occupatlon as well as specialist
accommodation for older people and those requiring specialist support.

We are, above all, a placemaking business and believe in working collaboratively with other organisations to make the most
of our skills and continue to grow. By working together with other forward-looking organisations, we are able to develop
more great places and transform communities in an effective and sustainable way. And we can help our partners to achieve
their placemakmg and investment aims too.

Where we operate
We work across all four nations of the UK with a particularly strong presence in England and Scotland. We are a national
organisation that thinks locally — building Jomt ventures and alliances with local aqmontxes and other local partners aqoss the UK.
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The success of this approach is demonstrated by our involvement in Aberdeen, where we have signed a pioneering new 300
million partnership deal with the council to build thousands of new homes; in Manchester where our partnership with the
council and the city pension fund is delivering new homes for rent; and in the Olymplc Park in London where we are creating
an entirely new mixed community.

Number of homes managed by reglon

Channel Islands 121
East Midlands 8,869
East "16,042
Isle of Man- 12
London - 17,362
North East .| 8,539 -
North West 33,324
Northern Ireland 118
Scotland - 11,135
South East 26,253
South West 7,477
Wales 1,408
West Midlands 4,285
Yorkshire and Humber | 17,848

Our major sites include:

East Wick and Sweetwater - Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park

1,500 new homes along with new retail commercial and community facilities will be delivered through our joint venture
with Balfour Beatty Investments in one of the UK 's most prestigious residential developments.

Ruskln Square - Croydon :
In partnership with Schroders and Stanhope, we're creating a stunning, contemporary 161- home development in the heart
of Croydon'’s transformational regeneration, designed by Stirling prize-winning architects . .

Brooklands - Milton Keynes .
Our flagship £500 million development where 2,500 new mixed- tenure homes will be delivered, as well as three new schools,
hotel, commercial space, 100 acres of parkland, along with new roads and a busway. -

Gilston Park Estate - East Hertfordshire .
Our masterplan proposals for the 2,500 acre site can provide up to 10, 000 new homes with extensive supporting
infrastructure and facilities, which would bring over £500 million of investment into the local area.

" Icknield Port Loop - Birmingham

In one of the UK’s most significant brown field regeneration schemes, we're working in partnership with Urban Splash,
Birmingham City Council and the Canal and River Trust, to develop 1,150 new homes along with commercial property and
community facmties across the 43-acre site.

Aberdeen - City of Aberdeen

Up- to 3,000 new homes will be created through a pioneering partnership model with Aberdeen Clty Council, which wnII see us
partner in the bunlding, ownership and management of homes to rent, targeting a range of Iocal needs

Our strategy

Our strategy for the coming three to five years is to grow the reach and impact of our businesses, so that we can play an
‘increasingly strong role in boosting housing su‘pply and strengthening accessibility to housing across the UK.

We will deliver our strategy by continuing to grow our market share as a cross- tenure property management business, by

drawing in new forms of mvestment and building our market presence.
AN

Growing our market share . )
We have developed our capabilities and skills by organic growth and acquisition. This has given us the ability to deliver a range
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of activities to create places and assets in a way few, if any, organisations can.

Our acquisitions in recent years have accelerated our growth and helped us to provide a set of mtegrated solutlons which are
unique within the UK's property development-and management market.

In 2015-16 we strengthened our position further by acquiring housebuilding and construction capabilities, and established a
strong- posntlon in the retirement market. Our commercial success over the past year proves that the |ntegrated solutions we
offer are in demand, particularly among local government and-other publlc sector agencies. :

Our prlorltles .
The Places for People Group Strategy and Business PIan for 201617 focuses on maxrmlsmg the return on our investment and
delivering social value. Our key objectives are to: :
T Continue to drive efficiency and effectiveness in our businesses. -
.. Grow our businesses and investments, driving return and social value.
. Continue to market the Group’s integrated solutions and the platforms to deliver this.

Continue to drive efficiency and effeotiveness in our businesses
e  Drive synergies and improve our margins and competitiveness
o Continue to drive effectiveness in all of our businesses to create more compelllng business offers to win more
work. . . ‘
e  Continue to innovate to improve our products and services to make a difference for our existing and future

customers

Grow our businesses and investments, driving return and social value
‘e Grow our asset base Co
o Grow our management contracting business — by winning new work
¢ Work with others —’joint ventures, new services and investment
Continue to market the Group’s integrated solutions and the platforms to deliver this _
. Seek opportunities to market our integrated solutions to investors and partners
. De\relop existing joint ventures and strategic relationships to strengthen and broaden our integrated solutions
offer ' ‘
e Broaden our investor base, seeking ways to draw in néw investment, including equity investment
Forge new strategic relationshibs

Our markets

The Group operates in six key markets: affordable housing, property management, Ieisure management, development and
construction, placemaking and regeneration, and retirement.

Affordable housing
- \ .

We manage 54,008 affordable rented homes in the UK. Our affordable homes businesses are focused on implementing a

range of changes to respond to new government policies, including the 1% rent cut and the new Right to Buy in England,

and a range of UK-wide welfare changes that impact on our customers. Sustaining tenancies remains a priority. We

continue to broaden our customer base by making our products and services available to a wider market This continues

to attract a higher proportion of economically-active customers. '
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We have a strong commitment to providing supported housing across England and Scotland through Places for People
Homes, Places for People Living+ (formerly known as Individual Support), Cotman Housing Association and Castle Rock
Edinvar Housing Association. In Scotland, we have continued to diversify and grow our business, taking advantage of
emerging opportunities that extend and develop existing work with local communities, local authorities and health boards
to provide a broad range of integrated services at a community level.

Property management

Our specialist market rent and tenancy management company, Touchstone, continues to deliver innovation through its
partnerships with Moorfield, Dolphin Living and Matrix Homes. Alongside their work, we are developing a market rent
fund.

Residential Management Group (RMG) is one of the leading residential property management businesses in the UK,
providing management and support services to the public and private sectors. During 201516, this position was
strengthened by the acquisition of F&S Property Services. Together with strong organic growth, RMG now has 100,000
units under contract in the private sector. In the public sector, RMG has grown its relatlonsh|p with Westminster City
Council and secured work with a number of other boroughs.

Leisure management

Through Places for People Leisure;, we currently manage 114 local authority leisure centres and operate two private Places
Gyms. In 2015-16 we were awarded two new leisure management contracts and a further four existing contracts were
extended. During the 2015-16 year, construction has been underway on two Public Private Partnership (PPP) contracts in
Hinckley and Wyre Forest. These two new leisure centres will open in summer 2016, in addition to two new sites in
Sheffield and one in Tewkesbury, constructed by the local authority.

Development and construction

Our development and construction businesses collectively make us one of the largest developers of new homes in
England and Scotland. We aim to deliver over 15,000 new homes in the coming years with significant developments in
London, Milton Keynes, Aberdeen and Swindon.

Placemakmg and regeneration

Many areas need ambitious and transformative regeneration and development programmes to drive |nvestment in
their communities. At the same time, public sector bodies continue to face unprecedented financial constraints and
need to ensure that they achieve the best returns on the investment of their assets while supporting sustainable
communities.
Our placemaking and regeneration business aims to respond to these challenges. Through our extensive network of

. joint ventures, we are building new homes in the Olympic Park and at Ruskin Square, Croydon. Over the past year, we
continued to progress projects through our joint venture W|th Urban Splash, including Park Hill (Sheffield), Smith’s Dock
(North Tyneside) and Lakeshore (Bristol).

Retirement : ,

Our retirement business is growing steadily, providing properties for sale, shared-ownership and rent that are
complemented by a range of care and support services.

In 2014 we acquired Girlings Retirement Rentals. The company manages 2,472 propertles in over 570 retirement
developments throughout the UK. We are developing new retirement housing via Places for People Retirement and our
Inspired Villages joint venture with Enghsh Care Villages, through which construction of retirement villages in Warwick
and Tattenhall is underway.

We are now registered as a fund manager and are developlng a retirement fund to enable us to grow our output even
further. .

In addition to these key markets, the Group generates turnover from a portfolio of private rented and commercial
properties and other services, such as financial inclusion and energy, which add to the Group’s wider placemaking -
ethos.

Operating environment

Understanding the operating environment in each of these markets has been ’key to our success to date. That ms:ght and
understanding will remain crucial in the coming years and forms a core part of our future strategy.

Over the past year we have seen significant changes in our operating environment. Some of these, such as global
economic trends, the value of the pound, the economic consequences arising from the recent decision to leave the
.EU and the move towards localism, have an impact on all aspects of our business. But there have' aIso been sector-
specific developments. For example:
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In the affordable housing sector, a series of government policy measures are likely to drive rationalisation in the
housing association sector in England. These include a new rent settlement for social housing in England which delivers a .
cumulative 1% rent cut over the next four years, a new voluntary deal to extend the Right to Buy to housing

association tenants in England, and the announcement that the Office for National Statistics has reclassified housing
associations in England as public bodies. ’

In development and construction, we have seen continued constraints in housing supply. While there have been
some signs that government reforms have boosted housebuilding, there is little sign that the current DO|ICY and delivery
system is equipped to deliver the step change in housing supply required in England.

In the leisure sector, the market for contracted-out leisure services continues to grow as councils face increased
spending cuts and seek new ways to sustain vital services. Over the past few years there has been a marked change in
the way more councils have appraised and- tendered their leisure facility options.

These include a more collaborative approach with longer contracts lasting a minimum of 10 years and a wider range of
facilities than those offered by traditional leisure centres, including theatres, parks and outdoor tennis courts. Due to the
financial pressure experienced by local authorities, these clients are increasingly anticipating to receive a receipt for

the management of leisure facilities rather than to provide a subsidy.

Continued demographic pressures point towards increased demand for specialist housin@ for retired people. Despite these
pressures and little sign of significant new market provision, there have been relatively few new policy interventions to
boost supply of new specialist housing. We continue to work closely with our research partners, Government and .
politicians to develop models to boost specialist supply in future. .

Our approach

The Group works across the whole of the property value chain. We offer a range of delivery models that enable different
terms, risk profiles and fund requirements to be quickly appraised. These offers are proving competitive in the market place,
appealing to both public and private sector investors. We then employ the skills of our property management and affordable
housing companies, to agreed commercial terms and operational standards.

The wider Group experience in design, planning specification and construction is proving an added-value offer to investors as
it ensures their property portfolio is robust, efficient and appropriate for their target markets. This end-to-end offer makes us
a strong partner.

Managmg cyclical pressures .

A key strength of this integrated approach is the ability to dehver a business that is resilient and able to act both cycllcally
and counter-cyclically. If the market drops, the Group is well positioned to change the tenure of new housing to market rent
for institutional funders in order to protect revenues. The diversity of the Group also strengthens this approach. Unlike many

" other large developers, we have a significant private rented business ready to manage and market a greater number of
properties, if necessary.

In addition, more than 50% of Group turnover is now drawn from non-social housing activities. This builds in resilience
against further changes to the social housing rent regime or other welfare changes. A key strength of our broad suite of
management interests, such as Places for People Leisure, is that they demand relatively little capital.

As a leading provider of affordable housing, we aim to reduce the reliance of the sector on government funding and play a
full and active part in recent government initiatives.

- Performance of our affordable housing businesses exceeded targets and positions us amongst the best performing in -
the sector.
- - Remodeled and relaunched our specialist support busmess under the Places for People Living+ brand
- Invested £97 million maintaining and improving our homes, including a £3 million painting programme.
- Introduced an innovative fund to reinvest profits from the ‘sale of homes back into the local area.

The challenge
A series of government policy measures are dnvung ratlonahsatlon in the housmg assocuatlon sector in England These

g '
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include a new rent settlement for social housing which delivers an annual 1% rent cut for the next four years and a new
voluntary deal to extend the Right to Buy to housing association tenants. These policy changes, combined with increasing
customer expectations, have led us to continue our focus on driving efficiencies and maximising the benefits of economies
of scale. In practice, this means concentrating on efficient service delivery and increasing our capacity to deliver across
the housing market through organic growth and our partnership approach, while managing risk through careful analysis -
of the operating environment.

i(ey achievements

Improving on previous best

Our performance culture is based around high-quality, high-value services, evaluating success and-continuous
improvement. In 2015-16, our performance exceeded targets and positions us amongst the best in the sector.

Places for People Homes is the Group’s social housing:provider in England (excluding East Anglia), managing 38,466
properties. Despite the recent challenges of welfare reform, the organisation exceeded its current and former tenant
arrears targets, achieving year-end performance of 2.5% and 0.54%. Across the 3,400 properties managed by Cotman
Housing Association, there was a 31% fall in tenancy turnover, a reduction of almost  a third in re-let times to 11
days, and a reduction in void repair costs from £1,414 to £830 per void property; all contributing towards high levels of
customer satisfaction and driving strong financial performance

Castle Rock Edinvar is one of Scotland’s largest housing associations, managing 6, 226 properties. A further 1,022
affordable homes are managed by its subsidiary, Places for People Scotland. Performance and customer satisfaction
levels surpassed the previous year’s, with highlights including improved profitability, 100% gas servicing and an
impressive 25% increase in overall customer satisfaction to 93%. .

Service delivery efficiencies

Amid the fast-changing operating environment, we are remodelling our affordable housing businesses in England to
reflect the reduction in rental income. The strength of the Group has enabled us to reconfigure the services we
provide to make the necessary savings without impacting on the Group’s profitability.

We have continued to innovate and invest in technology to create efficiencies, and improve both our effecliveness and
customer service, by streamlining operational processes and increasing customer self-service. This continued efficiency
drive resulted in streamlining our lettings website, rationalising our [andscapes and grounds maintenance operations
and.extending the service to new areas, rolling out new real-time repair-scheduling software and relaunching our
online customer service portal.

During the year, we remodeled our specialist support business, Places for People Living+ (formerly Individual Support),
to reflect the changing care market, the reduction in Supporting People funding and the opportunities arising from the
ageing population, resulting in a new offer relaunched under the Living+ brand. It operates as a support specialist,
providing accommodation and support for people with complex needs in England. Living+ was awarded a three-star
‘outstanding’ accreditation from the Centre for Housing and Support (CHS), making it just one of six provnders

_ natnonally to achieve the highest standard. .

Investing in homes and communities

We support the long-term sustainability of the neighbourhoods we manage through community investment, nationwide
initiatives and innovative local projects. During 2015-16, we invested almost £97 million maintaining and improving
homes, including a £3m national painting programme and completing over 140,000 repairs. Our new ‘kerb appeal’
programme invested a further £650,000 in 66 projects to improve the external appearance of our neighbourhoods.

We also introduced an innovative community investment fund whereby profits from the sale of homes are reinvested
back into the local area. The sale of 16 homes created a fund of £900,000 that supported the provision of youth and
community development workers, community events and social inclusion projects. Our Lottery-funded Aspire youth
project in Lancashire supported an overall reduction in anti- social behaviour of 43% in one of our largest
neighbourhoods. Places for People Homes, Living+ and Cotman all worked with Places for People Leisure to deliver a
number of health and housing |n|t|at|ves including discounted swimming memberships, activity days and exercise

~ classes for resndents

Sustaining tenancies

We continued to invest in our homes to help older people lead independent actlve lives and partnapate in their local
community. Cotman’s award-winning ‘outreach for older people’ contract has been extended for a further two years.
The service provides floating support to help older people in Norwich retain independence and achieve better health
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A focus on reducing social isolation through digital inclusion saw Castle Rock Edinvar begin to roll-out Wi-Fi. access in
its sheltered housing schemes, with all homes benefitting from free internet access by 2017. We also continued to
invest in energy efficient technologies. Places for People Green Services focuses on developing new business
opportunities and investing in innovative products around the green agenda. An opportunity facilitated by Places for
People Green Services resulted in 170 solar panels being fitted to homes owned by Cotman to make heating more
affordable and cut utility bills.

In Scotland, we secured a £3.2m government grant to install innovative heat batteries in homes to tackle fuel poverty.
This was part of a much wider programme of works to meet the new Energy Efficiency Standard for Social Housing.
The standard came:into effect in Scotland last year and will see Castle Rock Edinvar invest over £5m in energy
efficiency measures by 2020.

Property Management
Managing 98,840 properties across a range of sectors and tenures, ‘we have several specaallst management companies, all
expert in their own areas of delivery.

Key highlights
- RMG exceeded 100,000 units contracted for management for the first time in its 100-year history.
- Touchstone secured its first on-site management contract positioning it to deliver many more build to rent contracts.

- Achieved average lettings times of 10 days across the Manchester Housing Investment Fund portfolio.
- Touchstone refreshed its brand identity and proposition to reflect its data-driven approach.

The challenge

The sustained growth in the private rented sector, now accounting for a larger market share than social rent, has
continued to present both challenges and opportunities for the Group. Recent policy changes, such as the higher rate of
stamp duty for buy-to-let properties, are expected to have a negligible impact on investment in market rent, dampening .
interest only among small buy-to-let landlords, with institutional investors continuing to capitalise on the rapidly expandlng ’
market. Our property management businesses continue to evolve at pace to meet the changing demands of investors and
landlords, and the increasing expectatioris of tenants and leaseholders within this rapidly changing market.

Key achievements

Business growth

RMG, our specialist leasehold and block management company, exceeded 100,000 units contracted for management for

. the first time in its 100-year history. This 15% year-on- year growth was achieved by winning a number of new
contracts and the acquisition of Southampton-based F&S Property Management, which has 4,400 units under
management. This acquisition provides a strong platform for further growth on the south coast through an established,
trusted brand. In the public sector, RMG continued to strengthen its relationship with Westminster City Council,
increasing the number of homes in its private sector leasing scheme for homeless people and extending its offer
through the introduction of a new public sector consultancy service, which has secured work for RMG .with a number of
other London boroughs. Since joining Places for People in 2013, RMG has become an important part of the Group’s )
integrated development and management services, with 76,402 units under management and a contracted order book
of a further 24,919 units under construction. -

Integrated solutions

Our specialist market rent and tenancy management company, Touchstone, continues to deliver innovation through its
partnerships with Dolphin Living, Matrix Homes and Moorfield. Touchstone is working with other Group companies to
deliver over 400 new-build affordable homes in Central London for Dolphin Living through our integrated property
management approach. Touchstone also helped to stabilise the much-publicised New Era estate in Hoxton, where a major
challenge was to implement @ new management regime. We are seeing more and more clients wanting this one-stop shop
service. Through the pioneering Manchester Housing Investment Fund we manage and maintain market rented family
homes across five suburban areas for Matrix Homes, achieving average lettings times of 10 days. The ownership structure
— with Places for People taking a 20-—year operating lease and Touchstone managing the homes - has helped forge a
progressive template for other pension-funds and local authorities to follow.

Build-to-rent opportunities
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Touchstone is perfectly placed to deliver comprehensive management services to build-to-rent projects. Touchstone
secured its first contract to deliver on-site management at Moorfield’s ‘'The Kee!’ development on Liverpool's waterfront.
At this conversion of an ex-HMRC building into 240 apartments, Touchstone worked with Moorfield and its partners
through the design, marketing and mobilisation stages to deliver a genuinely new offer in the city’s rental market. We
expect that the sustained growth in the build-to-rent market will present further opportunities over the coming years. To
further support its growth, Touchstone created a strategic alliance with Legal & General and Laing O'Rourke to work with
the public sector to generate long-term revenue streams by developing market rent properties on public sector land.

Driving up standards

We are at the forefront of the emerging and increasingly well-requlated professional private rented sector and are focused
on driving up standards. The growth of 25-34 year olds renting privately looks set to continue, with  more people in this .
age group now renting privately than buying their own home (English housing survey 2014 to 2015, DCLG, 2016). This,
coupled with continued investment in the sector, is giving customers more choice which, along with higher expectations, is
driving increased competition. To stay ahead of its competitors in a fast-developing market, Touchstone refreshed its

brand identity and its proposition to reflect its data-driven approach and.renewed focus on customer service, RMG's
investment in technology to improve services continued with the launch of new online customer self-service and digital
communications.

Leisure Management

Leisure and recreational facilities are an |mportant factor in crediting successful places and are an important part of our
placemaking approach.
~ Key highlights

- Being awarded two new leisure management contracts and four contract extensions with existing local authority
clients.

- Winning ukactive ‘Leisure Centre Operator of the Year’ for the third consecutive year and ‘Leisure Centre of the Year’
for the second consecutive year.

- Being the only leisure operator nationally to be rated ‘outstanding’ by the UK Quality Scheme for Sport and Leasure

(Quest) with the highest scoring sports development team for the second year running.
-, £7.7 million capital investment in centre and equipment upgrades

The challenge

The continued growth of the low-cost gym market is increasing consumer choice and accessibility across the country,
presenting an attractive alternative for those looking for gym-only membership or, in some cases, exercise classes, too.
Responding to the emergence of the low-cost gym market around four years ago, Places for People Leisure was the first
non-private management operator to introduce a low-cost gym-only offer. S3 of our sites are now part of this scheme,
which has been an integral part of our membership growth to 142,000 members. During the year, we also opened our
second budget gym under our Places Gym brand, in Corby, and began construction of our third, which opened in Preston
in June 2016.

Key achievements

New contracts secured

Our leisure management service continues to be an attractive proposition to local authorities, enabling them not only to
reduce their revenue costs but to increase participation and physical activity levels. Despite the local authority leisure
contracting market becoming increasingly heated over the last two years, Places for People Leisure won two new leisure
management contracts during the year, both 10-year contracts, for Dartford Borough Council and Sheffield City Council. A
further four local authority contracts were extended — in Eastleigh, Horsham, North Somerset and Newport Pagnell — taking
the number of centres managed to 114 along with two Places Gyms. In Eastleigh, we were awarded a 20-year contract
extension to manage the new £28m replacement of Fleming Park Leisure Centre due to open late 2017.

A five-year extension from 2022 to the existing contract in Horsham includes the management of the new Broadbridge
Heath leisure facility and the seven-year contract extension in Newport Pagnell includes a £250,000 refurbishment at
Middleton Pool. Performance in the year was strong too with like-for-like income growth across existing contracts
increasing by 3.1% during the year and an increase in Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) in those contracts of 5.2%.

More new centres
. TN
In the last 10 years we have designed and built more leisure facilities than any of our competitors. We have completed
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- Allenbuild completed their first construction projects for Places for People, converting former offices in Bristol and
London into residential apartments.
- Secured the HCA'S first custom-build development site, placing is at the forefront of a growing market.

The challenge

More new homes are needed in Britain to address the housing shortage caused by continued undersupply.and
growing demand in the market. Adding to the challenge is the need to increase volumes at a time of skill shortages
and rising construction costs in some parts of the UK. The mortgage market has continued to improve in terms of.
both rates and availability, but affordability remains an issue for some.

Key achievements
Building mbre homes

Due to being selected to deliver a number of major housing projects and our continued success in securing new
development land and planning consents, we have tripled our development pipeline of new-homes, ensuring that we play
a significant role in addressing the UK’s housing shortage. Through the acquisition and integration of design- led
housebuilder ZeroC and contractor Allenbuild, we are better able to manage the impact of skills shortages and rising
costs with direct access to suppliers and sub-contractors and reduced overheads; another benefit of our integrated
approach to development and construction.

Affordable hdusing

Despite major changes in the funding and policy environment, we succeeded in delivering our planned affordable
housing programmes in England and Scotland by completing 314 new affordable homes and starting a further 400 on
- site.

The introduction of sacial housing rent reductions from April 2016 has had a major impact on the viability of developing
new rental properties through the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) Affordable Homes Programme (AHP) for 2015-
18 in England. By converting some schemes to shared ownership, we met our commitment to deliver 35 new homes and
started a further 127. During the year, successful bids for additional schemes have seen our AHP programme increase
from 321 to 439 homes, all to be delivered without the need for new grant.

Through our affordable housing programme with the Scottish Government and the City of Edinburgh Council, we
completed 279 homes for affordable sale and rent in Scotland. Developments included the multi-award winning dementia-
friendly older person housing at Fortune Place in Edinburgh, which includes a Big Lottery funded garden room and
programme of social activities, and the first 68 homes in the Harvesters Way regeneration project in Edinburgh. The first
19 homes were completed in the ground-breaking Falkirk Pension Fund initiative, the first local authority pension fund to
directly invest funds in social and affordable housing in Scotland. The fund manager, Hearthstone Investments, has
agreed a £15 million loan facility with Places for People and Castle Rock Edinvar to deliver and manage the initial phase of
new homes.

Securing land

" We have continued to secure high quality land in the right locations which has contributed towards the rapid growth of
our development pipeline. Our success is based on our strong relationships  with large, responsible Jandowners and our
ability to work with them to create long-term value. Together with our comprehensive assessments of local market .
conditions and our extensive consultation and planning experience, we continue to deliver a wide range of homes —
from one-bedroom city centre apartments to large, family homes in rural locations — across all tenures. In the
last year, land has been secured through landowners including the Rothschild Foundation and the HCA — and, owing to
our strong track record of delivering outstanding homes at the exemplary Poundbury estate in Dorset a further two sites
have been secured on land owned by the Duchy of Cornwall.

Placemaking and regeneration
Our focus has always been helping people reach their potential by creating the environments and places they need to

thrive. We look beyond simple bricks and mortar to deliver what an area needs in order to prosper. The development and
management of aspirational homes and inspirational places remains our priority into 2016 and beyond.

Key hlghllghts
- 1,150 new homes to be built on the 43-acre Icknield Port Loop site.
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- £300m Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) agreed with Aberdeen Crty Council that will see up to 3,000 new homes
delivered across the city.

- Consent granted for East Wick’s zonal masterplan which will deliver up to 900 new homes in the first phase of the
Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park project.

- Second primary school completed at our 2,500 home Brooklands development in Milton Keynes.

- Secured planning consent for first two phases of major regeneration project at Smith’s Dock, North Tyneside.

The challenge

Our major challenge remains the bunldlng of successful places, partlcularly in an environment where both the public .
and private sectors are being asked to achieve more with less resource. Within the process of creating successful
places, we take care to include homes across a range of tenures, and provide the amenities and infrastructure for a
place to thrive. All of this is achieved while ensuring our partners and investors achieve their social and community
objectives, delivering an extensive placemaking service that is like nothing else offered in the UK.

Key achievements

" Major contract wins

During 2015-16, we agreed a pioneering partnership with Aberdeen City Council to create up to 3,000 new homes in

the city. The £300m Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) is the first of its kind to be signed in Scotland, and will deliver

new homes across Aberdeen without any government subsidy or grant funding. Under its initial plans, the partnership will
deliver 2,000 homes for rent with the potential for a further 1,000 properties in what is our largest housebuilding project in
Scotland. We will take.a placemaking approach to construction. Key services and infrastructure, such as shops, schools,
transport links, and leisure and healthcare facilities, will be incorporated into the developments.

We also formed Icknield Port Loop LLP with Urban Splash, Birmingham City Council, and the Canal and River. Trust. We

can now develop Icknield Port Loop in Birmingham, one of the most significant brownfield regeneration schemes in the

UK. A total of 1,150 new homes will be built on the 43-acre site. .

Large-scale developments

Our landmark housing development at London’s Queen EInzabeth Olympic Park is a step closer to dellvenng its first phase
of a total of 900 new homes.
Consent was granted for East Wick's zonal masterplan in December 2015, and a detailed planning application for. phase
one of this development is now in production. The overall project will deliver a diverse range of housing for the capital,
with up to 30 per cent of the total 1,500 homes being affordable and 500 available for private rent.
A second primary school opened in September 2015 at our award- winning Brooklands development in Mllton Keynes.

" The first campus opened five years ago, and in total they provide 1,320 school places and 120 nursery slots. When
complete, the Brooklands development will include 2,500 homes alongside parks, open spaces, and a local centre
including shops and office space.

Urban Splash joint ventures

Our partnership with Urban Splash continues to flourish, and this was demonstrated through significant progress at Smith's
Dock in North Tyneside and Park Hill in Sheffield. The redevelopment of the former Smith’s Dockyard will create 815 new
homes, and the securing of planning consent for the first two phases means we can start to build 34 waterfront townhouses
and 80 apartments across two buildings known as the Smokehouses Construction is scheduled to commence by August
2016.

In Sheffield, the first phase of the major regeneratlon project at Park H|II the largest listed building in Europe, was
completed. Sales and lettings have been underway, generating strong interest from buyers and renters alike. Phase two has
now started, and 182 apartments will be delivered in total. .

Other projects

The quality of our placemaking has been réflected in the demand we have experienced at our major development sites.

- Constructjon of Vita at Ruskin Square, Croydon, is on track to be completed in August 2016. Vita has an imposing 22-storey
tower, with spectacular views over countryside and down towards the south coast, a superb roof garden and attractively
designed private communal space at: ground level. It will house 161 new mixed-tenure homes.

In Manchester, the final rental home was handed over in a ground- breaking deal betweei Places for People, Manchester
City Council, and the Greater Manchester Pension Fund. The Manchester Housing Investment Fund represents a new
partnership model that delivered 240 family homes across five sites in Manchester. Places for People secured a 20-year
lease to let and manage 119 units as private rented sector family accommodation.

During 2015-16 we have continued to promote Gilston Park Estate in Harlow, our major strateglc landholdmg to the north
of Harlow, through the East Hertfordshire and Harlow District Plan processes. Our proposals for the 2,500- acre site,
which can provide up to 10,000 new homes, are progressing positively. This major investment would bring over
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£500 million of infrastructure investment by the Group into the area, and help drive sustainable economic growth and the
regeneration of the neighbouring area in Harlow. During the year, we sponsored and attended a number of local events
such as the Heart 4 Harlow awards and the Harlow Business Exhibition.

. Our Placemaking Hub has also been established, giving clients a platform where they can access aII the services required .

to

develop mixed-tenure housing through an OJEU-compliant framework.

Retirement

Aware of the increasing housing and care needs of an ageing population, we have long understood the importance of the
retirement market as a key growth area. Places for People Retirement’s vision is ‘to become a market leader in the
provision of aspirational housing, financial and lifestyle services for the over 55°". In aiming for this, we are building on a
solid platform of work over many years.

Key highlights

Places for People Retirement éstablished to drive forward our ambitious growth plans in the retirement market.
.4,593 homes for older people and 2,658 supported housing units managed.
257 homes in development across two luxury retirement villages.

The challenge .

By 2030, 1 in 3 people in the UK will be aged 55 or over, and the number of people aged 60 or overis prOJected to rise
from 14.7 to 20 million. People are-not only living longer, but living more active lives. Combine this demographic shift with
changes in pension law and care funding, and a market that has been generally slow to respond, and it is clear that there
is a significant opportunity here for Places for People. There is currently a significant undersupply of suitable réetirement
accommodation and these changing demographics will only exacerbate the lack of supply. Our retirement businesses are
well placed to create and provide aspirational, mixed-tenure homes increasing the choice and quality available to this
target market:

Key achievements
A holistic retirement strategy

Places for People has a 50-year track record of providing high quality housing and support services, including homes for
the over-55s and those requiring care. Across the Group we manage 4,593 homes for older people and a further 2,658
supported housing units. Our portfolio includes 80 supported housing schemes for over 55s in England and Scotland, and
310 units of rented Extra Care accommodation for over 55s across 8 specialis{ schemes. Through Places for People
Living+ and Places for People Scotland Care and Support we provide personalised care and support to over 7,000
customers across the UK.

Building on the Group’s existing capabilities and through partnerships with retirement housing specnahsts_, we: are now
creating an expanded portfolio of investments and developments with excellent services and amenities, which offer
security, outstanding quality of life and the flexibility to meet the changing needs of active and aspirational retirees.
During the year we created Places for People Retirement, bringing together the Group’s market rent and sale activity in
the retirement market to maximise efficiencies and opportunities. This will enable the Group to deliver a comprehensnve
offering, mcludmg design, development, sales, management and care services.

Creating new retirement villages

One of the ways that Places for People is moving forward rapidly in the retirement market is through joint ventures.
Working with English Care Villages, a joint venture partner with more than 25 years’ experience in this market,
construction of twio retirement villages in Cheshire and Warwickshire began in 2015 with sales progressing well. Each
retirement village offers a collection of luxurious apartments supported by outstanding facilities within a safe and secure
village environment.

The Warwick Gates development in Warwick will provide 118 assisted living apartments built in a cluster to create an.
attractive street scene and village environment. For those that want to live within the main village centre building there
will be homes offering a greater level of care. The first 49 properties at Warwick were handed over in May 2016.

In the Cheshire village of Tattenhall, 95 spacious assisted living apartments and 18 close-care apartments are being
developed. A further 56 units are being developed in the village centre building for those with higher dependency needs.
The first homes at the Tattenhall retirement village will be handed over in August 2016.

Each village will offer high quahty homes to buy or rent, combined with a range of social and leisure facilities, along wnth

personalised care and support via the on-site team. These are being marketed under the ‘Inspired Villages’ brand.
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Growing our market share

We are also progressing planning applications for developments from our own land bank, and seeking additional new
investment and development opportunities. Looking ahead, Places for People Retirement will be working across the
Group to identify opportunities in all areas of the market — accommodation, services, care and technology-driven
innovation — to help strengthen our integrated offer. We have allocated £20m capital for our retirement development
programme in 2016—-17 and, together with our investment partner Octopus Investments, aim to substantially increase
funding for retirement developments over the coming years. This will further enhance our position in the retirement
village market, with a full set of services delivered on site to meet demand in this fast growing sector of the market.
During the year, we gained fund management accreditation from the Financial Conduct Authority and will be developing
a retirement fund to enable us to grow our output even further. '

Retirement rentals-

In 201213, we took our first step in increasing our presence by acquiring a portfolio of market rent retirement
properties. In 2014, we acquired Girlings, the UK's leading retirement rentals business, which had previously managed a
large retirement portfolio on our behalf. The demand for high quality rental homes in the retirement sector continues to
grow as customers seek greater choice and lifestyle flexibility. Girlings is the market leader, renting 2,472 specialist
retirement properties in more than.570 developments across the UK. In 2015-16, Girlings had 2,625 tenants in residence.
It arranged the purchase of 44 new properties and the sale of 12, let 355, conducted 2,048 rent reviews and renewals for
clients, and received 139 new client landlord instructions. '

Financial review

Profit and loss for the year
The Group turnover for the year was £616.6m (2015: £564.3m), a 9% increase over the previous year.
This increase has predominantly been driven by an increase in non-social housing development and construction of £56m
due to a full year results of Allenbuiid and ZeroC for the Group and an increase in Leisure management turnover of £14m
due to an increase in like-for-like sales and-the commencement of four new contracts during the year. In addition, there
has been an increase in turnover in the Group’s retirement management, financial services and energy services. These
increases in turnover have been partially offset by a reduction in social housing activities by £25m due to reduction in

" social housing property sales of £35m, a reduction in domiciliary care services of £2m partially offset by an increase in
social housing lettings of £13m.

The Group had net current liabilities of £341.4m which reflects a higher level of borrowings due within one year in 2016
of £523.8m compared to 2015 of £54.5m. The Group has already refinanced £295.9m of these borrowings subsequent to
31 March 2016.

Treasury management

The table below shows the key treasury performance indicators for the year together with the comparative information for
the previous four years. i :

2016 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012*

Total loans (£m) 1,763 1,720 1.629 1.771 1.604

Interest cover pefore  , | 16 16 L5 1.4

depreciation. ..__._......

erestcoverafier ;s 13 13 12 12
epreciation

Operating cash :

interest cover 1 211417 23

Liquidity ' 19 22 18 2 24

Gearing . 55.1% 54.6% 50.8% 51.1% 49.2%

*These figures are from the previous years’ financial statements as reported under old UK GAAP. Tﬁe 2016 figures are
reported under the new Accounting Standard FRS102

Group borréwings increased by £42.7m during the year. Group gearing, based on tangible assets at carrying value, rose
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slightly from 54.6% to 55.1%. Both operating and profit based interest covers remained strong as a result of continuing
robust cash generation and profitability from opérating activities. The Group’s policy is to retain minimal cash whilst
ensuring that sufficient committed loan facilities are available and immediately accessible to finance a minimum of one
year's cash flow. Cash projections cover a three-year period to effectively monitor future borrowing requirements
including the refi nancmg requirements falling due in 2016-17. Since the end of March 2016, £295.9m has been
refinanced.

The borrownng strategy is to contain interest rate risk to below 30% of the loan book, with the’ board exercising strict
control over derivative transactions and their associated risks. This target has been met as currently 81.0% of debt is at
fixed rates of interest at the end of the year, while a further 1.7% is hedged against adverse interest rate movements.
The Group has moved to a more efficient structure over the last twelve months whereby a new treasury vehicle, Places
for People Treasury plic, will be covering the entire affordable housing operations of the Group. This treasury vehicle will
not have any on-lending to.any commercial subsidiaries in  the Group. The four affordable housing entities are Places for
People Homes, Places for People Living+, Cotman and Castle Rock Edinvar. The structure will allow for a more efficient
use of the Group's balance sheet and drive cheaper and more efficient borrowing costs. All refinancing within these four
entities will be carried out in the new Treasury vehicle as and when it falls due. Facilities have already been refinanced in
the new vehicle amounting to c£490m. The arrangements will be that any facilities required by each of the four affordable
housing entities will be raised in Places for People Treasury plc wnth a stralght pass through to the relevant entity and SO
each entity will only be liable for its own facilities.

The commercial parts of the Group are funded by project specific facilities and have no recourse to the core social
housing assets of the Group. . . .

"The Group’s investment activity is governed by strict counterparty credit criteria and investment limits. The Gfoup
‘continues to be compliant with covenants for funding arrangements.

Further information on the Group’s financial instruments, mcludmg a maturity profile, can be found in note 27 to the
financial statements.

Pension funds

The board has reviewed its obligations arising from employee pension funds and is satisfied that its liabilities are properly
identified, planned and accounted for. The Places for People Retirement Benefit Scheme (the Scheme) was closed on 1
September 2004 to new employees and was closed to future benefit accrual in October 2010. All new employeés joining
the Group now have the option of joining a pension scheme to which the Group contributes.

Chahge of Accounting Standards to FRS102

The financial statements to 31 March 2016 are the first financial statements to be produced under the new Accounting
Standard FRS102. These financial statements also include the revised Housing ' SORP which was published in September
2014. The results for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been prepared and reported under FRS102 and the 2015
comparatives have also been restated in accordance with FRS102.

A full analysis of the changes that have been made asa result of the change of Accounting Standards is disclosed in note
34.

Value for money
Strategy, objectives and return on assets

The Group continues to develop a diverse asset base and set of businesses including core affordable housing operations
but also an increasingly important range of supporting businesses that each contribute to the Group’s overall vision of
‘working to provide aspirational homes and inspirational places’.

The Group's strategy includes aiming to strengthen its financial position by managing its resources economically and
effectively. As investment capital is limited, achieving effective resource management requires us to deliver value for
money by understanding, and responding effectively to, our asset returns across the Group. Whilst different operations
have different types of return, including but not limited to financial pay-back, there is always an inherent trade off -
between investing in one type of asset rather than another. :

Recognising this choice requires the Group to appraise its return on assets in a tailored way appropriate to each
operation. As such we set out below how we monitor and continuously improve our return on core housing operations,

including setting out some of the recent key metrics that have driven our resource allocation decisions. We then consider*
how we ensure other assets consistently deliver strong financial and social returns  and achieve value for money.

- Regulated h‘ousihg operations - Neighbourhood Strategy
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The Group’s asset base is continually reviewed to ensure that we are maklng the most effective lnvestments in the
right properties at the right time. This is delivered through our Neighbourhood Strategy.

We continue to deve‘lop and deliver the Neighbourhood Strategy in order to assess and continually improve the return on
investment from our affordable housing businesses’ assets. This utilises our innovative ‘Neighbourhub’ dashboard
product, which enables greater insight and understandlng of housing management operational and financial -
performance.

The Neighbourhood Strategy dovetails with our wnder Asset Investment Strategy to provide effectlve delivery of
investment across our stock by:

- Delivering works packages that prioritise the replacement of building components and groups these together logically

to maximise value for money

_+ Ensuring the appropriate balance is achieved between usnng |nterna| and external contractors
-+ Delivering the works packages at a neighbourhood level rather than pepper-potted investment to mdlv;dual properties
+ Alignment with other works including compliance and cyclical decorating programmes.

Delivering our Neighbourhood Strategy

The Nelghbourhood Strategy is |mplemented in four stages:

1.

2.

Categorisation of housing stock mto defined ne|ghbourhoods with ahgned staffi ing structures and reporting
systems at a granular level. '

Development of a dashboard to monitor financial and operational performance management data, including
turnover, arrears, void and repair costs over a three-year period.

Review of KPls to assess return on assets focusing on surplus per property (SPP) — this leads to a Red,
Amber, and Green (RAG) rating for all neighbourhoods, with clear resource allocation implications for short
and long term returns.

The RAG rating is as follows:
Red - ﬁna'ncially under-performing neighbourhoods where there is a question regarding the area’s medium to

long-term sustainability and there is a need for a detalled Option Appraisal to determine the-future approach
(for example remodelling or disposal).

Amber - financially under—performing neighbourhoods but where the Group has a long-term commitment and

where a Neighbourhood Plan will drive improved performance.
Green - generally performing well and requiring continuous improvement rather than major intervention.

Addressing key issues facing ‘Amber’ areas through a. comprehenswe *Neighbourhood Plannlng approach and
appraising options for ‘Red’ nenghbourhoods

Our Neighbourhood Strategy utilises a number of key measures which ultimately drive the overall SPP. This
provides housing staff with a clear picture of their performance which can then be considered alongside
depreciation costs, management costs and major works mvestment

The key objective is to improve the neighbourhood SPP by creating sustainable tenancies and commercially
managing neighbourhoods. The table below shows both the average SPP across the Group per unit with four
years' of comparatives:

2015-16 2014——15 2013-14 2012-13

Surplus perlprorperty .
before depreciation £3,119 £3,080 £2,842 £2,522

In terms of neighbourhood bandings, as the following table indicates, over the last six years there has been
a reduction  in both ‘Amber’ and ‘Red’ neighbourhoods and an increase in ‘Green’ neighbourhoods. A
significant achievement in 2013-14 was that our Neighbourhood Strategy has resulted in no areas being
classed as ‘Red’. This performance continued in 201415 and 2015-16 alongside a higher proportion of
schemes being classified as ‘Green’ rather than ‘Amber’.

Financial year—data ’ Green Amber Red
analysed :
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2010-11 - 88.0% 9.0% 3.0%
2011-12 91.0% 8.0% 1.0%
2012-13 93.5% 6.0% ~ 0.5%
2013-14 94.5% 5.5% 0.0%
2014-15 96.5% 3.5% 0.0%
2015-16 97.5% 2.5% 0.0%

Of the 16 challenging ‘Amber’ neighbourhoods in 2015-16, 9 showed an increased SPP compared to 2014-15. The
total increase for the 3,000 properties in these neighbourhoods was circa £410,000. In addition, the reduction in costs
achieved in 2015~16 meant that the breakeven benchmark SPP figure was reduced by £308 per property meaning
that these properties brought in.an extra £959,000 in surplus, making £1.37min total. This improvement was driven
by undertaking an in-depth assessment of each of the most challenging neighbourhoods leading to a bespoke action )
plan being created. Action plans, in general, aim to see improvements on five KPIs customer satisfaction, demand,
- profitability, tenure diversification and economic activity.

As a result, most areas have seen a detailed focus on issues such as ensuring the customer base is appropriate for
the neighbourhood, reducing antisocial behaviour, improving customer involvement and increasing the kerb appeal
of properties. Whilst the overall picture in terms of improving neighbourhoods and asset returns continues to be
overwhelmingly positive, there are some neighbourhoods where there remains much to do to ensure we are getting
the best from what we have.

Benchmarkmg

For several years we have benchmarked our places against a target SPP. The basic benchmark SPP set for 2015~
16 was £2,277 which, as the earlier tables indicate, reflects a general strong and growing return on assets.

In addition, the annual assessment of the Group’s neighbourhoods incorporates a more sophisticated approach to
benchmarking at a regional level. The SPP continues to be calculated for each neighbourhood. This is then assessed
against the contribution that each individual property needs to make to cover management costs, interest costs
and a contribution to major works. This enables us to continue to

clearly identify which nelghbourhoods are meeting the minimum financial requirements. However, in order to drive
continuous improvement and to set realistic expectations and benchmarks, a review of regional rent levels and
turnover levels has enabled the model to be further developed to provide regional benchmarks agalnst which the
assessment and banding approach has been undertaken

Benchmarking against HCA data“

The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) recently published new anaIyS|s on cost variation across
the social housing sector. The analysis showed that registered providers have achieved real-term
reductions in headline social housing costs per unit over the past five years. However, the report also
highlighted a wide variation in headline social housing costs across the sector.

We have analysed our costs.against those published by the HCA so that our board and customers fully
understand how we compare. The headline social housing cost per unit for the Places for People Group
for 201415 was £3,110. This places the Group below both the sector average (median quartile) of
£3,550 cost per unit and the lower quartile benchmark, making us one of the most efficient providers
in the sector.

These headline social housing cost figures include external lease payments for housing properties which
we manage. These payments are made to other housing associations for leasing affordable” housing
stock. Including these payments within the figures distorts the comparison with the HCA's data, as these
payments include an element for depreciation of the assets and the cost of finance for the assets, which
are both excluded from the HCA's calculation of headline social housing cost per unit. Once those
additional costs are stripped out the headline social housing cost per unit for the Places for People Group
for 2014-15 it reduces to £2,930.

Across the Group, management costs, maintenance, and major repairs costs were all lower than the
median quartile benchmark for the sector in 2014-15. Service charge and other costs remain above the
median quartile.benchmark but, as we set out later in"this report, we have plans in place to reduce
operational costs in the coming year.

Although the 2015-16 data is not yet available from the sector, the data in the table on the
following page shows how the Group has compared to the prior year. In 2015-16, a decision was
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taken to increase the spending on asset management within the Group and increase the level of

improvements across our housing stock. As a direct result, the major repair costs per unit has \
increased in Ilne with expectations. The management costs have fallen from 2014—15 to £710 per
unit.
Places for People Group Headline Management Service Maintenanc  Major rebairs Otﬁer per unit
Social per unit Charge per e per unit per unit
Housing Cost unit
) per unit
HCA Benchmark Calculation
£720 £460 £860 £670 £410-
£3,110
2015
2015 adjusted for lease ' ‘ . ' '
payments £2,930 A £720 £460 £860 £670 £230
2016 excluding lease
payments £2,980 £710 £460 £900 £750 £160
2015 HCA Global Accounts Benchmarks
Upper Quartile £4,300 £1,270£610 . £1,180 £1,130 £410
Median Quartile £3,550' £950 £360 ’ £980 £800 £200

Lower Quartile £3,190 " £700 £230 £810 £530 © £80

Benchmarking to peer group

The use of the Neighbourhood Strategy to monitor return on assets has drawn out the importance of our detailed
understanding of the absolute and comparative cost of providing a responsive repairs service for our customers. In
addition to comparing our own performance across different neighbourhoods we also use our membership of- a -
benchmarking club (M3) to allow us to compare ourselves with other registered providers operating in the sector.

We recognise that there is still work to do to move the ‘cost of our responsive maintenance expenditure per property
closer to the median quartile benchmark. We are continuing our programme of improving the efficiency of the repair
service and we have targeted a further fall of £10 per property in our overall responsive maintenance expenditure per
property. As part of this improvement we have invested in new technology and we are looking to improve the workflow
around our repair processes; this will reduce the level of failure demand within the processes and improve the level of
control and the efficiency of the mobile repair operatives.

In parallel with this we have extended our lean systems review of the repair service and focused on the absolute costs
of providing a repairs service and removing the ‘non-added value’ elements of our maintenance expenditure. This
ensures that the repair visit is maximised and that all work required is completed in that visit. Although this has the
effect of increasing the average cost of a repair visit, it will reduce the number of visits and contribute to the overall
reduction in maintenance cost. We are also focusing on our service delivery measures. We have improved the number
of jobs completed in one visit; however, both this measure and our emergency response measure are both in the lower
quartile. In the next year, we will be targeting these to aim to bring them in line with the median quartile for the sector.

In previous years we have reported on the average cost of a responsive repair; this is an industry standard measure

 and is as much a reflection of the transfer pricing mechanism adopted as the actual cost of the repair. For
completeness we have included this measure in our assessment. However, we are now measuring the actual cost of
a repair visit; this is stated below the previous measure and is a reflection of the full cost of a repair visit. This cost
includes not just the direct costs of the individual repair but all the main indirect costs, and reflects the full cost of
delivering the service. There is no industry benchmark for this. However, we have calculated this for 2015-16 so a
comparison of the movement made can be seen.

This supports the other new measure we have introduced — the cost of maintenance expenditure per property.

We have continued to reinforce a repairs and maintenance framework that encourages and supports our customers to
look after their home. This has included promoting the rights and responsibilities agenda in our landlord and tenant
relationship. This has helped to manage customers’ expectations and to stabilise repair demand, which is running at a
similar level to 2014-15. The adoption of this agenda did lead to a small reduction in customer satisfaction; this has also
stabilised and the lean improvement programme is focusing on the customer journey to simplify this process.
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The table below shows Group performance data for repairs and maintenance against the benchmark comparisons
published by the M3 benchmarking club. ) '

Our full Value for Money Self-Assessment report can been found at www.placesforpeople.co.uk/valueformoney and
includes information from across the business on achievements during 2015-16 and further areas for focus in 2016~

17.
2015-16 2014-15  Benchmark
' Comparisons
' . . . Upper Median Lower
Service Measure . KPI KPI Quartile Quartile Quartile
: - (Green) .(Amber (Red)
, _Responsive maintenance expenditure per property*New*  £357 - £409 £267 - £318 : £384
Average cost per responsive maintenance repair £109 £99 £93 '£100 £114
Average cost of a responsive repair visit *New* : £125 £144 n/a n/a n/a
Number of responsive repairs per property . 2.9 - 2.9 2.4 3.0 3.6
Average repair cost per void property £1,197 - £1,217 - £1,598 £1,964 £2,578
Number of void properties . . 4,068 3,992 - n/a n/a E
Emergency response times 96% C97% 100% 99% 97%
% of jobs completed in one visit (RFT) 88% ° 86% 96% 90% 88%
Customer satisfaction with the responsive repair service'  91% . 91% 98% 96% 92%
Landlords gas safety certificates outstanding . 0.00% 0.02% 0.00% 0.09% 0.19%

Note — The benchmark comparison are the latest Round 16
*(2014-15) published by. the M3 benchmarking club.

We are a business with a social as well as a commercial purpose, so creating social value and meeting our corporate
responsibilities is at the heart of our operations.

We integrate responsible business principles into everything we do. By investing all profits back into our work, we sustain
the extensive range of activities that improve people’s lives.

Our board is respon5|ble for developlng, delivering and reviewing the Groups corporate responsibility strategy. It .
comprises four strands:

1. Neighbourhoods
2. People

3. Society

4. Environment

Working across the Group, we embed the strategy into every aspect of service delivery. We do this by helping
customers to: access learning opportunities, improve their employment prospects, learn the skills required to
maintain a tenancy, participate in their communities, and maximise their health and wellbeing.

Quanﬁfying the financial impact of social value has always been challenging, so we use the recognised HACT social .
value methodology to assess our investment in social activity across the Group.

This year our Living+ bu"sinéss is-working directly with HACT to integrate their social impact model into ECCO, our -
support planning system, to seamlessly and automatically calculate the social impact value of our support delivery.
We will be the first company to develop an integrated support system with the HACT social impact model.

Neighbourhoods

e

The Groups nenghbourhoods are successful and sustainable in the long term and customers are able to reach their
potential.

People
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We develop the potential of our people and customers in a diver'se society.
 Society

We work with others to create a fair society and sustainable communities.

Environment |

We reduce our environmental impact.

Neighbourhoods

THE TOUCHSTONE FUND [CASE STUDY] i
Launched in 2013 and now in its third successful year, the Touchstone Fund has helped hundreds of our customers work with
frontline staff to create lasting positive change in their neighbourhoods. To ensure its continued relevance and to address the

new challenges facing our customers, the thematic priorities change each year. The 2015-16 programme focused on sustaining
tenancies and employment and learning.

The fund supported a range of projects that demonstrated local consultation, and had a posntlve impact on nelghbourhoods
and the Group's customers. .

Successful bids in 2015 included an affordable warmth project at Spring Bank in Hull, an English Communications project
with Salford Foyer and the Whinfield Job Club — a partnership between Places for People, DWP and Asda. Aspire, an award
winning youth project offering education, training and pastoral activities to young people in Clayton Brook, also received
funding along with digital inclusion projects Mega Bytes and Chips in Leaholme, Chichester and Bognor.

In 2015 - 16 the Touchstone Fund:
e  Projects secured the help of 22 volunteers

e  Projects engaged with 395 customers.

Our corporate social responsibility work is undertaken across all Group companies and is supported by Places for Peop|e
Neighbourhoods — a charitable organisation established to support long-term sustainability and social value in the Group’s
neighbourhoods. . .

We want everyone to realise their potential and benefit from the economic, social and environmental vitality of our
neighbourhoods. Our neighbourhoods are designed with the sustainability of the community in mind. For example, our
new developments in Truro and Waddesdon have been designed around central allotment spaces with the aim of promoting
social interaction.

We are committed to procuring our services locally and we champion the use of small busmesses in our supply chains,
with more than 660 SMEs supplying goods and services to the Group nationally. In addition this year, we have also
helped to start or grow 63 businesses as a key element of our Economic Development Strategy, providing a boost to the
local economy.

Each year the Group is involved in actlvmes which help to make our neighbourhoods great places to live. Here are
some of the 2015-16 highlights:

* We continued to celebrate the dedication and positive contribution that our customers have made to their
communities and the lives of their neighbours. This year 36 of our customers received awards for their good work
at our annual Good Neighbour Awards. 16 year old.Josh Lee, a resident of our Lowestoft estate, received a Good
Neighbour award aftér he helped his local community during the 2015 summer floods. Josh worked through the
night, helping neighbours move their belongings upstairs. |

« The 2015-16 Major Works Social Value' Project saw the renovation of one of our complex needs schemes for
young people in Bristol. Over five days a team of 40 volunteers from Places for People and our partners, Novus -
and Keepmoat, transformed the scheme providing training kitchens, well-being rooms and a beautiful outdoor
space. One of our customers also received valuable work experience through their involvement in the project.

» In partnership with the London Borough of Hounslow and Hounslow Strategic Partnership, we participated in a.
comprehensive ethnographic research project on the Meadows Estate. This looked at connectivity across the community
and its impact on wellbeing and access to mainstream services. A project involving local stakeholders and residents has
been established to build the resilience of individual and commumty networks, particularly amongst our most vulnerable
‘customers. This work will be evaluated during 2016-17.

« Places for People Leisure continued to offer under 8's free swimming when accompamed by a paying adult. The scheme
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has been successful increasing overall participation by families with children and now we have more than 12,500 children
.on the under-8’s free swimming programme.

+ Places for People signed an agreement with children’s activity provnder Fit for Sport to boost physical activity and
completion amongst young children. The programme operates within schools by training staff to maximise playground
activity time. Key to its success was wider support within the community through engagement with local families and
parents to encourage greater awareness of the need to be more active. 5,477 children in Sandwell primary schools
took part in the successful pilot and we are looking to roll the programme out within the next 12 months.

« The former council workshops in Armadale, West Lothian, were refurbished to become the new community base for

the Armadale Shed. The local community was consulted on the equipment they wanted to have for their craftwork. The

aim is for this to become a self-run community asset, providing a place for local people to socialise and develop new
skills and hobbies.

Places for People Homes held a community event in Springbank in Hull to complement the significant investment made

in the wider area. The Get Out and Give day saw 18 members of staff come together with Albany Street Residents’.

Association to plant spring blooms. With funding from our partner, Willmott Dixon, we hired skips and encouraged

residents to spring clean their properties and clear out unwanted items. The day was a huge success and the residents

continue to volunteer their time to maintain the neighbourhood.

LEADING THE WAY ON APPRENTICESHIPS [CASE STUDY]

Places for People Leisure is one of the leading apprenticeship providers in its sector.

Working with its partner, Lifetime Training, Places for People Leisure develops training that establishes clear pathways to
promote staff progression and development. Apprenticeship opportunities are available for current employees as well'as
new recruits. The partnershlp won Active Leisure’s Apprenticeship Provider of the Year Award 2013.

At any one time Places for People Leisure has around 400 staff undertaking apprentlceshlps Last year, 76% of
apprenticeships were completed above the industry average.

Kelly Norton undertook a Lifetime Training Leadership and Management Apprenticeship to enhance her planning and
budgeting capabilities which form a significant part of her role. When Kelly found out her course involved maths, she took
extra tuition to ensure she was up to scratch in time for her exams. Kelly’s manager has been extremely impressed with
her enthusiasm throughout the Apprenticeship: “Kelly is willing to learn new things and is aiways thinking of new ideas to
boost revenue and encourage new members.”

Kelly commented: “Having started out as a Lifeguard and then progressing to Contract Marketing Manager in East
Hampshire, completing my NVQ Level 3 and winning the Learner Award has helped me progress within Places for People’
Leisure.”

Places for People is committed to creating an environment where our people and customers can achieve their full potential.
We have created a working environment which supports our vision and values. We embrace dlver5|ty because we believe
that what makes us different makes us stronger. Here are some of the 2015-16 highlights:

Key highlights
+ We supported 570 people into empioyment and 1,695 people into training.

1
« Working with schools, colleges and other learning providers, we have provided work experience, apprenticeship
programmes and promoted the industries in which we operate. For example, our construction business Allenbuild’s
‘Construction Ambassadors’ visited local schools to talk to pupils about careers in the design and construction
industry.

+ We continued to invest in our people too. This included professional and technical training approved by
organisations such as RICS, the National Federation of Property Professionals, and the Chartered Institute of
Credit Management. 57 Neighbourhood Officers completed the Chartered Institute of Housing Level 3 Certification
in Housing, 80 managers completed an accredited management development course, and 379 managers attended
our Taking the Lead programme.

» In 2015 we launched our work experience programme offering paid 'Iearning opportunities to unemployed 18-'24
year-olds. We had a good response to the programme with more than 150 applicants for 23 roles.

+ As the Government continues its programme of welfare reforms, we have increased our focus on sustaining the
tenancies of young people and their families. Our programmes offer a range of personal and skills development
opportunities to help people maximise their potential as responsible, economically active citizens. In 2015-16,
we carried out a research project looking at the housing barriers faced by young people and their aspirations.
The results will inform a,review of our Young People Strategy. Similarly, our Big Lottery funded, MoneyWise,
Homesafe and PennyWise projects helped empower customers to improve their financial capability. Through the
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provision of personalised support, customers have become better placed to cope with the impact of welfare
reforms, such as the increasing cost of living, challenges relating to personal banking and managing household
budgets more effectively. Castle Rock Edinvar increased household income by £1.2 million by providing welfare
benefit advice.

N

.

The Friday Night Project at Dock Street is an initiative supporting homeless young people in South Shields. Places
for People Living+ secured £2,500 of funding to provide a range of activities in a safe and welcoming environment
to divert customers from engaging in anti-social behaviour. Activities included arts and crafts, movie nights, drug
and alcohol education sessions and internet access for customers who would otherwise be socially and digitally
excluded. Following the success of this project in 2015-16, further funding has been secured to continue the
project in 2016-17. .

+ Through the construction of affordable homes in 2016- 16, we have supported 21 young apprentlceshlps and
helped three people progress into employment. -

Places for People Leisure received funding of £70,000 from Sport England to undertake joint research to measure
.the relevance of customer experience in transitioning from being inactive to active. Places for People will invest
£30,000 in this project.

- Colleagues from Places for People Homes in South Yorkshi?re teamed up with Places for People Leisure to deliver
health and wellbeing support for customers. . Homes' customers in Sheffield are now able to get a free seven-day
membership pass to their local Places for People Leisure centre.

+ Our annual Star-Awards are focussed around our SPIRIT values, vand are awarded to staff for their dedication to
their job and leading by example. Over 500 individuals and teams were nominated for an award by their peers
in 2015-16.

VALUABLE SKILLS FOR VULNERABLE PEOPLE [CASE STUDY] ,
Helping Hands is a collaborative project with homelessness charity Fresh Start. The charity aims to improve the lives.of
vulnerable and isolated people in the Craigmillar and Southside areas of Edinburgh. Castle Rock Edinvar received a

£73,117 grant from the Scottish Government’s People and Communities Fund to ﬂnance the employment costs for two
volunteer co-ordinators and accommodation overheads for one year.

The project-provided opportunities for local people to.increase their confidence, socialise and learn new skifls through
volunteering, gardening and cookery classes. Volunteers from Fresh Start also provided a decorating service to help new
tenants personalise their homes.

-In 2015, we welcomed the Scottish First Minister, Nicola Sturgeon, to the Thistle comrﬁunity, where she got involved in
planting in the vegetable garden, where people can gain gardening skills and access to fresh food. She also spent time
chatting with customers, staff and volunteers. .

Following the success of this project further funds have been secured to continue the project in 2016-17.

We are committed to building strong communities with a sense of togetherness and to tackling inequality to create a
fair and sustainable society. In our experience, mixed-income, mixed-tenure neighbourhoods provide sustainable places.
in the long term.

We address issues locally by engaging residents and building relationships with loca! partners. For example:

e  We supported a range of national and Ioéal charities by responding to direct approéches from charities and
contributing to employees’ fundraising activities.

e We made direct donations to organisations such as The Christie (a cancer care, research and education charity in
Manchester), West Coast Crash Wheelchair Rugby and the Douglas Bader Foundation (a charity which helps
advance and promote the physical, mental and spiritual welfare of people who are affected by limb loss or other

. physical disability). We also provided match funding to support staff members who raised money for charities
including Macmillan Cancer Support, NW. Air Ambulance, The Alzheimer’s Society and Sport Relief.

e Our housebuilder, Zero, continued its charitable activity in the south west of England through sponsorship of the
Chichester Festival Theatre and the inaugural Maritime Literary Festival in Weymouth.

e Allenbuild undertook a range of activities to support charities in the south east of England mcludlng Wokmg and
Sam Beare Hospice, Wandgas Football, DEBRA and the Chnldren s Trust.
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¢ InGranton, Edinburgh, we worked with the local authority to Vset up a local development forum to explore common
aims and define community benefits across the development community.

In 2015-16, Group companies were involved in a range .of activities to supbort théir communities:

«  In February 2016, 13 Cotman and Property Maintenance staff braved freezing temperatures to sleep out all night
- in a cardboard shelter as part of YMCA Norfolk’s ‘Sleep Easy’ challenge raising £2,215.

«  Staff from a local café, Granby Kitchen, provide a community kitchen once a month at Mellor's Lodge, one of our
schemes.for homeless families in Nottingham. The staff cook a three- course meal using donated stock from local
supermarkets and retailers and these are sold for a small charge. Customers can pay for an extra meal and a
wooden spoon is displayed at the counter for someone who does not have any money on that day to exchange

- for their meal. They are then encouraged to buy a wooden spoon on-another occasion to help someone else.

o January’s Blue Monday event got 2016 off to a positive start for hundreds of Bristol residents in the Galleries
Shopping Centre. Working with Bristol City Council, Citizens Advice Bureau and more than 40 partners, we
created a one-stop-shop offering support on money, housing, benefits, physical and mental health, refugee
rights, employment and training. By giving visitors the chance to chat with experts and engage in a range
of activities, from acupuncture to cookery, the event encouraged people to make positive changes in their
lives at what is a difficult time of year for many low-income households.

o In Leicester,_fhe ‘Can anyone hear us?’ project helps to provide confidence skills to young people. The
young people staged a performance at the end of the ten week programme. The show was filmed and a
prize was awarded to the young person who had shown the most improvement and enthusiasm during the
project.. .

Environment

INNOVATIVE INSULATION TRANSFORMS HOMES (CASE STUDY) :

The Ryton Croft estate lies five miles west of Tyneside. in the small semi-rural town of Ryton. The estate was built in
the late 1970s using a common non-traditional form of construction known as ‘no fines’ concrete. The homes had no
cavity walling and poor heat retention, making them energy inefficient. )

As part of our affordable warmth programme, Ryton Croft was selected to incorporate a series of thermal efficiency

" improvements, alongside the installation of new bathrooms and kitchens through a £3.75 million investment
programme. The preferred solution was to apply internal wall insulation using the -innovative Matilda’s Blanket
integrated wall-panelling solution. This was installed as an internal skin inside each home, drastlcally improving levels
of insulation and raising each home’s energy SAP rating by over a third.

The use of Matilda’s Blanket has had the added benefit of providing new smooth, hard-wearing wall finishes, without
the requirement for wet trades.

After extensive customer consultation and the showcasing of completed pilot properties, this year-long programme is
_on target for completion in August 2016, with some 154 homes benefiting from these improvements.

Customers are already experiencing significant savings in their fuel bills. We are also working with the National Energy

Action (NEA) fuel poverty charity to capture in-use energy consumption at Ryton Croft to carry out a comprehensive

evaluation of the initiative. .

We are committed to reducing the impact of our business operations on the environment. We work in cooperation
with our customers, communities and other businesses to drive forward the green agenda and financial efficiencies.
Over the past year,"we have engaged in a variety of projects aimed at finding innovative solutions to reducing our
impact-on the environment and improving the quality of life of our customers, including the following examples.

e  We expanded the implementation of our environmental management system, 1S014001, to include Touchstone and
Allenbuild. We have also successfully implemented the energy management system, ISO50001. This makes us fully
compliant with the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) and the mandatory energy assessment established by
the Government based on the EU Energy Efficiency Directive. Additionally, the ongoing accreditation proves our
commitment to monitoring, measuring and reducing the energy use in our corporate offices, as well as our business
travel.
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*  We have also become a partner in a project funded by the European Commission having been awarded nearly €1
million for investment in properties in need of renovation. The project aims to |mprove energy efficiency at a
nelghbourhood level.

. A research project, funded by Innovate UK, focusing on the circular economy was completed. We investigated the
ways personal protective equipment can be recycled and reused instead of being sent to landfill.

e We are working towards achieving high energy efficiency ratings for all our properties by investing in property'
improvements, such as replacing windows, doors and boilers, as well as installing internal and external wall
insulation to reduce energy costs to our customers. During the year we invested a total of £15.9 million in energy
efficiency improvements to our homes. .

e Thanks to our Green Services procurement framework, the installation of 170 solar photovoitaic (PV) panels on our

- Cotman properties is helping the environment and reducing customers’ energy bills. In addition, 650 Castle Rock

Edinvar properties in Scotland benefited from lower fuel costs through new technology from Sunamp — heat batteries

that store heat energy from Solar PV panels and release it when needed. This project has.been backed by a £3.2
million grant from the Local Energy Challenge Fund.

+ In Hull, we have built new homes to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 standard, providing grey-water recycling,
whole-house ventilation and high levels of insulation to reduce fuel and water usage and costs. .

»  We continue to implement energy efficiency measures in our retirement property portfollo owned or managed through
Retirement, Living+ and Girlings. These measures include Combined Heat and Power (CHP), energy monitoring, boiler
plants and upgrades, water recycling, vegetable patches and greenhouses. .

« In Edinburgh, we continue to work towards reducing fuel poverty, looking at the most effective solution for customers
) in our new homes. We have designed and implemented a district heating CHP plant in one of our developments,
providing both a sustainable and affordable heat solution for our customers.

«  ZeroC continues to promote its sustainability ethos, through its own design process and by promoting susteinable
technologies wherever viable. For example, the Bickleigh Eco Village is a 93-unit scheme designed according to the
Code for Sustainable Homes and Code 6 energy standards.

s Within our 116 leisure fa'cilities, we have a large base heat load with a matching electricity demand operating up to 17
hours a day with CHP. This has significantly reduced our carbon emissions and delivered financial savings.

e  We have undertaken considerable work on improving our .corporate fleet. Having reduced the number of company
cars, we have decreased the amount of our CO2 emissions. Additionally, we have replaced the racking within our vans
with a material that is 30%-40% reusable. The emissions from the majority of our cars-are capped at 120 g/
km. We also have two electric-cars and aim to add more of them to our corporate fleet in the near future.

'

The strategic report was approved by Chris Phillips, Group Chairman, on 19 July 2016 . 1
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Diredprs’ report

Principal activities of the Group )

Places for People Group (the Group) is one of the largest property management and development groups in the UK. We
build, rent, sell and manage homes, manage leisure facilities, provide employment and training opportunities, support new
and existing businesses, and offer financial products and specialist care and support services to over 500,000 customers.

Performance for the year

The Group turnover for the year was £616.6m an increase of 9.3% from the previous year. The Group profit before tax for
the year was £43.7m which is an increase of 43.7% from the profit reported in 2015 under old UK GAAP. A full review of
the performance of the year can be found in the Financial Review section on pages 17 to 18.

Business review
Information that fulfils the-business review requirements applicable to the Group can be found in this report, the Chairman
and Chief Executive statements and the Strategic Report.

Measuring Success

Group top 10 performance targets

Critical Indicator Target 2015-16
Performance

Total losses | 1.13% 1.04%
from empty
homes’

_Total arrears -4.7% 3.0%
Repairs right | 89% 88%
first time
Gas servicing | 100% 100%
(properties) . i
Operational 89% 91%
overalf :
customer
satisfaction
Places for | 22% 31%

People Leisure
customer net

promoter score
New properties | 115 87
occupied (let or
sold)
New properties | <100 4
unoccupied
{not_let_or_not
sold) s
Percentage of | 100% ’ 100%
rent collected '
(Places for
People Market . :
Rent) ,
Number of | 36 38
RIDDOR- ’
reportable
incidents
(rolling 12
months)
Health and safety’

As always, the health, safety and welfare of our staff, contractors and customers continues to be a priority commitment
throughout the Places for People Group. Health and safety is on the agenda from the very top of our Executive structure
all the way to the front line service providers. We expect, and empower, our people to maintain the h|ghest standards of
safety wherever they work in our diverse organisation.

This year we have created abnew role of Group Health and Safety Director, reporting directly to the Grbup Chief

Executive. We recognised that this strategic leadership was needed for us to reach the next level in building a .
Health and safety (continued) . .
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positive safety culture and reducing our accident levels even further. Since taking  up the role in August 2015, the
Health and Safety Director has implemented wholesale changes in the way safety is managed by further embedding

. the ownership within each Company rather than centrally within the Group. There has also been a tightening up of the
governance framework to ensure that information is effectively communicated both within and across all the Group
companies. A Health and Safety Assurance Process has been introduced to report to Group board on levels of
compliance with safety legislation at the end of each financial year.

At the end of 2015-16 we had achieved an accident rate under the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) ‘all-industry’
benchmark, which is a testament to the hard work of all staff in their drive to improve safety outcomes across the
Group.  To encourage this downward trajectory further, we have introduced rigorous Group-wide KPIs around
reductions in accidents and increased near miss reporting,.in conjunction with a comprehensive behavioural safety
programme. Since its piloted introduction in areas of the Group with a higher risk profile, this programme has
contributed to a 70% reduction in HSE reportable accidents over two years. We will build on this success by rolling
out the programme across a number of other areas of the Group during 2016-17.

We have maintained a full health and safety training programme this year, with our target.number of staff having been
appropriately trained by the end of 2015-16. Specialist training continues to be carried out to an excellent standard in areas
such as Places for People Leisure and our construction and development businesses. This training has included toolbox
talks and safety seminars to staff at the frontline, IOSH Managing Safely to supervisors and Director-level health and safety
training to the Executive board. This training continues to reinforce the message that safety is the responsibility of everyone,
whatever they are or whatever role they perform in the organisation. This empowerment of staff will be a key feature of
the look and feel of safety management in the organisation in the coming year and beyond.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group faces a number of significant risks across all its operations including housing management, development, property
management and leisuré management. All the Group’s risks are monitored closely and managed to an acceptable level
through a robust control environment and a high degree of scrutiny and challenge, as outlined below. These risks include
the following key elements:

Interest rate risk

The Group's strategy is to contain interest rate risk within 30% of the loan book, with the board exercising a strict control
over derivative transactions. Currently 84.4% of debt is either held at fixed rates of interest or hedged against adverse rate
movements,

The Group manages its exposure to this risk through a. mix of debt at fixed-rates of interest and interest rate hedging
techniques. It is estimated that each quarter percent increase in interest rates would increase interest payable costs
by £0.7m per annum. Due to the low levels of cash and cash deposits held, the impact of a change in the interest rate
on interest receivable is insignificant.

Liquidity risk :
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its- financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Group‘s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. The Group’s policy is to retain minimal cash whilst ensuring that
sufficient committed loan facilities are available and immediately accessible to finance a minimum of one year’s cash
flow. .

The Group is in compliance with all of its financial covenants contained within its loan documents and loan stocks trust
deeds.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has no overseas subsidiaries and trades only in sterling. The Group has some debt which is denominated in
foreign currency.

The Group’s strategy is to mitigate currency risk arising from foreign currency denominated debt. This is achieved
using cross currency interest rate swaps. Currency cash flow exposure is fully hedged; therefore a change in the foreign
currency rate would be fully offset by the swaps.

Government and legislative
Last year the Government introduced a new rent settlement for social housing in England which delivers a
cumulative 1% rent cut over four years.

To inform our strategy and business plan each year the Group develops a comprehensive analysis of the operating
environment which provides facts, figures and commentary on government and legislative developments and key changes
in the markets in which we are active. Following the rent reduction announcement, the Group has now taken steps to defiver

29



0€

S'.IO:IDBJ!p‘ Jo pieog

3)ISqam Ino UO paysiignd si Juawaless s,dnoso ayl

. ‘ureyd Aiddns syt u ‘uonisod ay3 jo3U0D URD dnoJS 3yl Se Jey Se Jou SsauIsng umo sy Jo ped Aue )
3oe|d Buniey Jou are sadnoeld ssoyy Jeyl bulnsua 0} PaRILIWOD SI ) pue saondeld AJAe(s' ulapow o) pasoddo Aj@39|dwod”
SI dnoJ) 3yl "SI0Z PV AldAR|S WISpO auy3 Jo sasodind auy 10_4 USWa)e)S [enuue e ysignd 03 paJinbal st dnouo ayL

nv Asaaels uiapopy

-uawAojdwa 13y buunp pajgesip awodaq oym sasAojdwa 03 ‘pasinbai se buiuien bupinoid pue 'Bu;A0|du.sa 3NURUOD 0}
spoys ajeudoldde saxew dnolo ayy ‘82J0PUOM 3SIBAIP . JO SHyauaq sy Buisiubooday ‘sanige pue sspnjide sendiued
413y 03 pJeba. buiaey suosiad pajqesip Aq apew suoiediidde JuswAojdwa 0} UCREJISPISUOD ey PUe |iny SaAIB dnou ayL

: ‘pJepuels SHILL.
om] Ajljigesiq ino Aq pauoddns Si yaiym ‘3210D140M ISISAIp B une;sns pue dojaAap 03 pJey Yom pue AJSIaAIp 10j 3sed
SS3aUIsNg ay) pueisiapun ap "BuisSNoH Jo aymisul pasaley) ay) pue yiompsN Ajssaaiq buisnoHq auy ‘pieog AloSIApy
Aussang pue Ajenbg s,Aouaby saiiunwiwo) pue SalwoH ay) buipnjoul J0303s 3y} UIYm Spaeoq AJOSIApe A3 UO SBAIDS
pue Adjjod jeuoneu buidojeasp ul 810l J1633ens e Aejd pue soideud 1s3q dojaasp 03 sdais aanisod usxe) sey dnolo ayt

*$9AD3[(qO Jno BA3IYdR 0) Bulpuelsiapun pue S|INS 3y Sey Jeyy pue suonendod [e30]

SPaal Ajjessuab yowym ao10p0M asIaAIp e Buiney AQ spaau aéaul 199w 0} Aypiqisuodsal Jno deiquis ApRAsod am

: *3seq Jawolsnd

aSJaAIp ano 0} apinoid am jeyy sa:)vuas Jo abuel ayy ul payayad S SIYL ‘Spasu |enp|/\|pun pUe S3aRIUNWWOD ||B 0} 3AIsuodsal
S| UDIUM 3DIAISS 33J)-JaLleq pue AISNPUl ue apiaold 0) swie dnols syl AJJUSP! BSJIAIP PUB SARDUNRSIP UMO JIdY3 0]
bu 3y aAey 3jdoad (e jewy asiubooal saibajelis pue sepiod JnE “Ajjenbs 03 paRIWWOoD S| pue AjissaAlp sanjea dnoio syl

"Buiuiea)-a yym buoje ssunpoddo
Buluiea] 30e)-0}-308) JO PUS|q B PuR SS3UISNG BU) JO SS3IONS 3UNINY 3Y) BINSUS pue SIS 4By aaosdwy siabeuew diay
03 $954N0J Juawabeuew paypalode Jo Sbues B SAJOAUI SIY . “JuSWdoSAIp 99A0|dWwS Ul AjjeRueIsgns 1SaAUl 03 SNURUOD 3M

*3U)JUo S10300pP
0} .ssa%0e pue auydipy poddns |eRuapyuod e sapnpul Yium ‘swwesboud a:)uewsse aakojdwa ue Bupnpul sjy2uaq 4O
abue. e pue s|00) SUIjUO ‘BYS Jouenu ﬁugaq”aM odsaq e Buipnput ‘aoe(d ul AﬁamJ;s Buiaqglam aaA0|dw§| ue aney osje oM

i . "Spseme uonubodal yels
jenuue pue WINJOJ BUNUO SANNIDXT 3L} JSY- UB ‘SABAINS Juawaﬁeﬁua ‘sdnoub sndoy ‘suns)ng smau jenbip Buipnioul ‘sAem Jo
AJSueA B Ul S39A0|0WS 1IN0 SAJOAUL pue NSUod uuo;u; M 'SS300NS PaNUIRUOD INO 0} [BUISS3 S| s3sAo|dwa Jno buibebu]

0 ' (%91 HT0Z) %6T°CT Sem 1aAouin) Yeis padiojuaun (%88 1:5T0Z) %81°C sem
3eis pajgesip Jo abaua:uad 3yl (%€6'95 :ST0T) %TS TS Sem Jeys sjewsy Jo abeyuadsad ayL '(606'v:5107) SeaAoldwa
uajeainba awy iy S/p°S 40 (e300 B Woy (%b6°L :ST107) %E'8 SEM pun0J6>peq JWg B wol) yes jo abejusdsad ayl

saaAo|dLu;|

*3gejieAe sbULaYO [e1IBWWO0D 3L} uapemq jeyy saiuedwod 1uawd0|a/\ap puUe UoIPNIISUOD Uog Jo uonisinboe
31 YUM Jeak SIy) padueyua Usaq aaey suondo juswdoeAsp pue Aliqixsy dnolo ‘sisuped UORINASUOD Jsieads
UJIM S2UNJUaA JUI0( patojie) Jo uonew.oy ay) ybnouyy paseys Buiag si %su juswdojaAsp ‘aiowusyung ‘s9|qelswi no
-pling pue xiw npold ul AJjigixay 104 Mojje jey) JuswdojaAsp Jofew yoes 10y S3InyPNIs Juawasbeuew afoxd Buons
ybnoayy passalppe si spafoid yjuswdojasp Jofew s31 0 aduewiouad pue Jno-pjing ayy abeuew o0y Aiige s,dnous ayy

“J98YS 3DUejeg S)) U $S31604d Ul }IOM pUe ¥30)s pue| 40 JUNOLWe 3]qeJaPISUO e spjoy dnos9 ay)
. : YS1 puel pue Juawdoransg

*AIRSSSI3U SB HIoMmawWe.ly uoRebniw ysu uno

snfpe |Im am pue JINSal WNpUSLaLRI 3L 0} UO!DESJ' 19)34ew pue |eanijod sy} Jo3iuowW ARRSOP 03 SNURUOD |IIM dnouS) 3y L

' ‘s}9yJew ayy uo spedwl
U2Iym AJuienadun JIWouod? pue |e:>|1||od pajeasd sey uoIsiBp SIUL ‘N3 Y3 SAB3| 03 PAJOA 21gnd N Ay ‘9T0Z 3unc £2 U0
wnpuasaey N3

910z PV Buluued pue BuisnoH ay) Jo Yedw ay) se yons sabueyd [eoijod
19430, Aj950J2 Jojuow 0} SanNuRUod dnous) 3y “spJepuels adiA1es pue suiblew juyoud Buluejulews 1s|iym pannbal sbuiaes sy}

doad g : ' ] 9102 qa:ew 1€ Bulpud JeaA ay3 4104

.&kJ SaDDId ' , o , Hodal 3duBUIDADY)

{/] ,  pajwy] dnous ajdoad 403 sade|d




Places for People Group Limited %

Governance report ' places I A

For the year ending 31 March 2016 . peop

The board currently comprises.the Group Chairman, seven non-executive directors and six executive directors. Details
of the board members can be found listed on pages 68-73 and are also available to view on the Group’s website at

www. placesforpeople.co.uk. They have diverse backgrounds in industry and public life, and share a strong commitment
to applying their expertise, skills and experience to ensure that Places for People’s business is sound. All the non-
executive directors are independent of management and have access to the Company Secretary for advice.

" Non-executive directors are subject to re-election at intervals of no more than four years and may serve for a maximum of
no more than ten years (except that years previously served are disregarded where a non-executive director is elected to
chair the board). The letters of appointment of all directors are available for inspection at the registered office during normal
business hours.

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, .the directors comply with: a duty. to’ exercise reasonable care, skill. and
diligence; a duty to promote the success of the Company; a duty to act within their powers; a duty to exercise independent
Judgement a duty to avoid conflicts of interest; a duty not to accept benefi ts from third parties and a duty to declare any
interest in a proposed transaction or arrangement. .

The board meets at least five times a year to direct overall strategy and take key financial and business decisions.

Given the complex nature of the Group’s busingss, members of the Board also meet in standing committees or working
parties to exarine specific areas of operation. The standing committees are: the Nominations & Governance Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit & Risk Committee. Details of committee membership and attendance at board
and committee meetings during the year are reported on page76. Decisions to approve proposed financial and .corporate
transactions can also be delegated to the boards of Places for People Treasury plc and Places for People Ventures lelted
as reported below.

Non-executive directors

The board has adopted guidelines for the appointment of non-executive directors which have been in place throughout the
year. Those guidelines include a requirement for there to be a formal role profile in relation to each non-executive board
appointment. During a previous recruitment process, the board had identified appointable candidates on the basis of their
broad commercial experience and commitment to the Group’s range of services. Baroness Brenda Dean was one such
candidate and she was appointed to the Group’s Regulated board in 2013. Having been identified as a candidate with
valuable external experience and how with good experience of the Group, Brenda was asked to step up to the Group board
.in place of Ehsan Mani, who retired from the board on 30 September 2015. Brenda was appointed to the board on 1 October
2015.

The performance of each non-executive director during the year is formally appraised. The process involves self- assessment
as to contribution and a meeting with the Group Chairman at which the director's contribution, attendance, training needs
and possible areas for additional involvement are reviewed. The Senior Independent Director (Lynette Lackey) conducts the
appraisal meeting for the Group Chairman and is assisted in that exercise by a meeting held with the other non- executive
directors (in the absence of the Group Chairman) to review the Group Chairman’s performance.

Each non-executive director is required to declare interests held in organisations outside the Group. The

independence of each non-executive director is assessed annually as part of the governance review.

Each non-executive director who held office duﬁng the year was independent.
Delegation of responsibilities by the board of directors

" Ultimate authority for all aspects of the Group's activities rests with the board, the respective responsibilities of the Group
Chairman and Group Chief Executive arising as a consequence of delegation by the board. The board has determined a
clear division of responsibilities between the Group Chairman and the Group Chief Executive. The board is responsible for
setting strategies and policies for the whole Group and co-ordinating the Group’s activities. The board achieves that through
a combination of intra-Group agreements, schedules of delegated authority, appointment of board members to subsidiary
boards and the application of Group-wide policy standards on key issues.

Non-executive board members

Chris Phillips --Group Chairman

Chris was Managing Director of PB Securities, the UK subsidiary of Prudential Bache, for three years,, before joining
Lombard Odier as the Managing Director of its London broking business. He then joined Colliers International and after
-heading its residential consuitancy business, became the first Managing Director of Colliers Capital (UK).

. Chris has chaired a number of companies listed in the UK and Germany, and is currently-non-executive Chairman of Hadleigh
Waymoth, an independent advisory and fund» management business, and London & Newcastle, a leading London-based
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mixed-use property development company.

Chris Jomed the Places for People Group board in 2006 and was a senior independent director from 2008. He became
Chairman in 2010.

Bharat Shah

Bharat is Chairman of the boards of Nijjar Holdings Limited, Smart-Sal, Alderbrooke Executive Search and West Bromwich
Building Society Staff Retirement Scheme. He has been a business consultant and senior executive mentor since 2002.
He was previously Chairman of the Sure Group (long-term property maintenance), and of the Picdar Group

(digital asset management), both private equity backed businesses, Deputy Chairman of the Audit Commission, a Non-
Executive Director of the West Bromwich Building Society and a Trustee of the Paul Strickland Scanner - Centre.

Bharat trained aé a Certified Accountant, worked fof Eastman Kodak for 27 years, rising from ‘shop floor’ to the most seniof
executive position outside the United States as Chief Executive Officer of Eamer Kodak Consumer Imaging and Vice
President, Eastman Kodak, and subsequently became Vice President of Singer, responsible for Europe, Africa, the Middle
East and Asia.

Bharat joined the Places for People Group board in 2010.
Lynette Lackey

A Chartered Accountant with over 20 years’ experience in real estate finance, corporate reporting and financial
management. Lynette is also a Director of the London Chamber of Commerce and Industry, a Trustee of
Landaid and past UK Chair of National Women in Property Association. She also spent ten years as a Partner
with BDO Stoy Hayward, where she specialised in international real estate transactions.

Lynette joined the Places for People Group board in 2011.
Jon Lloyd - . §

Jon is a Fellow of the Royal Institution of Chartered ‘Surveyors and has over 36 years’ experience in property
development, investment and asset management. His career has included roles as Chief Executive of UK Coal, Head of
group property for HBOS, Managing Director of the Northern Region of DTZ international property advisers and
Managing Director of Yorkshire Water Estates.

Currently, he is a non-executive director of the Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh NHS Foundation Trust; Chairman of
Reform Energy,.an alternative energy ‘development and generation company, has his own property and energy
consulting business, Winksley Consulting, and until recently, was a non-executive director of Tilfen Land, a property
investment and development company based in London. Outside his business interests, Jon supports the charities The
Prince’s Trust and Help For Heroes. . -

Jon joined the Places for People Group board in 2012,

Dr Cathy Garner

With over 25 years' experience, Cathy is an expert in innovation, specialising in innovation in cities and
communities, with a research and policy background in social housing, urban regeneration and the links
between universities and business. She is currently Director of the Work Foundation, an Independent Member
to the London-Cambridge- Stanstead Corridor Commission, a member of the Standing Selection Committee for
the National Centres of Excellence of Canada, a Trustee of the Council on Health Research and Development,
a Fellow of the Royal Statistical Society and of the Royal Society of Arts.

She was previously Director of Housing Management and Research at the Housing Corporation-and Head of
Innovation at Scottish Homes; she served on the Strategic Advisory Board for Intellectual Property and was a

member of the Cabinet Office Innovators’ Council. In 2002, she founded an international charity addressang
the health needs of the global poor for which she still wntes and volunteers.

Cathy joined the Places for People Group board in 2011.
Nigel Hopkins
Nigel is Director of Resources for the Confederation of British Industries, Springboard Limited and a trustee of Instructus,

the UK's largest provider, registration and certification authority for apprenticeships, having previously had a wide ranging
international career, living and working in the UK, Europe and the USA.

32



Places for People Group Limited |

Governance report . . " ploces "7 =

For the year ending 31 March 2016 peop

He is'a qualified accountant and has held senior management positions with Fiat, Laporte (Chemical), Burmah Castrol,
United Technologies, Coopers & Lybrand, Ernst & Young and, most recently, Remploy, where he was Finance and Strategy
Director at a time when the company was being transformed from one that was éxclusively an employer

of disabled people in a diverse range of industries, to one that placed 15,000 disabled and disadvantaged people into
work each year.

Nigel joined the Places for People Group board in October 2013,

Joe Seet -

Joe Seet is a Chartered Accountant with over 30 years’ experience in specialist accounting, regulatory compliance, tax
planning, investment funds, banking, financial services and corporate governance. His career spans treasury, wholesale
and investment banking in senior finance roles with Chemical Bank, the National Bank of Kuwait, ScotiaMcLeod and
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette. He was a Partner in the investment firms, Beaumont Capital and Sunningdale Capital and
Senior Partner of the Sigma Partnership, a well-regarded business advisory and compliance accounting firm. He is also a
non- executive director of the Royal Yachting Association and chairs its Audit & Risk Committee. .

Joe is also a professional investor, entrepreneur, financial advisor, expert advisor on corporate governance end regulatory
matters, an accredited mediator specialising in professional partnershlp disputes and a member of the Taxation Committee
of the London Society of Chartered Accountants.

Joe joined the Places for People Group Board in 2011 and chairs the Remuneration Committee.

Brenda Dean

Brenda is a member of the House of Lords and of the Privy Council. She is Chairman of Empiric Student Property plc and
is an independent member of the Business Oversight Board of the Law Society. Her other roles include President of the
Abbeyfield Society charity, a Trustee of University College Hospital Cancer charity and Vice President of the War Widows
Association. Her past appointments include that of Chairman of the Housing Corporation; Chairman of Covent Garden
Market Authority; Chairman of the Armed Forces Pay Review Body and President of the College of Occupational Therapists.
She was a member of the Royal Commission on the Future of the House of Lords and of the House of Lords Appointments
Commission.

She was a member of the National Committee of Inquiry into the Future of Higher Education — the Dearing Committee.
She is a member of the Council of the University of Nottingham, and has been a Council member of City University,
London, the Open University and the London Scholl of Economics. Brenda started her working life in the trade union
movement and was subsequently elected General. Secretary of the Society of Graphical and Allied Trades (SOGAT), the
printing, pubilshmg and paper trade union.

Brenda joined the Places for People Group board in 29.15.
Executive board members

David Cowans - Group Chief Executive -

David has over 30 years’ experience of housing, urban regeneration, mixed tenure and mixed use development,
property and financial management, having led strategic change in both large and small organisations. :
He has an MBA from Birmingham University and is a Fellow of the Institute of Directors, a Fellow of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors, a Chartered Member of the Institute of Housing, a Member of The Institute of Residential Property
Management, a Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts and is visiting Fellow of Cambridge University.

Simran Soin - Group Firrance Director

Simran is a Chartered Management Accountant with over 20 years’ experience of financial management. Before joining
"Places for People in 2003, he held various senior finance positions in the chemicals sector for Courtaulds, ICI and INEOS,
in the UK, the USA and the Far East. Simran has previously been both Group Financial Controller and Financial Resources
Director for the Places for People Group.

Kieran Keane - Group Director, Corporate Services

Kieran is a Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants and has over 30 years’ expenence
in finance, risk assurance and operations management. Kieran has held a number of roles within the
Group, including Chief Operating Officer, then Group Director, Operations and subsequently, Group
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Direcfor, Corporate Services. Previously, Kieran held senior positidns within the utilities sector with a risk
assurance brief covering Europe and the USA.

Mary Parsons - Group Director, Placemaking and Regeneration

Mary has over 20 years’ experience in the development, construction and regeneration industry, working across the
private, registered provider and consultancy sectors. She has-been involved in some of the largest housing- led’
regeneration programmes in the UK. Previously, she worked in the consultancy business, specialising in public/private
sector partnerships and housing market renewal, and also worked in the private sector on large-scale, mixed-tenure
developments. Mary is Trustee of the Town & Country Planning Association and joined Places for People in 2004,
becoming Group Business Development Director in 2010.

Pat Egan - Group Dlrector, Affordable Housing : :

Pat has over 30 years' experience in affordable and mixed-tenure housing management, managlng one of the largest
" registered providers in the UK. He has over 20 years’ experience at a senior level in a variety of roles focusing on business

transformation, including the transfer of Bristol Churchés Housing Association into the Group.

Colin Rae - Group Development Director

Colin has over 30 years' experience working in the Development and Construction industry, from Chartered Quantity
Surveying through to Development Management. Colin joined Places for People in 2002 and currently manages Places for
People Group Development and Construction teams in England and Scotland. With a particular interest in high quality
design, Colin has delivered a variety of mixed tenure projects within Places for People. He was appointed Development
Director in 2014. A member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, Colin holds directorships with both Homes for
Scotland and a number of property development related companies and was previously (Voluntary) Chair of Turning Point
Scotland. He currently sits on the Private Rented Sector Steering Group working with the PRS Champion in Scotland.

' Chris Martin - Group Company Secretary and Legal Services Director

Chris is a solicitor with over 25 years' experience of legal practice and joined Places for People in 2008. Previously, he
worked in private practice for 10 years, in a City law firm and as a partner in a US legal practice, and then in general
.counsel roles in UK and international businesses in a number of different industry sectors.

Corporate governance

Audit & Risk Committee

The executive directors are responsible for maintaining and reviewing the Group s systems of internal control. The Aud|t
& Risk Committee is responsible to the board. It oversees, reviews and monitors the Group’s application of accounting
policies and standards, the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors, the resources and work programme
of Business Assurance.(the internal auditors), the risk management framework and the adequacy of internal control.

The members of the Committee during the year were E Mani (Chair and member until 30 September 2015), L Lackey (Chair
from 1 October 2015), N Hopkins and J Lloyd (joined 1 October 2015).

The Committee receives and reviews reports from Busmess Assurance on a regular basis. The external auditors submlt
reports to the Committee when appropriate. The programme of reports reviewed in the year ensures that the Committee
covers all material areas of risk on a regular basis.

‘The Committee also reviews regular presentations from management on the operation of controls throughoutthe
business. It takes initiatives to satisfy itself that risk avoidance measures are fully embedded within the Group structure
and to determine the effectiveness of management actions. The initiatives for this year included:

- » The progress of new business acquisitions and any specific risks identified pre- and post-acquisition;
+ A review of the Business Assurance function and its role in the current and future structure of the Group;
+ Stress testing assumptions in the 2016-17 business plan and a review of accuracy/sensitivities in current and prior
years.

The Committee meets separately with representatives of Business Assurance and external auditors on at least one
occasion in each year without any members of executive management being present.

External audit
An external audit tender was conducted during the 201415 financial year and KPMG LLP was re-appomted as the

- Group's external auditor for a further three years.
During 2015~16, the audit partner presented KPMG's external audit strategy and fee proposal. The Commlttee conSIdered
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the Group’s materia'lity limits, and the significant risk and areas of audit focus and the audit strategy and fee proposal
were subsequently agreed. At the close of each financial year, the Committee receives a report on the external audit
process and reports to the Group Board its findings as to whether |t considers that the external audit process has been
effectlve

Non-audit work

The Group has instructed KPMG LLP to carry out some non- audlt work in the year where advantages of efficiency,
cost or expertise were identified. The Audit & Risk Committee monitors the nature and scale of such instructions
during the year and its approval is required for total non-audit fees in excess of a threshold agreed by the board. As
a result of these control mechanisms, the board is satisfied as to the independence of the external auditor.

~ Issues considered by the Audit & Risk Committee
Following a review and debate about the issues that have impacted the Group in the year ended 31 March 2016,
including debt re-financing, pensions and fi nancial instruments and derivatives, the Committee identified that the only
significant matter in relation to the integrity of financial reporting was in relation to the Group’s property valuations.

The Committee has reviewed the judgements made in respect of the Group’s properties and has considered the
sensitivities surrounding the assumptions used in assessing the net realisable value of its properties. The Committee
agreed with the judgements made by management and concluded that the valuations of the Group’s properties are
- appropriate. The Committee was satisfied that, where necessary, appropnate provision had been made for any
impairment in the carrying value of the Group’s properties. .

After reviewing the presentations and reports from management and consulting where necessary with the auditors,
the Committee is satisfied that the financial statements appropriately address the critical judgements and key estimates
(both in respect to the amounts reported and disclosures). The Committee is also satisfied that the significant
assumptions used for determining the value of assets and liabilities have been-appropriately scrutinised, challenged
and are sufficiently robust.

Misstatements ’
Management confirmed to the Committee that they were not aware of any material misstatements or immaterial
misstatements made intentionally to achieve a particular presentation. The auditors reported to the Committee the
misstatements that they had found in the course of their work and no material amounts remain unadjusted.

Remuneration Commlttee : .

‘The Remuneration Committee determines and agrees the reward policy for the remuneration of the executive and non-
executive directors and determines the total level of bonus for the executive team as a whole.

The members of the Committee during the year were J Seet (Chair), E Mani (until 30 September 2015), N Hopkins and B
Deéan (joined 1 October 2015).

There are no connections between the Group or any members of the board or the Committee and any remuneration
consultants appointed during the year.

Nominations & Governance Committee
The Nominations & Governance Committee reviews the Group’s governance arrangements and makes recommendatuons
to the board on ¢changes required.
The Committee also reviews the Group’s succession planning and makes recommendations to the board on the

" recruitment and selection of board members and, on behalf of the board, approves recommendations made for
appointments to the boards of Group subsidiaries.
The members of the Committee during the year were B Shah (Chair), C Garner, ] Lloyd (until 30 September 2015) and B
Dean (joined 1 October 2015)

Places for People Treasury pic

The Treasury board is responsible for advising the Group board in relation to managing the Group’s fi nancial assets,
managing its financial liabilities and managing its liquidity position and considers any other matters referred to it by the
Group board. The Treasury board may also be authorised by any entity within the Group to act on its behaif in
connection with any finance transaction or all such transactions generally.

The Group board has also authorised the Treasury board to act on its behalf in connection with any ﬁnance transaction.
concerning the assets of any of the Group's subsidiaries having a status of registered provider of social housing in
England and Wales or registered social landlord in Scotland, such transactions to include but not be limited to the
terms of new or extended borrowing facilities, the approval of the terms of any purchase/sale of financial derivatives and
the approval of the lssumg of |oan stock.

~ Places for People Ventures Limited
The Group board has delegated authority to the Ventures board in respect of corporate transactions
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within certain limits and subject to certain controls.

The Group board has also authorised the Ventures board to act on its behalf in connection with any
finance transaction concerning the assets of Places for People Ventures Limited or any of its
subsidiaries, such transactions to include but not be limited to the terms of new or extended borrowing
facilities, the approval of the terms of any purchase/sale of financial derivatives and the approval of
the issuing of loan stock. Any Ventures subsidiary may authorise the Ventures board to act on its
behalf to agree the terms of any such transaction. '

Regulated board

The Group board has charged the Regulated board with considering the operational performance and compliance
with applicable standards of the Group's regulated housing providers. Each provider retains its own board but the
Group- wide role of the Regulated board promotes sharing of good practlce and expertise across relevant parts of the
Group.

Attendance at board and committee meetings
Directors’ attendance at board and committee meetings, in relation to the number of meetings held, during the year
ended 31 March 2016, is set out in the following table.

Board member Group board Audit & Risk RemCom NomGov Venture Regulated ~ Treasury
Phillips 717 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 4/4 8/8
Mani 5/5 3/3 212 N/A 12 N/A " 44
Shah 6/7 N/A N/A 23 4/4 N/A 78
Lackey 717 5/5 T ON/A N/A N/A 4/4 8/8
Seet 717 N/A 4/4 " N/A 3/4 N/A 7/7
Garner 717 N/A N/A 3/3 N/A 4/4 N/A
Lloyd 717 22 N/A 22 N/A 44 N/A
Hopkins 717 4/5 4/4 N/A N/A 3/4 N/A
Dean 22 " NJA 1/2 11 11 22 N/A
Cowans 717 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 4/4 8/8
Soin 717 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 N/A 8/8
Shaw 5/5 N/A NA N/A 33 - N/A N/A
Keane - m N/A N/A CN/A N/A 4/4 N/A
Parsons 717 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11 N/A

N/A = not a board/committee member

Evaluation of board performance

The board conducts an annual evaluation of its own performance. This involves consideration of the following: whether
a business plan was agreed prior to the start of the financial year; whether the plan was delivered and if it was not
whether the board satisfied itself as to the reasons for change; whether the committees carried out the plans of work
approved for them by the board; whether the board fulfilled its own plan of work for the year; whether requirements
for new/additional/ replacement skills on the board (at executive and non-executive level) were considered during the
year; whether any steps taken as a result were successful; whether the board assessed its level of compliance with its
adopted code of governance and provided explanations for any non-compliance; and, whether time was made available
for and the way in which meetings were conducted allowed open discussion of key issues between board members. The
board’s evaluation-of its own performance in respect of the year under consideration produced the conclusion that the
board has been effective.

The board has adopted the UK Corporate Governance Code (2014 version) and has complied with all of its provisions
that are applicable to the Group while acknowledging that some of its provisions address the circumstances of listed
companies and so are not appropriate to the Group’s affairs. Specifically, Code provisions B.6.2, B.7, C.3, D.2 and E.1
contemplate dialogue with external shareholders or decisions being referred to shareholders on matters of director
appointments, auditor appointments and director remuneration, the use of the AGM to communicate with investors
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and the use of external facilitators in evaluations. The Group is not a FTSE 350 company and does not have external
shareholders in the sense contemplated by the Code and therefore it addresses the need for scrutiny and evaluation
through the Group board or an appropriate committee of the board and it engages with investors directly and through
an annual investors forum. ’

Subsidiary boards
Places for People subsidiaries have governance arrangements appropriate to their size and field of activity. All of those .
governance arrangements feed into the Group’s overall governance structure.

The main operating subsidiaries — Places for People Homes, Places for People Living+, Castle Rock Edinvar Housing

Association, Cotman Housing Association, Touchstone Corporate Property Services, Residential Management Group,

Girlings Retirement Rentals, Places for People Leisure, Allenbuild and ZeroC — ali have their own boards, con5|st1ng of
- non-executive and/or executive directors, but always mcludlng members of the Group Board.

Viability statement .

While the Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the UK Corporate Governance Code
requires the Directors to make a statement with regard to the viability of the Group. The Group’s strategic plan covers
a ten year period, over which the directors have made assumptions regarding the Group’s revenues, operating costs
and cashrequirements. The projections.for the first three years of the plan are based on current opportunities
and an expectation of the rental incomes for the Group. There is inherently less certainty in the projections from year
four to ten. The directors have therefore determined that three years is an appropriate period of the vrablhty
statement.

In assessing the Group’s prospects and resilience, the directors produced projections which considered the Group’s
current business position and risk appetite. The projections also included the rent reductions announced by the
Government on social housing rents together with the Group’s mitigating actions.to reduce costs. A rigorous stress
testing exercise was undertaken on the Group’s projections which included a review of the impact of further rent
reductions and a downturn in the development market. This exercise confirmed the Group would be able to continue
to settle projected liabilities as they fall due over a three year period.

Having assessed the prospects of the Group and-the principal risks as outlined on pages 63 and 64 of the Directors’
Report, -the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period to March 2019.

Risk management and mternal control

Risk management is at the heart of our approach to planning and running our business. The Group s
management is responsible for identifying, quantifying.and prioritising the potential risks involved in achieving
our goals. Each risk is ‘owned’ and managed to ensure that controls are in place to reduce risks to an
acceptable level in each area of operation. The relevant management activity may take place at project board,
group function, subsidiary and/or joint venture level.

Any business invoived with building new homes needs to have a clear strategic plan to guard against the risks of
a downturn in the property market. The Group’s breadth of activity strengthens our ability to do this, and is
reason to be confident that we can thrive even during more challenging market conditions. Unlike many other
large developers, we have a significant private rented business ready to market and manage a greater number of -
properties if necessary.

~ The Group has a clear strategy to carefully manage capital exposure, particularly exposure to the land market,
favouring revenue-based contracts with landowners, rather than acquiring significant new land holdings. This strategy
aims to strengthen our ability to withstand a drop in land values.

Risk appetite

The Group’s risk appetite is a measure of a) what level of risk is ‘acceptable’ at any point in tlme and, more
importantly, b) how much additional risk the Group is prepared to take (and in what areas) to achieve its strategic
goals and" objectives.

The Group'’s activities can be categorised under three headings:

1. Those areas where the Group has no appetite for risk, and will strive to reduce its residual risk levels as close to
zero as possible :

2. Those areas where the Group’s current risk profile is broadly in balance with its risk appetite, i.e. there is no
appetlte to accept further risk

3. Those areas where the Group currently has appetlte to accept additional risk, as it beheves the potential benefits
outweigh the potential downside.
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The Group’s current appetrte for risk is set out in detail in the Group Risk Appetite Statement This'is summansed in
the table below:

Risk Appetite Group Activity

No inherent appetite for risk Health and Safety

’ Regulatory/Legal
Compliance

Financial
Accounting
Equality and Diversity

Residual risk profile in fine with Most core operational -
prevailing risk appetite activities including Places .
' for People Homes, Places
for People Living+, '
Cotman ‘In-house’
Facilities Management etc.

Appetite exists to accept further  New Business Development
risk in order to achieve strategic New Product Development
goals and objectives . Mergers and Acquisitions
External Contracting
Opportunities
Risk appetite is a dynamic concept and the Group's willingness to accept higher levels of risk will change over time, as
economic and financial circumstances change. Risk appetite will remain under regular review by the Executive/board and all
key strategic decisions will be undertaken in the context of the prevailing risk appetite at the time.

Intern‘al control .

The board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control. This has been designed to manage, and mitigate as far as
possible, the risk of any failure to meet business objectives. It can only provide reasonable assurance — not absolute
assurance - against material misstatement or loss. The board’s approach to risk management is supported by an oversight
structure which includes the Audit & Risk Committee.

The board has an on-going process to identif;', evaluate and manage the significant risks faced by the Group. This was in
place throughout the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial statements. The key elements of this process are
as follows:

+ Risk maps are maintained by each Group business which set out the key internal-and external risks faced by that
business. Controls in place to mitigate each risk are documented, as are any further actions considered necessary to
reduce risk further. Risks are reviewed by subsidiary boards at each meeting and risk maps updated to reflect any
necessary changes.

-+ The Group business plan sets out for each Group business its ob]ectlves for the coming year, along with the risks that
might prevent achievement of those objectives and the controls and actions in place to mitigate those risks.

+ The Group's Strategic Risk and Value for Money Group meets twice yearly to consider emerging strategic risks and to
review and update the Group Strategic Risk Map.

« Group Risk Maps are subject to further scrutiny and challenge by the Regulated board, the Ventures board and by the
Audit & Risk Committee.

+ The reviews carried out by the Group’s Business Assurance function are focused upon the key risks identified by
management, ensuring that appropriate controls are in place to mitigate and manage risk to an acceptable level.

The Group board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control for the year ended 31 March 2016

and up to the date of signing these financial statements. It has not identified any weaknesses which resulted in material
losses or contingencies or other uncertainties which require disclosure in the financial statements.

Statement of Compliance
The Group board has assessed the position and conf irms that it has complied with the HCA's Governance and Financial
Viability standard. - .

Donations A
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Dunng the year the Group made charitable donatlons of £16, 000 (2015 £13,000). The Group made no pohtlcal donations
(2015 £nil).

Annual General Méeting
The Annual General Meeting was held on 19 July 2016:

Statement of disclosure-to the Auditor
At the time of approval of this report:

* So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group s audltor is unaware;
and’

+ The directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as dlrectors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group 's auditor is aware of that -information.

Statement of board'’s responS|b|l|t|es in respect ‘of the board’
report, strategic report and the financial statements

The board is responsibie for preparing the operating revnew and the fi nanctal statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations. \
Company law requires the board to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law it has elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with FRS 102 -—'Ihe Financial Reporting Standard applicable to the UK and
Republic of Ireland.

Under company law the board must not approve the financial statemerlts unless it ié satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the board is required to:  °

+ Select suitable accountmg policies and then apply them consistently;

+ Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; .
+ State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice have been
followed, subJect to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements and

+ Prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis unless it is mapproprlate to presume that the company
will continue in business.

The board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group

and company’s transactions and to disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and
company and to enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and the Accounting
Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2012. 1t has general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The board is resoonsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and ﬁnancial information included on the Group’s .
website. Legislation in the UK governlng the preparatuon and dissemination of f' nancial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions. .

~ By order of the board

C Martin
Company Secretary
19 July 2016
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Report of the Independent Auditor
For the year ending 31 March 2016

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Places for People Group Limited Only
Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1. Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

We have auditeq the financial statements of Places for People Group Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 set out on pages 43 to 88. In our opinion
the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group’s profit and the Companys
result for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accountmg Practice) mcludmg FRS102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting
Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

2. Our assessment of risks of material misstabement }

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements, the risk of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit was as
follows: .

Impairment of general needs housmg properties (Carrying value of general needs housing properties £1,843 million (2015 £1,838 million)) Risk vs. 2015:
New

Refer to page 35 (Issues considered by the Audit & Risk Committee section of the Governance Report), page 51 (accounting policy) and page 60 (financial
dsc/osures)

The risk

In July 2015 the Govermment-announced that social housing rents in England would be reduced by 1% per annum for a period of four years commencing
on 1 April 2016.

This change in govemment policy is considered to be an impairment trigger under FRS 102. As a result the Group was required to complete a detailed
impairment review of their general needs housing rented stock in England at 31 March 2016; this stock represents 82% (2015: 83%) of the Group’s total
housing properties.

As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, when undertaking the impairment review to assess whether cash generating units are held at the lower
of carrying amount or recoverable amount, recoverable amount is assessed using discounted cash flow techniques for all anticipated cash flows to generate
a net present value, rather than using the Depreciated Replacement Cost this is con5|dered to be an appropriate method given the age of the Group S.
housing property portfoho

Due to the current year impairment trigger and the level of professronal judgment required in assessing these properties for |mpa|rment we identified thls
area as a significant risk for our audit.

. Our response

.

For genéral needs properties in England, we performed testing over the impairment calculations prepared by the Group. This work included an assessment
of: )

* The judgments associated with the identification of the cash generating units, using our knowledge of the induétry and the types of housing properties
within each scheme, and with reference to applicable accounting standards;

+ The assumptions used within the calculations of recoverable amount of the properties, which included review of forecast income against budgets, testing
"the approval and monitoring ‘controls over preparation of those budgets, comparison of assumed voids and arrears and maintenance costs to historical
data, and review of forecast major repairs costs to a stock condition survey prepared by an external expert whose objectivity and competence we .
evaluated. We also evaluated the appropriateness of assumed inflation, rent reduction rates, and discount rates by comparison to external market data and
in the case of discount rates also to our knowledge of the business; and

* The disclosures made in the financial statements in connection with the impairment review and provision. D
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Report of the Independent Auditor
For the year ending 31 March 2016

Independent auditor’s repbrt to Places for People Group Limited - continued

3. our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit
A

The materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at £11.0 million (2015: £9.7 million), determined with reference to a benchmark of
Group tumover, of which it represents 2% (201S: 1.8%). We consider total turnover to be the most appropriate benchmark as the Group is a not-for-
profit organisation, therefore the focus is on revenue and any surplus generated is variable and reinvested.

We reported to the Audit & Risk Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified }nisstaterhents exceeding £560,000 (2015: £490,000), in addition to

other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.
/

of the Group's 115 (2015: 133).réporting components,. we subjected 45 (2015: ;14) to audits for group reporting purposes. These audits accounted far
93.7% (2015: 99.7%) of Group revenue, 90.6% (2015: 95.3%) of Group profit before tax and 97.5% (2015: 98.8%) of Group total assets. For the

remaining components, we performed analysis at an aggregated group level to re-examine our assessment that there were no significant risks of material
misstatement within these

The Group audit team instructed the component.auditors as to the significant areas to be covered, including the relevant risks detailed above and the
information to be reported back. The Group audit team approved the component materialities, which ranged from £4,500 (2015: £10,000) to £5.8 million
(£9.7 million), having regard to the mix of size and risk profile of the Group across the components. The work on three (2015: two) of the 45 (2015: 44)

components were performed by component auditors and the rest by the Group audit team.
P

Telephone conference meetings were held with the component auditor to discuss the findings reported to the Group audit team in more detail, and any
further work required by the Group audit team was then performed by the component auditor.

4. Our opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 is unmodified

“Inour opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and Govemnance Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with-the financial statements.

5. We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks

Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing to add or draw attention to in relation to:

« The directors’ viability statement on page 37, conceming the principal risks, their management, and, based on that, the directors’ assessment and
expectatlons of the Group continuing in operation over the three years to 31 March 2019; or

« The disclosure in note 1 of the financial statements concerning the use of the going concem basis of accounting.

6. We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have identified other
information in the annual report that contains a material inconsistency with either that knowledge or the financial statements, a material misstatement of
fact, or that is otherwise misleading.

In particular we are required to report to you if:

« we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our audit and the directors’ statement that they consider that the
annual report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for the members to
assess the Group'’s position and performance, business model and strategy; or

4 ’

e the issues considered by the Audit & Risk Committee section of the Governance Report does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to
the Audit & Risk Committee.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repbrt to you if, in our opihion_:

* adequate accounting recards have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
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Report of the Independent Auditor
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Independent auditor’s report to Places for People Group Limited - continued
o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities.

Respective responsibilities of the directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of board's Responsibilities set out on page 39, the directors are responsibie for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the UK Ethical
Standards for Auditors. ’

Scope of an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with ISAs (UK and Ireland)

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate. This report is made subject to important explanations regarding our responsibilities, as published on our website at
www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeother2014, which are incorporated into this report as if set out in full and should be read to provide an understanding of the
purpose of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and section 128 of
the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

o U
e

Chris Wilson, Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Arlington Business Park
Theale

Reading
RG7 4SD -

| q\biedo
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Places for Peopfe Group Limited
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ending 31 March 2016

places I‘«?“é

speopie

Group and share of joint ventures turnover
Less: share Aof joint ventures turnover
" Group tumover
Cost of sales
Operating costs
Operating profit before interest
Shere of.operating profit/(loss) on joint ventures
Gain on revaluation of investment properties
Profit on sale of fixed assets
- Interest receivable and simila;' income
Interest payable and similar charges
Profit on ordinary activities befo@ taxation
' Taxation

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation

Loss attributable to minority interests

Profit attributable to members of the parent compahy

-Group profit for the financial year excluding joint ventures
‘Share of joint ventures profi t./(loss) for the fi nancnal year

. Total profit for the the financial year
Fair value gain/(lpss) on interest rate and currency swaps
Deferred tax on interest rate and currency swaps

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in the pension scheme
Deferred tax arising on movement in the pension scheme

Movement in restricted reserves

Total comprehensive income for the year . .

The notes on pages 49 to 88 form an integral part of these financial ‘statements.

43

Notes

16
14

10

2016 " 2015

£'000 £000
641,508 . 572,750
(24,924)- (8,440)
616,584 564,310
(104,791) " (83,834)
(388,026) (379,307)
123,767 101,169
3,145 (448)
772 184
4,389 - 3,980
12,940 8,511
(101,343) (108,661)
43,670 4,735
1,391 1,454
45,061 ~ 6,189
326 a11
. 45,387 6,600
43,124 ' 7,572
2,263 (972)
45,387 6,600
18,345 . (20,177)
' (3,303) 4,035
806 (19,807)
(2,667) (758)
(12) 16

58,556 (30,091)

gt S e



Places for People Group Limited . '
' - ivei | DIGCGS o A

Company statement of comprehensive income
For the year ending 31 March 2016 . =4 Deop

2016 2015
. Notes . £'000 £'000
Turnover : ¢ 27,338 15,939
Opgrating costs . ( 27,056) (24,891)
Operating profit/(loss) ‘ 282 - (8952)-
Intérgst receivable and similar income .4 ’ ) ) o 7 . ' 6 . 10,501
Interest payable and similar charges . 8 (288) ) (1,549)

‘Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation lb :

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation ‘ -

The notes on pages 49 to 88 form an integral part of these finandial statements.
There is no difference between the profit on-ordinary activities after taxation and the profit for the year and their historical cost

equivalents.

There is no other comprehensive income other than that reported above.



Company Number: 3777037

Places for People Group Limited . &
Consolidated statement of financial position pl(jces
As at 31 March 2016 5 peOple
2016 2015
Notes £'000 © £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill 11 11,776 17,164 -
Housing properties - depreciated cost 1-2 2,239,757 2,203,851
Fixed asset investrents 14 681,842 637,238
Fixed Assets - Equity Loans - HomeBuy 15 101,529 115,761
Investinent in joint ventures 16 1,733 ( -
Other fixed assets 13 67,664 59,615
. 3,104,301 3,033,629
Non current assets :
Debtors amounts falling due after one year ht:] 5,402 7,044
Current assets . ’ .
Stock’ . 17 245,675 219,925.
Debtors: amounts falling due wnthm one year " 19 79,619 75,686
Investments 20 13,767 37,462
Cash at bank and in hand 38,910 12,815
377,971 345,888
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year <21 (719,556) (227,127)
Net current (liabilities)/assets . (341,585) 118,761
Total assets less current liabilities \ 2,768,118 3,159,434
Creditors: amounts faliing due after more than one year 22 2,435,733 2,882,763
Provisions for liabilities and charges 24 1,139 - 1,066
2,436,872 - 2,883,829
Provision for joint ventures 16 - 785°
Pension liability 26 51,560 53,364
Capital and reserves :
Revenue reserves excluding pension liability . 332,210 275,446
Pension liability (51,560) . (53,364)
Revenue reserves including pension Iiabnlity 25. 280,650 222,082
Restricted reserve . 25 172 184
Total capital and reserves 286,822 222,266
Non controlling interests " (1,136) (810)

The notes on pages 49 to 88 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2,768,118

3,159,434 °

The financial statements on pages 43 to 88 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 July 2016, and signed on its behalf by: -

C phillips

Group Chairman
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Places for People Group Limited

N

The notes on pages 49 to 88 form an integral part of these finandial statements.

Company statement of financial position ploces I k'
As at 31 March 2016 ‘ speople
2016 - 2015
Notes . £'000 £000
Fixed assets ‘ . ) o
Investments 14 ‘4,720 10,845
Current assets E .
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 19 9,923 2,621
Cash at bank and in hand : 482 -
' ) 10,405 2,621
Creditors: amo-unts falling due within one year 21 A (4,627) (1,976)
" Net current assets ' 5,778 645
Total assets less current liabilities 10,498 11,49.0
Creditors: amounts falling due after more tha_‘n one year 22 10,498 | ] 11,490
Capital ‘and reserves
Revenue reserves - -
10,498 11,490

The finandial statements on pages 43 to 88 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 July 2016 and sugned on its behalf by

C Phillips
Group Chairman
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) 'Consolidat‘ed Statement of Changes in Reserve

44

For the year ending 31 March 2016 . -

[jacesrx

people

Income & Ex‘penditure " Restricted Total
Reserve Reserve Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2015 280,393 184 280,577
Effects of adoption of FRS 102 (58,311) - (58,311)
Balance at 1 April 2015 222,032 184 222,266
Total Cnmprehenswe income for the year
Surplus for the year 45,387 - 45,387
Fair value gain on interest rate and currency swaps 18,345 - 18,345
Deferred tax on interest rate and currency swaps (3,303) - (3,303)
Actuarial gain recognised in the pension scheme 306 - .806 .
Deferred tax arising oﬁ gain in the pension schgme : (2,667) - (2,667)
Movement in restricted reserve - 12y (12)

280,650 172 280,822

Balance at 31 March 2016




Places for People Group Limited
Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ending 31 March 2016

Rlaces i

Net cash generai:ed from operating activities (see note 1)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of housing fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of other assets
Purchase of other fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of housing fixed assets
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings
Purchase of investments

Purchase of joint venture investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Grants received

Interest received

Cash flow from financing activites .

Finance leases

Repayments of borrowings
. New loans

Interest paid

Tax Paid

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Note 1

Surplus for the year

Adjustments for non-cash items to reconcile surplus for the year to net cash generated
from operating activities

Depredciation, amortisation and impairment
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
(Appreciation)/depreciation of fixed asset investments
(Gain)/loss on revaluation of investment properties
(Increase)/decrease in stock

Increase in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Pension costs less contributions payable

Surplus on tangible fixed asset disposals

Interest payable

Interest receivable

Taxation

Cash flow from operating activities

The.notes on pages\49 to 88 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016

£'000 -

169,108

(66,162)
100
(20,416)
15,301
(2,265)
(55,547)
(2,519)
35,398
14,985
12,940

(352)
(270,905)
300,578
(106,361)

2,212

26,095
12,815

38,910

45,387

49,615
7,653

(2,647)

(772)
(21,831)
(2,682)
15,207
73
"(3,518)
(4,389)

101,343 -

(12,940)

(1,391)

169,108

2015
© £000

" 170,079

(116,720)
12,147
(23,042)
11,949
(26,890)
(43,452)
(5,658)
18,078
11,818
6,146

(229)
(180,212)
243,291
(88,081)
(4,973) -

(15,749)
28,565

12,816
6,600

27,021
33,260
1,699
641
51,282
(9,216)
(32,907)

T (265)
(1,428)
(4,841)
108,198
(8,511)
(1,454)

170,079



Places for People Group Limited A V)
Notes to the financial statements IGCeS

For the year ending 31 March 2016 . 5 people

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accoﬁnting Standards and the Statement of
Recommended Practice for Registered Social Housing Providers (SORP). A summary of the more important accounting policies, which have been
applied consistently, is set out below.

Basis of accounting . N
These ﬁnancialA statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 - The financial Reporting Standard appficable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland' ('FRS 102'), and with the Companies
Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

After making enquiries, tﬁe board has reasonable expectation thaf the Group has adequate resources to cdntinue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group financial statements.

Significant estimates and critical judgements

Judgement and estimates that management has made in applying the above accounting regulations are mcluded in the relevant accounting
policies.

First time adoption of FRS].OZ ‘

This is the first year in which the financial statements have been prepared under FRS 102 and Housing SORP 2014. Refer to note 34 for an
explanation of the transition. The Group has chosen to apply the recognition and measurement provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (as adopted for use in the EU), the disclosure requirements of Sections 11 and 12-and the presentation
requirements, as appropriate, of 11.38A or 12.25B as permitted by paragraphs 11.2(b) and 12.2(b) of FRS102 in relation to recognising,
derecognising, measuring and disclosing financial instruments.

Where the Group has entered into a hedging refationship as described in IAS 39 in the period between the date of transition and the reporting
date for the first financial statements that comply with FRS102, it has elected to apply hedge accounnng prospectively from the date all qualifying
.conditions for hedge accountlng in IAS 39 are met.

The Group has not used the exemption available on transition to FRS 102 that allows entities to not restate business combinations effected before
the date of transition, 1 April 2014. An explanation of how the transition to FRS102 has affected financial position and financial petformance of the
Group is provided in note 34. .

Basis of consolidation

The ﬁﬁancial statements are group statements and have been prepared by consofidating the results of the entities within the Places for People
Group using the acquisition method for subsidiary entities and the gross equity method for joint venture entities as appropriate.

The principal bodies within the consolidation are:

Registered under the Co-operative & Community - Registered under the Companies Act 2006:
Benefit Societies Act 2014: :
Castle Rock Edinvar Housing Association Limited Allenbuild Limited
. Cotman Housing Association Limited . PFPL (Holdings) Limited
Places for People Homes Limited . - Places for People Capital Markets Plc
Places, for People Living + . Places for People Developments Limited

Places for People Scotland
Places for People Scotland Care and Support Limited
Places for People Treasury PLC

. . Residential Management Group Limited
Touchstone Corporate Property Services Limited
ZeroC Group (2008) Limited

~

Details of the principal Group entities are included in Note 30 to the financial statements.

Independence and Responsibility Agreements exist between the Group parent and the subsidiaries, which are the basis of the Group structure, and
enable the board of directors to control the Group. All subsidiaries have coterminous year ends. Places for People Living+, Places for People
Neighbourhoods, Castle Rock Edinvar Housing Association, Cotman Housing Association and Places for People Scotland Care and Support Limited
each have charitable status.

-~

Turnover

Turnover represents rental and service charge income receivable, income from the sale of: properties, fees and revenue grants from local
authorities and the HCA, leisure facilities management fees and other income.

Charges for support services funded under Supporting People are recognised as they faII due under the contractual arrangements with
Administering Authorities.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue grants .

The Group has a substantial programme of major repairs expenditure, the majority of which is' treated as an operating cost. A limited
amount of this is funded fromSocial Housing Grant (SHG), with the majority belng met from rental mcome The SHG is shown as turnover
along with other revenue grants received. .

Taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is liable to United Kingdom Corporation Tax.

"The charge for taxation for the year is based on the proﬁf for the year end and includes current tax on the taxable profit for the year and
deferred taxation. Deferred taxation is recognised in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation
and for accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 102.

VAT

The majority of the Group’s turnover is exempt from VAT. However, certain activities are subject to VAT and give rise to a small amount of
VAT recovery. Where appropriate, costs are stated including irrecoverable VAT.

Pensions

There are nine pension schemes, five of which are defined benefit pension schemes based on final pensionable salary, one of which is a
Group-wide scheme. Details of the schemes are set out in Note 26. Contributions from the Group and participating employees are paid into
independently administered funds. These payments are made in accordance with.triennial calculations by professionally qualified
independent actuaries. In the intervening years, the actuary reviews the continuing appropriateness of the rates of contribution.

All of the Group's defined benefit schemes referred to above were closed to new. members as of 1 September 2004. Employees joining the'
Group from 1 September 2004 have the option of joining a stakeholder scheme to which the company contributes. The costs of the
stakeholder scheme are accounted for in the year in which they occur.

Pension scheme assets: are measured using market values. Pension scheme liabilities are measured.using a projected unit method and
" discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability. ’

The Pension scheme deficit is recognised in full. The movement in scheme deficit is split between operating charges, finance items and, in
the statement of total recognised gains and losses, actuarial gains and losses.

Goodwill and amortisation

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired '
business or company at the date of acquisition. Goodwill has no residual value and the finite useful life of goodwill is assessed on an
individual basis for each aquisition. Useful economic lives are currently assessed to be within a range of 2 - 5 years. The Group reviews the
amortisation period and method when events and circumstances indicate that the usefu! life may have changed since the last reporting
date. Goodwill and other intangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance with Section 27 Impalrment of assets when there is an
indication that goodwill or an |ntang|ble asset may be impaired. .

~Housing properties and land

Housing properties are stated at the lower of depreciated cost or economic value. The cost of properties is their purchase price together
with ‘costs of acquisiion and impravements, including related development costs and interest payable. Properties purchased for
improvement for sale are treated as current assets and all other housing properties are treated as tangible fixed assets. Properties held as
current assets are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Land is stated at lower of cost or value. Land which is purchased for the development of properties which are planned to be built and
subsequently owned and managed by the Group is recorded in ﬁxed assets. Land purchased for the development of propemes to be sold is
held within stock in current assets.

Social. Housmg Grant and oﬂler capital grants

Government Grants are included within creditors in the balance sheet and credited to the prof‘t and loss account over the expected. useful
lives of the assets to which they relate or in periods in which the related costs are mcurred

\

When SHG in respect of housing properties in the course of construction exceeds the total cost to date of those housing properties, the
excess is shown as a current liability.

Where SHG or housing association grant is retained followmg the disposal ‘of property, it is shown under the Disposal Proceeds and
Recycled Capital Grant Funds in Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year. These funds will be used for the provision of new
sodial housing for rent and’ sale . .o .
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. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deprecnatlon of housmg propertles

Fixed assets, other than freehold land, are depreciated in accordance with FRS 102 at rates calculated to reduce the net
book value of each component element to its estimated residual value, on a straight line basis, over the expected remaining
useful economic life of the component Freehold land is not depreciated. The estlmated lives of assets and components is as
shown in the table below.

Assets ] . Depreciation period (years)

Other elements (Leasehold)

Shared Ownership housing:
All elements (new build)

All elements (rehab) '

All elements (Leasehold)

|Other fixed assets: -
Offices (new build)
Offices (rehab)

Office refurbishment
Offices (long leasehold)
" |Offices (short leasehold)

Rented housing & commercial properties: . )

Kitchens ' 20
Bathrooms ) 20

Boilers - _ : : - 15

External windows & doors o : - 30

Roofs 45

Fire safety systems . ’ 20

Fencing ) : 30

Digital TV aerials . i . - 10

Lifts ' 20

Social Alarms 'From 20-40
Surveys 15 .
Initial and replacement scheme assets From1to5-
Other elements (new build) 100

Other elements (rehab) 80

Lesser of term of lease or 100 years

100
80
Lesser of term of lease or 100 years

100

80

From 10-20

Lesser of term of lease or 100 years
Terms of lease

Plant & Equipment 5 ' ,
Cars and commercial vehicles 5
Computer hardware, software and infrastructure From 5-15

Impairment

For fixed assets with a remaining economic life less than 100 years, an impairment review is. carried -out at each reporting
date in accordance with FRS 102 section 27.7. For all other assets an impairment review is undertaken when there is an
indication the asset may be impaired. If assets are found to be impaired, the amount of impairment is disclosed in Note 3.
When undertaking impairment reviews to assess whether assets or cash generating units.are held at the lower of cost or .
recoverable amount, recoverable amount is defined as its value'in use. Recoverable amount is normally assessed usmg
discounted cash flow techniques for all antlcupated cash flows to generate a net present value.

Costs are assigned to all schemes on a detailed basis, including mixed tenure schemes.

The Group defines Cash Generating Units as schemes except where its schemes are not sufficiently large enough in size and
it is more appropnate to consider individual assets. This approach supports effective appralsal of schemes as.it aligns with
management and operatnon ‘of the business.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capitalisation of interest and administrative costs

Interest is capitalised on loans financing schemes in development up to their completion. Th|s is calculated by reference to the Group’s
cost of borrowmg and the development costs.

Administration costs relating to development activities are capitalised based on an apportionment of the staff time directly spent on this
activity.

]

Improvements to property

The Group capitalises expenditure on housing properties which results in an increase in either the existing use value of the property or
the disposal value of the property. . '

Stock

The cost of stock includes acquisition and development costs together with capitalised interest and administration costs. Stock is stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value with any provisions being charged to cost of sales. The land held within stock relates to the-
development of properties WhICh are to be sold by the Group.

All land and property held within stock is subject to regular appraisal to confirm the assets are recoverable at least at the carrying value.

Included within stock are amounts in respect of the expected percentage of sales under first tranche dlsposal for shared ownershlp
properties. Proceeds from first tranche disposals are recognised in turnover.

Leasir\g and hire purchase

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitalised as tangible fixed assets, and are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their economic useful lives. Obligations under finance leases are included in creditors net of the finance
charge allocated to future periods. The finance element of the rental is charged to the profit and loss account so as to produce a
constant penodlc rate of charge on the net obligation outstanding in each period.

Operating leases

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the Jease term.

Finance issue costs -

The cost of raising loans is amortised over the period of the loan. The deferred cost is offset against the liability and included within note
22, Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year, in accordance with FRS 102.

Assets leased to other bodies

The Group has developed a number of housing properties which have been leased to other organisations. These are shown as stock
whilst in development, and as long-term debtors once lease agreements are in place. The lease income is shown as turnover.

Special needs housing managed by voluntary agents on behalf of the Group

Due to the nature of the relationship between the Group and its managing agents, these financial statements exclude the financial
performance of the projects managed by our agents.

Leaseholder service charge sinking fund

The Group is required to set aside sums in respect of future maintenance of certain properties subject to leasehold arrangements. These
sums are held in a separate bank account to which interest is added and tax deducted. Amounts accumulated in the fund are included
wrthln current asset investments, and within note 21, Creditors: amounts falling due within one year.
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Restricted reserve

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING PbLICIES (Continueﬂ)

-
I

The Group has a reserve which is only expendable in accordance with the wishes of the funder. The transfers to/frdm

 restricted reserves are shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

This reserve relates to the Grace Gillett Legacy. which represents'a bequest to the Group for future support of a scheme in
Bristol. ‘ ; ’

Financial instruments ’ o . ' ’

Financial instruments are :mbally recorded at fair value. Subsequent measurement depends on the designation of the
instrument as follows:

® Debt service reserves held in trust as security against debt holdings are categonsed as held- to matunty and measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. .

. ® Loans and mortgages receivable are categorised as loans and receivables and measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

® QOther assets, including trade investments and joint venture investments and assets that are short term in \nature such as
cash and receivables are predominantly categorised as loans and receivables. .

® Financial liabilities are predominantly measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

® Discounted bonds are shown at their redemption value less deferred interest. Deferred interest represents the discount on
the issue of the discounted bonds, and discounts are recognised in the profit and loss account on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest rate includes interest and all significant diredly attributable incremental fees and costs.

Derivatives, comprising interest rate and currency swaps, are held at fair value. All swaps are considered effective in managing
the risk they are designed to mitigate. Valuation movements in those instruments that meet the specific requirements of IAS 39
are recognised through other recognised Income. Other movements are recognised in the profit and loss account.

]
Derivatives require fair value measurement each year and consequently they are subject to categorisation under the hierarchy'
approach.

The Group assesses financial assets for impairment at the balance sheet date. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

.

.
Further details on financial instruments are given in note 25.

" Financial assets (including Hebtors) - impairment

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset that can be estimated reliably. ’

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and ‘the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest )
rate. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent
event causes the amount of |mpa|rment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the profit and
loss account. )
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2. TURNOVER, COST OF SALES, OPERATING COSTS AND OPERATING PRO_FiT .

Social housing lettings (note 3) ’ a

Other social housing activities
Social housing'property sales
Shared Ownership property sales
Charges for support services
Domicilliary care
Other '
Total

Non social housing activi;iés
Total '

Analysis of turnover

Social housing turnover

) Non social housing activities

2016

Non social housing development and construction

Non social housing lettings
Leisure facilities management
Property management services

Retirement management services -

Other~
Total

. : 2015
Cost of Operating Operating Operating Operating
Turnover sales costs profit Turnover ‘ Cost of sales costs profit/(loss)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 . - £'000 £'000 £000
270,185 - (161,528) 108,657 257,000 - (154,513) 102,487
8,002 (5,308) (599) 2,095 41,519, (21,302) (1,384) 18,833
2,658 (2,067) (170) 421 . .4,562 (3,655) (167) 740
. 11,043 - (10,386) 657 11,610 - (11,218) )
743 - (701) S 42 2,826 - (3,209) (383)
- - (9,812) (9,812) - - - -
292,631 (7,375) (183,196) 102,060 317,517 (24,957) (170,491) 122,069
323,953 (97,416) (204,830) 21,707 246,793 (58,877) (208,816) °  (20,900)
616,584 (104,791) (388,026) 123,767 564,310 (83,834) _(379,307) 101,169
2016 2015
£'000 © £'000
292,631 317,517 i
98,765 42,841
35,804 34,633
130,692 117,285 -
44,800 43,944
1,941 841
11,951 7,249
-616,584 564,310
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3. INCOME AND EXPENDITURE FROM SOCIAL HOUSING LETTINGS
. ’ . 2016 2015
Supported
. . housing &
General needs housing for :
housing older people ‘Other Total . . Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Income )
Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges ) 187,819 19,743 11,212 218,774 211,855
Service charge income . 12,423 10,689 1,023 24,135 23,713
Revenue grant . 5,419 - - 5,419 5,484
Amortised government grants - . . 12,128 2,154 700 14,982 13,762
Cther income ' 2,093 4,489 293 © 6,875 2,186
Turnover from social housing lettiﬁgs ’ 219,882 37,075 13,228 270,185 257,000
Expenditure on social housing lettings activities

_Management . (29,677) (6,726) (589) (36,992) (37,156)

Service charge costs : (12,812) . (10,387) (1,085) (24,284) (23,961)

Routine maintenance (27,781) (3,363) (522) '(31,666) (32,011)

Planned maintenance ’ ' S (13,207) (2,105) (285) (15,597) (12,678)

Major repairs expenditure . (2437) (396) (81) (2,914) (4,213)

Bad debts . (1,209) (175) (24) (1,408) (2,120)

Depreciation on housing assets - (27,220) (4,124) (1,328) (32,672)\. (29,902)

Impairment of housing properties . . . (826) (376) = {1,202) (177)

Leases relating to housing properties (10,363) - - (10,363) (9,457)

Other costs . (2,702) (1,273) (454) (4,430) (2,838)

Dpemﬁﬁg costs on social housing lettings ) ’ (128,234) (28,926) " (4,368) (161,528) (154,513)

Operating surplus on social housing lettings . ) 91,648 8,149 8,860 108,657 102,487

Void losses ) X ) . . (1,517) (727) ' (64) (2,309) (2,368)
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4.

GROUP PROFIT ON SALE OF FIXED ASSETS

2016

Group 2016
Operating
. Operating profit/
. Turnover Cost of sales costs (loss)
£'000 £'000 i £'000 £'000
Sale of housing assets - _ : 15,447 (11,058) 4,389
Sale of other fixed assets 1,090 (1,090) - -
Total ' o o 16,537 (12,148) — 4,389
2015 '
Group 2015
Operating Operating
Turnover Cost of safes costs profit/ (loss)
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- Sale of housing assets . 14,369 (9,737) (660) 3,972
Sale of other fixed assets ) . 8 - - 8
Total : 14,377 (9,737) (660) .3,980
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS |
The Group is administered by a Board of Directors. The direct'ors received remuneration as set out below,
: : GROUP.
: 2016 2015
- © £'000 £'000°
Expenses not chargeable to United Kingdom income tax reimbursed to directors; :
Non-executive directors : 11 14
Executive directors ! : : ’ 16 15
) \ N
Aggregate emoluments (excluding pension contributions):
Non-executive directors 348 249
Executive directprs . 1,616 1,539
Pension contributions: ‘ .
Executive directors ) N 92 90
" Total remuneration * A 2,083 1,907
The number of directors who received emoluments in the following ranges was:
2016 2015
No. No.
£240,000 - £249,999 - 1
£250,000 - £259,999 1 1
£260,000 - £269,999 1 -
£300,000 - £309,999 ! - 1
£310,000 - £319,999 1 -
£330,000 - £339,999 - 1
£340,000 - £349,999 1 -
£480,000 - £489,999 - 1
£530,000 - £539,999 1 -
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Highest paid director: ' : , : 530 483 .

The Group Chief Executwe is not a member of the Groups pension scheme, and does not receive any enhanced or special terms or contributions to-

any individual pension arrangement.

- 56



Places for People Group Limited ‘ I </
Notes to the Financial Statements p aces -
For the year ending 31 March 2016 T ' N peOple

6. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION ]
The average number of employees expressed as full time equivalents (including the executive directors) employed during the year

was:
GROUP . COMPANY .
2016 2015 2016 2015
No. No. - No.. No.
~ .
Managing housing services : 1,970 1,918 21 14
. Developing and selling houses ' ’ 136 45 _ 4 5
Central administration servnces : : . - 549 .344 315 270.
Care services ) 672 T 662 - 3
Leisure service activities 2,148 1,940 - -
5,475 4,909 340 292

Average number of employees is calculated by ascertaining for each calendar month in the financial year, the number of persons,
by category, employed by the Group. The monthly numbers are then added together and divided by the number of months in the
financial year.

\

. . : 2016 - . 2015 2016 2015
Staff costs (for the above persons): E'OQO £'000 £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries . ‘ ) 160,455 137,365 12,812 © 11,052
Severance pay ) ) 1,305 1,004 137 97
Social security costs ' 12,409 10,311 1,270 1,106
Pension payments » 8,144 6,785 1,125 967
: 182,313 155,465 15,344 13,222
Staff costs (for the non-executive members of the board):
Wages>and salaries 348 249 - -
Social security costs . 33 27 - -
. . 381 276 - ) -

The number of senior staff who received emoluments in)the following ranges was:
' 2016 . 2015
No. ’ No.

w
ey
w
O

£60,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £79,999

£80,000 - £89,999 :

£90,000 - £99,999 ,

£100,000 - £109,999 -

£110,000 - £119,999

£120,000 - £129,999 4 ‘ . ‘
£130,000 - £139,999 _ A "
£140,000 - £149,999
£150,000 - £159,999
£160,000 - £169,999
£170,000 - £179,999
£180,000 - £189,999
£190,000 - £199,999
£210,000 - £219,999
£220,000 - £239,999
£250,000 - £259,999
£270,000 - £279,999

[y
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7. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

'On financial assets not at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income:

Interest on fixed asset investments

Dividend received

Other interest receivable from deposits

Share of joint ventures interest receivable and other income

INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

On financial liabilities not at fair value through the statement of comp'rehensi\‘/e income:

On bank loans and overdrafts

Finance charges on hire purchase or lease agreements
Other finance charges

In respect of Recycled Capital Grant Fund

Share of joiht ventures interest payable and similar charges
Unwinding of SHPS pension fiability discount

On defined benefit pension scheme:
Expected return on pension assets
Interest on scheme liabilities

" On financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income:
Fair value loss on interest rate and currency swaps

Less: capitalised interest

PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation and impairment:
Tangible fixed assets '
Amortisation of goodwill o
Profit/(loss) on disposal of tangible fixed assets other than housing assets

Payments under operating leases
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Housing properties
Other operating leases

Auditor's remuneration: . ‘
In their capacity as auditor

. In respect of all other services

Other Auditor's remuneration: -
In their capacity as auditor
In respect of all other services

58

GROUP COMPANY
2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
11,243 8,437 - -,

179 - - 10,500
1,428 - 74 6 ‘

90 - .. .
12,940 8,511 3 10,501

GROUP’ COMPANY
2016 2015 2016 2015

. £'000 £000 £'000 £000
99,273 100,361 288 1,549
192 37 - -
129 - - -
184 130 - -
99,778 100,528 288 1,549
474 430 - .
308 877 - -
4729)  (6,755) - -
6,506 7,397 - -
1,777 642 - -
(1,221 7,440 - -
103,558 109,917 288 1,549
(2,215). (1,25%) - -
101,343 108,661 288 1,549

" GROUP COMPANY

2016 2015 . 2016 2015
£'000 £000 £000 £000
49,270 41,045 - -
7,653 34,87 . - -

- 8) .- -
4,147 3,512 - 128
277 486 - -
16,847 16,181 - -
1,241 807 - -
.319 250 - 2

30 5 - -

- 7 - -

- 1 - -




At 31 March 2016

Amortisation
At 1 April 2015
Charge for year

At 31 March 2016
Net book value at 31 March 2016

« Net book value at 1 April 2015
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10. TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
GROUP
2016 2015
‘(a) Analysis of charge in period £'000 . £'000
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (note 10b)
United ngdom corporation tax 109 . 1,824
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior penods (72) (19)
Share of joint venture current tax 418 93
455 1,898
" Deferred tax (note 10c) )
OQrigination and reversal of timing dlfferences ) (1,753) (3,352)
Adjustments to deferred tax in respect of prior penods {91) -
(1,844) (3,352)
Total tax credit (1,389) (1,454) .
(b)Tax expense/(income) included in other comprehensive income
Deferred Tax - ‘
Originétion and reversal of timing differences * 6,024 (3,277) .
Origination and reversal of timing differences-prior year {54) -
. . 5,970 (3,277)
(b) Factors affecting tax credit for period
The tax assessed is different than the standard rate of corporation tax in the.UK (20%).
The differences are explalned below
Taxable Group profit 43,670 T 4,735
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2015:21%). 8,734 | 994
Expenses not deductible/(income) not taxable . 3,768 10,005
Exempt charitable income, (4,701) (4,666)
Movement in unrecognised deferred tax (8,710) (7,305)
Rate difference (318). (355)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods (162) (127)
Tax on profit on ordinary activites (note 10a) (1,389) (1,454)
(c).Factors that may affect future tax chargs '

. Provision for deferred tax .
Accelerated capital allowances 830 . 547
Other short term timing differences " (7,436) (10,869)
Capltallsed interest 6,399 . 7,072
Tax Losses (6,913) (5,297)
Pension through other comprehensive income (3,252) . (5,952)

' (10,372) (14,499)
Provision at 1 April (14,499) (7,870)
Expense/income in the year in profit and loss {1,843) - (3,352)
Expense/income in the year in profit and foss in other comprehensive income © .5,970. (3,277)
Provision at 31 March at 20% (2015: 21%) (note 19) (10,372) (14,499)
' 11. GOODWILL GROUP
2016 -
£'000
_ Cost
. At 1 April 2015 30,529
- Additions 2,264

32,793
(13,364)
(7,653)

(21017

11,776,

17,164
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12. GROUP HOUSING PROPERTIES

Cost .
At 1 April 2015
Additions
Change of tenure
Transfer to completed schemes
Disposals -

At 31 March 2016

Depreciation
At 1 April 2015 -

Charge for year
Depreciation
Impairment

Eliminated on disposal
Depreciation
Impairment

Change of tenure
Depreciation
Impairment

At 31 March 2016

Net book value at 31 March 2016

Net book value at 1 April 2015

o Al
8] Clceslzz,\\\
speople
LSE & shared
LSE & shared Housing ownership
Housing ownership properties in properties in
properties - housing ‘the course of the course of  Total housing
and land properties . construction construction properties
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2,331,501 174,214 21,205 38 2,526,958 -
.- - ‘ 84,558 697 85,255
(4,989) 1,325 - (68) .36 (3,696)
68,882 676 (68,882) (676) -
(6,687) (6,922) - - (13,609)
2,388,707 169,293 36,813 95 2,594,908
(309,398) (13,709) - - ' (323,107)
(35,606) (1,566) - - (37,172)
(857) - - - (857)
4,622 641 - - 5,263
263 - - - 263
469 (10) - - 459
(340,507) (14,644) - - (355,151)
2,048,200 154,649 - 36,813 95 2,239,757
2,022,103 160,504 21,205 38 2,203,851

LSE denotes Leasehold Schemes for the Elderly.-

Additions to housing properties in the course of construction during the year include an apportionment of staff time directly spént on

the administration of development activities amounting to £1.8m (2015 £2.0m).

Housing properties comprise, at cost:
Freehold
Long leasehold
Short leasehold

Additions to completed properties

Completed properties acquired
Properties newly built/rehabilitated
Major Works to existing properties
Other works

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
2,195,392 2,131,544
388,245 387,017
11,271 8,397
2,594,908 2,526,958
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
1,727 43,029
30,670 31,167
36,724 30,411
438 221
69,559 104,828

The UK Government’s decision to reduce social housing rent for registered providers was considered to meet the criteria to trigger a
detailed impairment review of relevant assets as this could impact the income streams of many Cash Generating Units.

v - - ' ‘
Following an impairment review 98 units (2015: 13 units) were considered to be impaired, with a carrying value before recognition of
the impairment loss of £5,999,000 (2015 £450,000).

60.
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13. GROUP OTHER FIXED ASSETS :
Commercial and office properties
Motor spl:cli‘:lf;t Computer ~ Freehold Long Short . Fixtures Total
. vehicles pe equipment offices - leasehold leasehold and Fittings
equipment . .

) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 © £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost . .

At 1 April 2015 455 936 28,850 19,769 11,174 13,109 18,291 92,584 -
Additions - 169 1,095 5916 1,226 2,594 3,743 5,673 20,416
Change of tenure - - - (1,162) 171 310 (681)
Disposals . : (18) (79) (16,515) - (1,485) (1,675) (1, 427) (21,199)

At 31 March 2016 606 1,952 18,251 19,833 12,454 15487 22,537 91,120

Depreciation and Impairment . , :

At 1 April 2015 . X (127) (599) - (17,519) (977) (3,365) (4,010) (6,372) (32,969)

Charge for year (151) (873) (3,360) (248) (96) (1,825) (4,688) (11,241)

<Change of Tenure ' - - - 310 (68) (242) - )

Eliminated on disposal . 77 16,514 1,485 1,583 1,424 21,099

At 31 March 2016

(zsz) (1,395) (4,365) (915) (2,044) (4,494) (9,636) __ (23,111)

Depreciation and Impairment

Charge for year - - - (345) - - - ' (345)

At 31 March 2016 e - - - (345) - - - ~(345)
- Net Book Value at 31 March 2016 344 557 13886 _ 18573 10410 110,410 10,993 12,901 . 67,664

Net book value at 1 Apri) 2015 328 337 11,331 18,792 - 7,809 9,099 11,919 50,615
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14. FIXED ASSETS - INVESTMENTS .
GROUP . COMPANY
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000- £'000 £'000 : ~ £000
External investments and investment in : .
refated undertakings 262,326 : 233,363 4,720 10,845
, Investment property 419,516 - 403,875 - -
Total fixed asset investments 681!842 - 637,238 4,720 10,845
External investments and investment in related undertakings
GROUP COMPANY
2016 . | . 2015 2016 - . .2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost at 1 April 233,363 164,843 10,845 69,611
. Additions in year 63,727 69,426 245 T 4424
Disposals in year (34,614) ~(906) (6,370) (63,190)
Cost at 31 March 262,476 233,363 4,720 10,845
Accumulated impairment at 1 April - : - - -
Provision raised in the year (150) - - -
at 31 March __(150) - ~ -
Net book value at 31 March 262,326 233,363 4,720 10,845
‘Debt Service Reserves 88,568 77,071 - .
Grace Gillett Trust 171 184 - -
Trade investment -. 150 - -
" Other external investments 1,410 1,110 - -
Investment in related undertakings - . - 296 6,421
Investment in joint venture undertakings 172,177 154,848 4,424 4,424
262,326 233,363 4,720 10,845

Investments in Debt Servicing Reserves ‘are held in trust for the Group by the Prudential Trustee Company as'security against the 6.625%
Eurobond 2038, the 5.09% secured Bond 2024, and by Abbey National Treasury Services as security against a fixed rate loan of £80

million. The reserves equate to one year's-payment of interest and principal and are shown at cost.
The Grace Gillett Trust resulted from a legacy left to support the residents of a scheme in Bristol.

Investment in joint ventures
Joint venture

Boxed Energy Limited

Namegrace Limited

Smiths Dock LLP

‘Warwick Gates LLP

Tattenhall Care Village LLP.

Urban Splash Park Hill LLP
Lakesho@ Timber Building LLP (US)
Allenbuild Limited

MDH Group Limited

PFP Urban Splash JV LLP
Brooklands Milton Keynes LLP
Ruskin Square Phase One LLP

Investment i’roperties'

At 1 April 2015
Additions

Change of Tenure
Transfer at cost -
Revaluation in-year
Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Group interest
50% held through PfP Green Services
Limited
50% held through Residential
Management Group Limited
50% held through PfP Ventures Limited

. 50% held through PfP Ventures Limited

50% held through PfP Ventures Limited

" 50% held through PfP Ventures Limited

50% held through PfP Ventures Limited
50% held through PfP Ventures Limited
50% held through PfP Group Limited
50% held through PfP Homes Limited ~
50% held through PfP Homes Limited

'S0% held through PfP Ventures Limited

Nature of business

Investment in Biomass boilers

Property dealing

Property development
Property development
Property development
Property development
Property development
Property construction
Property development
Property development
Property development
Property development.

2016 2016 2016
Properties held
Completed in the course of
Properties construction Total
£'000 ) £000 £000
403,495 380 403,875 .
- 16,275 16,275
(1,247) . T 201 (956)
16,936 . (16,936) -
772 Co. 772 ;
(450) - (450)
419,506 10 419,516
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15. FIXED ASSETS - EQUITY LOANS . .
) : GROUP GROUP COMPANY - COMPANY

2016 2015 2016 . 2015
- £'000 . £000 £'000 £000
Gross valuation : a ’
At 1 April 2015 . . . 145,467 - 166,995 - -
. Additions in year 1,811 1,073 - . -
Net appreciation in year 3,135 5,159 . - -
Disposals in year : (23,043) (27,760) ) - S -
At 31 March - : 127,370 145,467 - : -
Other associated liabilities o ' : ' :
At 1 April 2015 . : (29,707) (35,507)- - -
Additions in'year . (200) (241) o - C -
Net appreciation in year . (488) - (560) - - -
Disposals in year . : 4,554 6,602 - -
At 31 March . (25,841) _(29,706) : - e -
Net book value at 31 March 101,529 115,761 .- -
- 16. JOINT VENTURES . .
. " GROUP . COMPANY
2016 2015 ' 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 - £'000 £'000
Share of assets : .
Share of fixed assets 1,234 1,704 - .-
Share of current assets R - 80,894 49,096 - -
’ . 82,128 50,800 -
Share of liabilities ' ‘ _ ‘
Liabilities due within one year or Iess (14,956) (2,653) - -
Liabilities due after more than one year (65,439) (48,932) - : -
‘ ’ (80,395) (51,585) ) -
Share of net assets/(liabilities) - 1,733 : (785) . -
Share of operating profit/(loss) during the year 3,145 (448) . - -
17. STOCK . .
GROUP COMPANY
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 ' £'000 £'000
Land 120,315 134,741 - - -
Properties in construction L " 91,420 42,884 - Co-
Completed properties . 33,124 40,552 - -
Other : 816 1,748 - - -
: ’ ' 245,675 219,925 - . -

Stock of housmg properties comprises acquisition and development expenditure. Capitalised development interest charged to stock -
during the year is £0.8m (2015:£0.25m).

18. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

GROUP . . COMPANY

2016 - 2015 2016 - 2015

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Agency leases ' : : 109 72 - C -
Loans and advances to customers . . 847 . 577 - - -
Mortgages ) . ’ 4,446 6,395 - -
. 5,402 7,044 . - .-

~—s
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19. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR .
. ’ . ' GROUP COMPANY
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 " £'000
Rental debtors 13,263 9,570 - -
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (4,257) (4,228) - -
. 9,006 5,342 - -
Other trade debtors 13,628 21,480 146 165
Loans and advances to customers - 372 - -
Mortgages 365 736 - -
Deferred tax 10,372 14,498 - -
Corporation tax - 407 - -
Capital debtors 25,477 10,023 - -
Dérivative Fin Instruments 4,063 - - -
Other taxes 336 1,519 - -
Amounts due from related undertakings - < - 8,315 209
- Sundry debtors, prepayments and accrued income 16,285 21,223 1,448 2,228
Loans to employees 87 86 14 19
79,619 75,686 9,923 2,621
20. CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS :
: GROUP COMPANY
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank deposits repayable within one month 13,767 33,100 - -
Cash held as security - 4,362 - -
13,767 37,462 - -
*21. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
: : . - - GROUP COMPANY
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Housing and bank loans principal payable within oné year 361,047 52,835 - -
Debentures/stocks principal payable within one year 162,731 1,622 - -
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate 3194
profile and currency risk : - ! - -
Amounts in respect of joint venture.undertaking 9,831 10,815 - -
Recycled Capital Grant Fund ~ 4,839 9,135 - =
Finance leases 1,438 1,383 - -
539,886 78,984 - ~
Interest on housing loans 24,286 30,276 - 4
Deferred government grant * 15,270 13,766- - -
Trade creditors 11,186 9,977 3,220 23
Corporation tax - - . - 604 -
Other taxes 2,284 - 778 - 170
Capital development creditor 27,870 . 32,156 - -
Other creditors and accruals 85,172 50,285 25 1,779
Payments received on account 7,867 6,788 - ~
Prepaid rent 4,388 3,695 - -
Social housing pension liability 1,347 1,200 - -
719,556 227,127 4,627 1,976
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22.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Debt

Debenture stock/bonds

Discount on bond issue

Amounts due to related undertakings

Housing and bank loans - .

Amounts due in respect of joint venture undertakmgs
Revaluation of foreign currency denommated debt

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest
rate profile and currency risk C

Other financial liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
Development creditors

Recycled Capital Grant Fund (note 23)
Disposal Proceeds Fund (note 23)
Debt and other financial liabilities

Less : amounts falling due within one year (note 21)

"

Deferred government grant

. Homebuy grant

Social housing pension liability
Creditors falling due after more than one year

Total creditors falling due after more than one year

The total value of ioans subject to a guarantee is £105,000,000 (2015: £105,621,000).

GROUP COMPANY

2016 2015 2016 2015

£'000 *£'000. £'000 £'000
948,850 950,006 - -
(13,502) (15,204) - -
- - 10,498 11,490
.811,411 . 791,270 .- -
24,190 18,107 - -
(8,434) (24,379) - -
1,762,515 1,719,800 10,498 11,490
51,481 80,414 - -

. Y

3,226 3,387 - -
- 556 - -
50,390 44,240 - -
391 844 - -
54,007 49,027 - -
1,868,003 1,849,241 10,498 11,490
(539,886) (78,984) - -
1,328,117 1,770,257 10,498 _ 11,490
1,033,088 1,028,449 - -
60,977 , 70,503 - -
13,551 13,554 - -
1,107,616 1,112,506 - -
2,435,733 2,882,763 10,498 _ 11,490

All secured loans are supported by specific charges on the Group's housing properties and are repayable at varying rates of

interest from, 0.92063% - 18.03%, in instalments.

Included within housing and bank loans is the amount of £13,515,000 (2015: £15,264,000) which relates to the cost of debt

issue.
Analysis of debt

These are repayable as follows:

In less than one year
In one year or more but less than two years
In two years or more but less than five years

In more than five years
By instalments
Not by instalments
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GROUP COMPANY
2016 . 2015 2016 2015 |
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
539,886 78,984 - -
215,500 452,843 - -
213,648 . 308,800 - -
203,473 233,735 . - -
695,496 774,879 10,498 11,490
1,868,003 1,849,241 10,498 11,490
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23. RECYCLED CAPITAL GRANT AND DISPOSAL PROCEEDS FUND

24,

RECYCLED CAPITAL GRANT FUND

At 1 April 2015
Inputs to RCGF: Grant recycled

" Interest Accrued
Recycling of grant:  New Build
Repayment of grant to the HCA/GLA
At 31 March 2016

Amounts 3 years old or older where repéyment may be required

DISPOSALS PROCEEDS FUND

At 1 April 2015

Inputs to RCGF: Grant recycled
Recycling of grant:  New Build

At 31 March 2016

Amounts 3 years old or older where repayment may be required

Recycled capital grant fund in respect of Scottish subsidiaries

Total Recycled Capital grant fund

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

’

Facilitating access to home ownership
Legal claims

Dilapidations provision

Other provisions

Onerous lease and contracts provision

66

Homes and Communities

Agency Greater London Authority
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 . £'000 £'000 . £'000
28,998 17,217 12,833- . 6,208 .
10,119 11,689 ~.3,870 6,586
128 92 55 39
(7,615) - - -
- - (998) -
31,630 28,998 15,760 12,833
2,814 5,259 1,834 -

Homes and Communities

Agency Greater London Authority:
2016 2015 2015

. £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
844 730 - -
126 - - -
(579) 114 - -
391 844 - -

230 517 - - -

3,000 2,410
50,781 45,085
GROUP
. Provision in  Expenditure At 31 March
At 1 April 2015 year in year © 2016
£'000 _ £'000 £'000 -£'000

513 112 (562) 63

373 46 (97) - 322

81 - (2) 79

99 .10 (14) 95

. 580 - 580

1,066 748 ! (675) 1,139
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The board of
directors has established the Audit & Risk Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The
Committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls,
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in-market conditions
and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

. The Group Audit & Risk Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures, and

reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to risks faced by the Group. The Group Audit & Risk Committee is assisted in its
oversight role by Business Assurance. Business Assurance undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of nsk management controls and procedures,
the results of which are reported to the Audit & Risk Commlttee

The Group's treasury function is responsnble for the management of funds and control of the assocnated risks. Its actnvutles are governed in accordance
with board approved policy and are subject to regular audit. The function does not operate as a profit centre.

The net cash generated from operating activities was £169m (2015: £170m). Bank balances and short term investments were £52.7m at the year
end (2015: £50.3m). In addition to this, the Group had further available facilities of £260.5m (2015: £221.0m) and has established a European
Medium Term Note Programme of £645. 3m (2015 £330.3m) for future fundraising. .

Market risk ]
Market risk comprises interest rate risk, currency nsk and other price risk.

Interest rate risk ) )
The Group's strategy is to contain interest rate risk within 30% of the loan book, with the board exercising a strict contro! over derivative transactions;
currently 84.8% of debt is either held at fixed rates of interest or hedged against adverse rate movements.

- The Group manages its exposure to this risk through a mix of debt at fixed rates of interest and interest rate hedging techniques. °

It is estimated that each quarter percent increase in interest rates would increase interest payable costs by £0.7m per annum. Due to the Jow levels
of cash and cash deposits held, the impact of a change in the interest rate on.interest receivable is insignificant.

Currency tisk

The Group has no overseas subsidiaries and trades only in sterling. The Group has some debt which is denominated in foreign currency. The Group's
strategy is to mitigate currency risk arising from foreign currency denominated debt. This is achieved using.cross currency interest rate swaps.
Currency cash flow exposure is fully hedged, therefore a change in the foreign currency rate would be fully offset by the swaps.

Other price risk
The Group is impacted by general changes in price levels and specifically the Retail Price Index (RPI). This is because some payments to retail bond
holders are directly linked to the RPI.

1t is estimated that each quarter percent increase in RPI would increase interest payable costs by £0.1m per annum.

Credit risk -

Credit risk arises from exposure to the risk of a loss if a counterparty fails to perform its obligations to the Group. This relates to exposures to financial
institutions for investments and cash deposits placed with corporates for credit granted in the course of operations and with individuals for rent
receivable and loans granted.

The Group's credit exposure is virtually all within the United Kingdom,

Whilst the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is best-represented by the carrying value of the individual assets, in most cases the likely
exposure is far less due to the nature of the debt held credit status of counterparties, security held and other actions taken to mlngate the risk to the
Group as described below:
e In respect of investments and deposits placed, the Group has established strict caunterparty credit limits based on the overall level of its
investment activity and the credit quality of the institutions with which investments are placed External-fund managers are employed to manage
investment in government securities which are held as debt reserves to credit enhance certain loan stocks; these reserves are held at levels in
excess of covenanted requirements in order to manage against the risk of short-term movements in financial markets.

e In respect of financial derivative instruments, the Group treasury team currently performs a weekly review of the credit ratings of all its
financial institution counterparties. The credit risk ‘on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is managed through the Group’s policies of
monitoring counterparty exposure, concentratxon of credit nsk through the use of multiple counterparties and the use of counterparties of
investor grade quality. .

o In respect of individuals, tenant arrears are reported each working day and dedicated teams are assigned to maximise debt recovery. In
addition, more than half of arrears are collected directly from local authorities, reducing the Group's exposure to individual tenant’s credit risk.

e Loans made to customers to-purchase Group developed houses are secured by a charge against the relevant property.
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk and refinancing exposure

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are

settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it

will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without

incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Interest rate risk is considered to be a key component of both market and liquidity risk.

The Group is in compliance with all of its financial covenants contained within its loan documents and loan stocks trust deeds. The

Group defines its refinancing risk as loans which do not include some form of amortisation or sinking fund. :
-.The Group utilises short-term revolving bank debt as a consequence of its sales programme Currently 43.7% of debt matures wrthm

the next 5 years, including 16.8% that matures durlng the next financial year.

Hedging

The Group hedges its interest rate risk by taking out interest rate swaps to fix the interest flows at between 4.040% and 6.279%. At
31 March 2016 the Group held interest rate swaps on floating rate debt of £30m. The interest rate swaps are held at fair value as
disclosed in note 22. '

The Group hedges its currency risk by taking out fixed/fixed cross currency interest swaps to fix the GBP value of both interest and
principal repayable under foreign currency denominated debt. As at 31 March 2016 the Group held cross currency interest rate swaps
with a mark to market value of £30.2m. The currency swaps are held at fair value as disclosed in note 22.

Liquidity Risk
The interest rate risk analysis below is considered to be a key component of the Group's liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk of financial instrume‘nts'

For each class of interest bearing financial asset and financial liability, the following tables indicate the range of interest rates effective
at the balance sheet date, the carrying amount on the balance sheet and the periods in which they reprice, if earlier than the matunty
date.

Interest rate risk of financial assets as at 31 March 2016

Effective GROUP
interest  Total  within 1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
rate amount year years years years years years
. %% £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000
Fixed asset investments: ' N
Fixed rate 2.80% . 42,257 - - - - - 42,257
Floating rate 0.33% 46,312 - - - - - 46,312 -
Share capital 150 - - . - - - 150
Amounts due from joint venture undertakings 172,177 15,574 19,321 16,731 34,194 16,862 69,495
Investment in shared equity 101,529 20,819 16,830 _12,842 9,809 9,644 31,585
362,425 36,393 36,151 29,573 44,003 26,506 189,799
Current asset investments 13,767 13,767 - - - - ' -
Cash at bank and in hand 38,910 38,910 - - - - -
Long term debtors 5,402 381 654 434 434 435 3,064
420,504 89,451 36,805 30,007 44,437 26,941 192,863
All financial assets carry a fixed interest rate unless otherwise shown.
Comparative figures as at 31 March 2015 were as follows:
Effective GROUP
interest Total Within 1 1-2 2-3 34 4-5 Over 5
rate * amount year years years years years years
% £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed asset investments: :
Fixed rate 3.10% 40,857 - N oo = - 40,857
Floating rate 0.31% 36,387 - - - - - 36,387
Share capital 150 - - - ’ - - 150
Amounts due from joint venture undertakings 155,972 10,087 17,999 15,586 31,854 15,709 64,737
Investment in shared equity 45,255 9,280 7,502 5,724> 4,372 4,298 14,079
. ‘ 278,621 19,367 25,501 21,310 36,226 20,007 156,210
Current asset investments 37,462 ~ 37,462 - - - - ) -
Cash at bank and in hand 12,815 12,815 - - - - -
Long term debtors 8,049 1,000 876 610 610 611 4,342
336I947 70l644 26I377 21,920 36,836 20,618 160,552

Trade and other receivables are not included in the above tables as they are non-interest bearing and are not sub]ect to interest rate
risk.
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMEN'(I'S (Continued)

Interest rate risk of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2016

Effective i GROUP .
interest - Total Within 1 2-3° 4-5 Over 5
rate amount year 1-2 years years 3-4 years years years
% £'000 = £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Stocks and bonds: : .
Fixed rate 5.50% 1,473,734 247,817 63,728 63,728 35,185 35,401 1,027,875
Discount on bond issue (13,515) . - - : - -o. (13,515)
Housing loans:” . :
Fixed rate 4.81% 810,143 134,580 32,953 199,107 110,205 8,403 324,895
Floating rate 1.89% 86,000 9,644 11,425 12,958 5411 4,558 42,004
Index linked 3.23% 5,373 843 906 906 906 906 906
. 901,516 145,067 45,284 212,971 116,522 13,867 367,805
Other financial liabilities 54,008 2,638 4,774 10,424 18,661 17,267 243
Derivative financial instruments held .
to manage interest rate risk 47,418 (4,063) 3,137 3,155 . 96 2,989 42,104 -
2,463,160 391,459 116,923 290,278 _ 170,464 69,524 1,424,512
All financial liabilities carry a fixed interest rate unless otherwise shown.
Cash collateral held under the terms of the swap arrangements was £6.59m (2015: £25.5m)
Comparative figures as at 31 March 2015 were as follows:
Effective GROUP
interest Total Within 1. 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
rate amount year 1-2  years years years years years
% £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Stocks and bonds: ) .
Fixed rate - 5.54% 1,672,385 2,532 254,133 254,133 35,874 36,082 1,089,631
Discount on bond issue (15,205) - - - - - (15,205)
Housing loans:
Fixed rate 5.82% 786,102 50,501 266,659 41,400 32,637 97,196 297,709
Floating rate 1.96% 219,234 © 15914 - 16,168 13,058 13,100 11,006 149,988
Index linked 4.71% 6,213 743 843 952 1,073 1,209 1,393
1,011,549 67,158 283,670 55,410 46,810 109,411 449,090
Other financial liabilities 46,795 8,170 8,098 10,373 19,346 180 628
Derivative financial instruments held ) ) .
to manage interest rate risk 80,488 3,194 3,165 4,609 4,629 3,513 61,378
2,796,012 81,054 _ - 549,066 324,525 106,659 149,186 1,585,522

Trade and other'payables are not included in the above tables as they are non-interest bearing and are not subject to interest rate

risk.

Borrowing facilities

At 31 March 2016 the Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities expiring as follows: GROUP:
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
In one year or less, or on demand - -
In more than one year but not more than two years . 11,528 221,000
In more than two years ' 249,000 -
P 260,528 221,000 .

£56.8m of the undrawn committed borrowing facilities require fixed charge security to be placed with lenders (2015: £56.0m). .
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying values and fair values of all of the Group's financial instruments. None of the
financial assets or liabilities have been reclassified during the year.

GROUP

Note 2016 2015

Book value Fair value  Book value * Fair value
£'000 £'000 . £'000 .£'000

Financial assets o . ’ : o ’ o :
Fixed asset investments ’ 14 and 15 783,371 787,062 - 752,999 = . 753,003
Current asset investments ' 20 13,767 13,767 37,462 37,462
Cash at bank and in hand 38910 - 38,910 12,815 - 12,815
Long term debtors _ . 18 109 109 72 72
Mortgages and loans 18: . 5,293 5,293 8,080 - - 8,080
Financial assets falling due within one year 19 52,626 52,626 36,931 36,931

894,076 897,767 848,359 848,363

Included in the table above are rental debtors of £13.3m (2015: £9.6m). The debtors with arrears less than 30 days totalled £4.7m
(2015: £3.6m), arrears more than 30 days but less than 90 days totalled £5.5m (2015: £3.8m) and arrears more than 90 days
. totalled £3.1m (2015 £2. 2m) Also included in the table above is a provision of £4.3m (2015 £4.2m) relating to these rental

debtors.

Financial liabilities : GROUP )

Debenture stocks and bonds 22 948,850 1,087,562 950,006 1,112,253 -
Discount on bond issue . 22 (13,502) (13,502) (15,205) (15,205)
Housing loans ) 22 811,411 811,411 791,270 791,270
Amounts owed to joint venture undertakings . . - 22 24,190 24,190 18,107 18,107 -
Revaluation of foreign currency denominated debt - 22 (8,434) (8,434) (24,379) (24,379)
Derivative financial instruments held to manage interest

rate risk 22 51,481 ) 51,481 80,488 © 80,488
Other financial liabilities . "2 54,007 - 54,007 49,027 49,027
Financial liabilities falling due within one year 21 - 632,100 632,100 84,572 84,572

2‘500,103 2,638,815 1933886 2 096,133

Of the financial liabilities above £51.5m (2015: £80 5m) are derivative financial instruments with the remaunmg amounts being
measured at amortised cost. :

Investments in debt ann equity securities

The fair vaiue of held-to-maturity investments is determined by reference to thelr quoted bld price at the balance sheet date. The
fa|r value of held-to-maturity mvestments after initial recognition is determmed for disclosure purposes only.

Financial assets falling due within,one year, long term debtors and mortgages

The fair value of these assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of intereét at the
balance sheet date if the effect is material.

Financial liabilities

The fair value of trade and other payables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, dlscounted at the market rate of
interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material.

Cash at bank and in hand

The fair value of cash is estimated as its carrying amount where the cash is repayable on demand. Where it is not repayable on .
‘"demand then the fair value is estlmated at the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the

balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Interest-bearing borrowings

Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest at the balance sheet date.

‘ Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes. Those quotes are tested for reasonableness by discounting estimated
future cash .flows based on the terms and matunty of each contract and using market interest rates for a similar mstrument at the
measurement date

~

: Fair value hierarchy

The measurement of fair value for financial instruments has been done using a level 2 valuation technique. The definition of this
technique per the standard is a valuation using inputs other than quoted market prices included within level.1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. : : f

PENSION OBLIGATIONS

The pension costs for Places for People Group relate to nine schemes of which employees and former employees are members
Details of each scheme are set out below.

The Places for People Group Stakeholder Scheme

Employees joining the Group from 1 September 2004 have the option of joining a defined contribution. retirement benefit scheme -

“the Places for People Stakeholder Pension Plan and Group Life Assurance Scheme.

The total cost charged to the profit and loss account of £4,568,000 (2015: £4,444,000) represents contributions payab!e to this
scheme by the company at rates specified in the rules of the plan. As at 31 March 2016, contributions of £393,000 (2015: £385,000)
due in respect of the current reporting period had not been paid over to the scheme.

Group defined benefit scheme liabilities : .
! 2016 2015

. . £000 £000
Places for People Group Retirment Benefit Scheme R 51,422 52,544
PFPL (Holdings) Limited . . 431 - 699
Residential Management Group section of the Citrus Pension Plan (293) 121

51,560 53,364

The Places for People Group Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit. penéion arrangement called the Places for People Group 'Re'tirement Benefit Scheme (the
scheme).

The scheme is an independently administered defined benefit scheme based on final pensionable salary. The scheme was closed to
new members as at 1 September 2004 and was closed to future accrual in October 2010. The most recent formal actuarial vaiuation
was completed as at 31 March 2015 and has been updated by the independent actuary to take account of the requlrements of FRS
102. The Group expects to contribute £5,700,000 to the scheme during the year to 31 March 2017..

The major assumptions used by the actuary were: ' . ' GROUP
’ 2016 2015
Price inflation ) ) . 3.05% - 3.05%
. Rate of increase in pensions in payment LP15% . -3.00% 3.00%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment LP12.5% : ’ 2.25% 2.25%

Discount rate 3.70% 3.50%

The mortality assumption used at 31 March 2016 is 115% S2PA CMI_2014 projections with long term rate of improvements of 1.0%.
The mortality assumption used at 31 March 2015 was 115% S1PA CMI_2013 projections with long term improvement of 1%.

The actual return on the scheme's assets over the period to the review date; was a loss of £201,000.
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued) . ,
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet at 31 March 2016 GROUP
- Value at 31 Value at 31 March
- ‘March 2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Fair value of assets 134,180 136,147
Present value of the scheme's liabilities (185,602) (188,691)
Deficit in the scheme (51,422) (52,544) -
The major categories of assets as a percentage of total assets are as follows:
: ' 2016 2015
Diversified growth funds 34% 34%
Equities 19% 21%
Gilts 31% 30%
Corporate bonds 15% 14%
Cash 1% 1%
100% 100%
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Interest on assets , 4,734 5,504
Interest on scheme liabilities -- (6,528) (7,079)
Amounts charged to other finance costs (1,794) (1,575)
Remeasurements récognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain / (loss) in pension scheme 289 (18,377)
The change in the fair value of the plan assets is analysed as follows: GROUP
’ 2016 2015
: £'000 £000
As at 1 April _ ' 136,147 118,694
Interest on assets 4,734 5,918
Company contributions 2,625 2,560
Contribution by scheme participants
Benefits paid (4,393) (3,224)
Return on assets less interest : (4,935) 12,199
As at 31 March 134,178 136,147
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The change in the present value of the defined benefit obligaﬁons is analysed as follows:

2016 2015

£'000 £000
As at 1 April R ’ . 188,691 153,846
Interest costs . 6,528 7,079 -
Benefits paid S (4,393) (3,224)
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation ) - 2,696 B
Gains from changes to demographic assumptions . : . (833) 30,990
Losses from changes to financial assumptions ) (7,087) -
As at 31 March _ - 185,602 188,691
Amounts for current and previous four accounting periods

2016 2015

, £000 £000

Present value of defined benefit obllgatlon (185,602) (188,691)
Scheme assets 134,178 136,147
Deficit : o : (51,424) (52,544)
Experience gains and (losses) on scheme liabilities . )
Changes in assumptions used to value scheme liabilities ) - 7,087 (30,990)
Experience adjustments on scheme assets (4,935) 12,613

.The Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS)

The Group participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The
scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.

It is not possible for the Group to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme.
Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December 2005. This,
together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set
out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK. ’ o

The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement’. Therefore the Group is potentially liable for other participating employers' .
obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating
employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.

A fuil actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This actuarial valuation was certified
on 23 November 2015 and showed assets of £3,123m, liabilities of £4,446m and a deficit of £1,323m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the
trustees and the participating employers have agreed that addltlonal contributions will be paid, in combination from all employers, to the
scheme as follows:
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. 26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) (Continued)

Deficit contributions

Tier 1
From 1 April 2016 to 30.September 2020:

£40. 6m per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 1st Apnl)

Tier 2
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2023:

£28.6m per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 1st April)

Tier 3
From 1 April 2016 to 30. September 2026:

£32.7m per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 3. 0% each year on 1st April) .

Tier 4

£31.7m per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 1st April :

From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2026:

Note that the scheme’s previous valuation was carried out v\;ith an effective date of 30 September 2011; this valuation was certified on 17 December 2012
and showed assets of £2,062m, liabilities of £3,097m and a deficit of £1,035m. To eliminate this fundmg shortfall, payments consnsted of the Tier 1,2 &3

deficit contributions.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement the company recognisesAa liability for this obligation.
The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present
value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost.

Present value of provision

reconciliation of opening and closing provisions

Provision at start of period

Unwinding of the discount factor (mterest expense)

Deficit contribution paid

Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions
Remeasurements - amendments to the contnbutlon schedule’
Provision at end of period

Income and éxpena?tvre fmpact

Interest expense
Remeasurements ~ impact of any change in assumptions
Remeasurements ~ amendments to the contribution schedule

Rate of discount

2016 2015
£000 ~  £000

3,183 2,295

2016 2015
-£'000 £000
2,295 2,341
a1 7
(238) (231)
1) 118
1,106

3,183 — 2,295 .

12016 - . 2015
£'000 ~ £'000
‘a1 . 67"
(21) 118
1,106 -
1,126 185
2015 -+ 2015
% per % per
annum annum
2.06 1.92

The discount rates shown above are the equnvalent single discount rates WhICh when used to d:scount the future recovery plan contnbutxons due, would
glve the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to dlscount the same recovery plan contributions.
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The Scottish Houéihg Associations' Pension Scheme - defined benefit section ("the Scheme") . -

The Group participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provrdes benefitsto some 155 non-associated employers. The scheme is & -
defined benefit scheme in the UK.

It is not possible for the Group to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme. Therefore it
accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into fdrce on 30 December 2005. This, together
. with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporung Council, set out the
framework for funding defined benefit occupational pensmn schemes in the UK.

The scheme is classified as a. ‘last-man standing arrangement. Therefore the Group is potentially liable for other participating employers'
obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers
are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme

A full actuarial valuation for, t.he scheme was carried out at 30 September 2012. This actuarial valuation. showed assets of £394m, liabiiities of
£698m and a deficit of £304m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees and the participating employers have agreed that additional
contributions will be paid to the scheme as follows:

Deficit contributions

From 1 April 2014 to 30 September 2027: . . £26,304,000 per annum
. (payable manthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April)

The recovery plan contributions are allocated to each participating employer in line with their estimated share of the scheme liabilities.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement the company recognises a liability for this
obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the
deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detaoled in these d:sclosures The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a
finance vost. .

PRESENT VALUES OF PROVISION

2016 2015 . 2014
) £'000 £'000 © . £'000
Present value of .provision ) - ! 11,715 12,459 12,123
RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING PROVISIONS
’ 2016 ‘ 2015
. . £000 £'000
Provision at start of period : . . 12,459 12,123 -
Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) 264 397
Deficit contribution paid . . ’ . (962) (935)
Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions . _(46) 874.
Provision at end of period N . 11715 12 459
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE IMPACT
2016 2015
~ £'000 £000
Interest expense ’ . - 264 397
Remeasurements ~ impact of any change in assumptions . {46) 874
218 1,271
ASSUMPTIONS _ ,
- 2016 2015 2014
» % per annum % per annum % per annum
" Rate of discount : - 2.29 . 222 3.42

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future recovery plan contributions
due, Would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same recovery plan contributions.
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Cdntinuéd)

o

The Scottish Housing Associations' Pension Scheme - defined contribution section ("the DC Scheme”)

From 1 April 2014 membershlp of the DC Scheme was opened.to all staff members. All new employees ]ommg the Scottish Companies
will now be auto enrolled into the DC Scheme, to which the Scottlsh Companies contribute.

The total cost charged to the profit and loss account of £293,948 (2015: £252,680) represents contributions payable to this scheme by
the Scottish Companies at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. As at 31 March 2016 contributions of £24,865 (2014: £23,642)
due in respect of the financial year had not been paid over to the scheme. .

The Places for People Leisure Group Retirement Benefit Scheme

PFPL (Holdings) Limited operates a defined benefit scheme. On 1 May 2004 the company transferred its assets from the O.C.S. Group
Transfer of Undertakings pension scheme into a separate defined benefit scheme. This is a separate trustee fund administered by
professional investment managers. As at 31 March 2016 there were 29 active members (2015: 31) of the scheme. Partlculars of the

pension scheme are shown below.

The liabilities set out in this note have been calculated based on the results of the full Scheme Funding Assessment as of 30 April 2013,
updated to 31 March 2016, allowing for additional benefit accrual and benefits paid. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, the related current service cost and past service costs were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The compény has agreed a funding plan with the trustees of the scheme, whereby ordinary confribuﬁons are made into the Scheme
based on a percentage of active employees' salary. Additional contributions are agreed with the trustees to reduce the funding deficit

where necessary.

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out at 31 March 2016 showed that the market value of the scheme’s assets was £3,902,000
and that the actuarial value of ‘those assets represented 90% of the benefits that had accrued to members after allowing for expected

future increases in earnings.

The disclosures set out below are based on calculations carried out as at 31 March 2016 by an independent qualified actuary. The
results of the calculations and assumptions adopted are shown below.

The amounts recognised-in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of scheme assets

Defined benefit liability-

Total expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Current service cost
Net interest on the net defined benefit liabiltiy

Total

" GROUP
2016 2015
£'000 £000
(4,333) (4,485)
3,902 3,786
(431) (699)
2016 . 2015
£000 £000
169 135
17 8
186 143
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS\(Continued)

" Total amounts taken to Other Comprehensive Income

Actual return on scheme assets - gains and (losses)
less: amounts included in interest on the net defined benefit liability
Remeasurement gains and (losses) ]
-Return on scheme assets exluding interest income ;
. Remeasurement gains and (losses) :
-Actuarial gains and (losses)

Remeasurement gain/(loss) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
\

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation o .
Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by scheme participants

Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Expected return on assets
Actuarial gain/(loss)

- Contributions by employer
Contributions by scheme participants
Benefits paid

PFPL (Holdings) Limited expects to contribute £159,000 to its defined benefit pension scheme in 2017.

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

v

- UK Equities
Overseas Equities
UK government
Corporate Bonds
Other fixed Interest
Property
Hedge & Structure Funds
Cash/Trustee bank account
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2016 2015
£'000 £000
(123) 242
(125) (151)
(248) 91
408 (589) .
160 (498) -
2016 2015
£'000 £000
4,485 3,636
(89) 132
- 169 162
142 33
(408) 589
34 (67)
4,333 4,485
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
3,786 3,305
125 213
(248) 29
294 273
34 33
(89) (67)
3,902 3,786
2016 2015
39.20% 40.50%
27.90% 26.10%
2.10% 2.20%
5.00% 6.70%
7.60% 8.20%
4.60% . 4.60%
11.70% 10.30%
" 1.90% 1.40%
100.00% 100.00%
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued),

For the pdrposes of the FRS 102 disclosure only, the assets of the scheme have been taken at Imarket value and the liabilities
have been calculated using the following principal actuarial assumptions at 31 March 2016.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

' 2016 _ 2015
Rate of RPI inflation 3.0% 3.0% -
Rate of increase in salaries . e . B ) © 3.0% . 4.0%
Rate of increase in pensions payments ‘ 2.0% 2.0%
Discount rate ) 3.5% 3.2%
Rate of CPI inflation - 2.0% 2.0%

The Places for People Leisure Limited Group Personal Pension Plan

PFPL (Holdings) Limited operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its directors and employees, the assets of which.
are held independently in a separately administered fund. The company also makes contributions to the personal pensions of a -
number of its directors. During the year the contributions payable amounted to £136, 000 The unpaid contributions at the year
end included within other creditors amount to £11,000.

The Touchstone Gro'up‘Personal Pension Scheme .

Touchstone Corporate Property Services Limited operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its directors and
employees, the assets of which are held independently in a separately administered fund. The company also makes
contributions to the personal pensions of a number of its directors. During the year the contributions payable amounted to.
£184,279 (2015: £206,448). The unpaid contributions at the year end included within other creditors amount to £33,304
(2015: £30,521).

Residential Management Group Limited Personal Pension Scheme

Residential Management Group Limited operates a defined contribution scheme for certain employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the company. The pension costs charge represents contributions payable by the
company to the funds and amounted to a charge of £216,000 for the 12 month period to 31 March 2016 (2015: £163,000).

Residential Management Group Limited Retirement Benefit Scheme

Residential Management Group Limited also operates a defined benefit pension scheme, the Residential Management Group
‘section (formerly the WMS Haywards section) of the Citrus Pension Plan ("Citrus™), with assets held in separately administered
funds. The scheme provides retirement benefits on the basis of members’ final salary. . .

An actuarial valuation ofthe Citrus scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The ma]or assumptions used by the actuaries
are shown below:

2016 : 2015
Rate of increase in salaries . h 3.2% 3.3%
Discount rate ’ : : 3.6% 3.4%
Rate of inflation (RPI) ) . . 3.2% 3.3%
Rate of inflation (CPI) . ) ' 2.2% 2.3%
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Mortality assumptions:
In accordance with the published mortality table:
.Males: PMA92 medium cohort (year of birth projection)
Females: PFA92 medium cohort (year of birth projection)
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows: . GROUP
; . _ ' '
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Assets. 4,444 4,280
Liabilities (4,151) (4,401)
Net pension asset/(liability)_ 293 (121)
The fair value of the assets in the scheme and the expected rates of return were:
2016 2015
Long term Long term rate
rate of return Value of return Value
expected expected
% £'000 % £'000
. Assets analysed as: ' A
Equities 3.60 2,608 3.35 2,490
Corporate bonds 3.60 1,462 '3.35 1,398
Bonds 3.60 356 3.35 362
Cash 3.60 18 3.35 30
Total market value of assets ‘ - 4,444 4,280
Present value of scheme liabilities (4,151) (4,401)
293 (121) .

The expected return on assets for Citrus is based on the long term expectation for each asset at the beginning of the period.

Movement in liabilities during the year:

Sc_heme liabilities at beginning of year
Movement in year:

Cﬁrreqt service charge -
Administration costs

Interest cost

Contributions by scheme participants
Benefits and expensés paid

Actuarial (gains) / losses

Scheme liabilities at end of year
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2016 2015
- £000 - £000
4,401 " 3,551
122 93
25 24
147 154
28 29
(61) (65)
(511) 615

- 4,151

4,401
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

GROUP

Movement in assets during the year: ' - 2016 2015

~ ‘ . £'000 £'000
Scheme assets at beginning of year . 4,280 ‘ 3,729
Movement in year: .
Expected return on scheme assets : 147 210
Contributions by scheme participants o . . 28 .28
Employer contributions 205 . . 194
Benefits paid (154) (40)
Actuarial gains o (61) 159
Scheme assets at end of year _ o 4,445 ‘ 4,280
Actual return on scheme assets:

.. Expected return on scheme assets ‘ 147 210
Actuarial gains on scheme assets (61) . 159
Actual return on scheme assets . 86 369
Analysis of amount charged to operating profit:

Current service charge ' . 122 93
Administration costs - . 25 24
Total operating charge ‘ . 147 117
Analysis of amount charged to other finance income:

Interest income on scheme assets i ‘ 147 166
Interest on scheme Iiabvilities ' (147) (154)
Net interest on net defined benefit liability - 12
Total amount charged to the statement of comprehensive income:

Total operating charge B ’ 147 117
Net interest on net defined benefit liability ) ’ : - (12)
Net interest on net deﬁhed benefit liability g © 147 105
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26. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

History of experience gains and losses:

) 2016 2015
£'000 £000
Scheme assets amount : o . 4,444 4,280°
Scheme liabilities amount ’ ' (4,151) (4,401)
Surplus/(deficit) in scheme - ‘ 293 (120)
- Experience adjustment on scheme liabilities amount 511 . (615) ‘
Experience adjustment on scheme assets amount ' . (61) 159
27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
. GROUP COMPANY
¢ . ) 2016 | 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Capital expenditure that has been authorised and contracted for )
but has not been provided for in the financial statements 32,659 33,968 - . -

Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the
board of directors - 487,974 172,698 - -

The above commitments will be financed in accordance with the treasury management policy which is detailed in the operating
review and note 25 of these financial statements.

(
The commitments under non-cancellable operating leases for the following year, analysed accordmg to"the period in which éach
lease expires, are set out below. .
GROUP COMPANY

Motor Motor Motor Motor
Ltand and vehicles & Land and vehicles & vehicles & vehicles &
buildings equipment buildings equipment equipment equipment
2016 2016 2015 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 ~ £'000 £'000
within one year 10,366 |, 2,456 10,430 ° - 1,366 57 104
between one and five years 43,195 4,763 43,349 2,346 41 65
after five years 166,326 -- 181,192 - - -
219,887 7,219 234,971 3,712 98 169 -

. 28, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016 the Group had a contingent liability totalling £1m (2015 £1m) in.respect of its entire holding of 8 3/4%
Treasury stock 2017: The stock is held by the Trustee for Funding for Homes Limited, sub]ect to certain rights, and could be sold
should a fellow Group borrower fail to service the interest or repay the stock.

The Group is party to certain legal actions arising in the ordinary course of 'business. While the outcome of these cases is
uncertain, the directors believe, on the basis of advice received, that no material loss to the Group will occur. Having made due
enquiries the directors are not aware of any further contingent liabilities.

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no relatéd party transactions during the year.
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30. DISCLOSURE OF GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

' Places for People Group Limited is the parent company of the Group and is required by statute to prepare consolidated accounts. Afl the Group related undertakings
are incorporated in England and Wales, or in Scotland, and are set out below:

Subsidiaries

Allenbmld Limited
Alflenbuild (Sauth East) lelted
Blueroom Investments Limited
Blueroom Properties Limited
Braintree District Leisure COmmumty Association Ltd
Castle Estates Relocation Services Limited
Castle Rock Edinvar Housing Association Limited
Cecil Square Cleaning Co Limited
Christchurch Estates Limited
CPM Asset Management (Northern) Limited
Cotman Housing Association Limited
Cornerstonezed Plymouth Limited
Curzon Street Management Limited
David Glass Associates Limited .
DC Leisure (Eastleigh) Limited
East Hampshire Leisure Community Association Limited
Emblem Homes Limited
£ & S Property Management Limited
Girlings Retirement Rentals Limited
Gross Fine
Gross Fine (Holdings) Limited
Gross Fine Management Limited
Gross Fine Services Limited
Haiton Leisure Community Association Limited
Horsham Leisure Community Association Limited
Hertford Company Secretaries Limited
HNJV Limited
JVCO Limited
Leisure & Community Partnership Limited
Matilda’s Academy Limited
Matilda's Blanket Limited
Matilda's Planet Group Limited
Matilda's Planet Manufacturing Limited
Matilda’s Radiant Heating Limited
Matilda’s Warm Homes Limited
Matildasplanet Houses Limited
Matildasplanet Housing Salutions Limited
Matildasplanet Thermal Systems Limited
Neighbourhub Limited
North Norfolk Leisure Community Association Limited
Officers Field Development Lxmlted
PFP Capital Limited
PFP Capital Services Limited
Liberty Retirement Limited
PFPESCO 1 Limited
PFPL Deveiopments Limited
PFPL (Holdings) Limited
PFPL Projects (Hinckley) Limited
PFPL Projects (Gosport) Limited
PFPL Projects (Sandwell) Limited
PFPL Projects (Sparkhill) Limited
PFPL Projects (Wyre Forest) Limited
Place Builders Limited
Place Investments Limited
Places For People (Warwick Gates) Limited
Places For People Arrangements 1 Limited
Places For Peopfe Capital Markets Plc
_ Places For People Developments Limited
Places for People Devetopments (PRS} Umlted
Places For People Energy Limited

82 -

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Places For People Energy Supplies Limited -

Places For People Financial Services Limited

Places For People Green Services Limited .

Places For People Group Limited <
Places for People Homes Limited

Places for People Intemational Limited -

Places For People Landscapes Limited

Places For People Leisure Community Association Limited
Places for People Leisure Limited

Places for People Leisure Management Limlted

Places for People Living+ Limited

Places For People Neighbourhoods

Places For People Pension Car Limited

Places For People Pension Trustee Limited

Places for People Placemaking Limited .

Places for People Placemaking & Regeneration Limited
Places For People Retirement Limited

Places for People Retirement (Stow) Limited

Places for People Scotland Limited

Places For People Scotfand (GP) Limited

Places for People Scotland — Care and Support Limited
Places For People SPV 1 Limited

Places For People SPV 2 Limited

Places For People Tattenhall Limited

" Places For Peaple Treasury plc

Places For People Treasury Services Limited
Places For People Ventures Limited

Places for People Ventures Operations Limited
Resident Association Management Limited
Residential Management Group Limited
Residential Management Property Limited
Retirement Rentals Limited .
Retirement Rentals Nominee Company 1 Limited
RMG Asset Management Limited .
RMG Client Services Limited

RMG JC Limited

Sam Jones (Clubs} Lirnited

Shrubhill Investments Limited

Simmonds & Partners Limited

.The Engine Yard Edinburgh Ltd
- Touchstone Corporate Property Services Limited

Upper Strand Developments Limited
Wood & Co. (Surveyors)-Limited
Wood Carewell Managements Limited
Wood Group Trustees Limited

Wood Insurance Brokers Limited
Wood Management Trustees Limited
Wood Managements Group Limited
Wood Managements Limited

Wood Trustees Limited

Wyre Forest Leisure Community Association Limited
ZeroC Group (2008) Limited

Zero C Holdings Limited
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30. DISCLOSURE OF GROUP UNDERTAKINGS (Continued)

Joint Ventures/Partnerships

'Boxed Energy Limited

Brooklands Milton Keynes LLP

Cityscape Edinburgh LLP

East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Holdings) Ltd

East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 1) LimitedA

East Wick & Sweetwater Projécts (Phase 2) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 3) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 4) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase S) Limited
' East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 6) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 7) Limited
Lakeshore Timber LLP
Lighthouse Court LLP
MDH Group Limited
Namegrace Limited
Placeford Properties LLP
Places for People Leisure Partnerships
* Places for People Scottish Limited Partnership

Regulated and non-regulated entities

PFP Polish Real Estate Investment LP
PFP Retirement Investment LP

PFP US JV LLP

PFP US 1V (Nominee 1) Limited
Ruskin Square Phase One LLP
Shaping Aberdeen Housing LLP
Smith’s Dock LLP

Tattenhall Care Village LLP

Urban Splash Park Hill Limited
Warwick Gates LLP

Stow Care Village LLP

ECV Partnerships (Stow) Limited
ZeroC Acheson Consortium Limited
PFP PRS Investment LP

Shrubhill NHT LLP

PFP US Residential (Park Hill) Limited
Global Habitat Housing SL

Places for People Group, a regulated entity, allocates overheads to three non-regulated entities within the Group. This is mainly in respect of an
administration charge for finance, information technology, facilities management and human resources services.

The table below shows the Group overhead allocation to each of the three entities.

Places for People Financial Services Limited
Places for People Landscapes Limited
Places far People Scotland Limited

31. ACQUISITIONS

2016 2015

£'000 £000
115 9%
252 243
115 - 113
482 . 452

32

On 31 January 2016 the Group Limited acquired the remaining issued share capital of Allenbuild Limited having previously aquired 50% of the.
issued share capital of this company. Net assets were acquired of £224,000 for consideration of £1,382,000 giving rise to goodwill of £1,158,000.
The book value of net assets aquired did not differ s:gnlﬁcantly from their fair value.

O_h 17 June 2015, the Group acquired 100% of the unincorporated business of F&S Property Management for consideration of £1,016,000, which
had net assets of £10,000, giving rise to goodwill of £1,006,000. The book value of net assets did not differ significantly from their fair value.

On 1 April 2015 the Group acquired the entire share capital of Irridium Limited for £100,000 giving rise to-goodwill of the same amount, the book |
value of net assets aquired did not differ significantly from their fair value.

LOTTERY GRANT FUNDING

At 31 March 2016 £28,000 of lottery funds was held in cash at bank and in hand. £570,000 was held in current asset investments.
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33. HOUSING STOCK
The Group owns or manages 152,783 housing propemes, a breakdown of these housing properties is shown below:
GROUP
2016 - 2015
. No. . No.
Social Housing manage_d '
- General Needs Housing . 40,209 41,348
- Affordable Housing ) . 1,018 725
- Supported Housing o . . ) . ) 1,370 . 1,583
- Housing for Older people . . 4,591 . 3,680
- Low cost home ownership accommodation ) 4,850 4,630
Total Social housing managed o . ) 52,038 51,966
" - Market rent 22,962 21,100
- Managed services 67,128 57,660
- Leased housing - freehold only . 6,000 5,870
- Armed Forces & Student accommodation . 2,182 2,182
- Staff _ : , : 93 106
Total housing managed ) : , : 150,403 138,884
Total housing owned but managed by another body o 2,380 1,998
Total housing owned or managed ) : o 152,783 140,882
Garages, commercial premises and other non-residential units managed or serviced 8,054 8,678
Total residential and non-residential units‘managed or serviced ‘ 160,837 149,560
As disclosed in the table above, The Group manages 52,038 social housing units (2015: 51,966).
A breakdown of these social housing properties is shown below:
Social housing .
- General Needs Housing . 36,117 37,083
- Affordable Housing ' ) 956 769
- Supported Housing” 4 C ' 2,553 2,612
- Housing for Older people . - s i 4,213 3,649 -
- Low cost home ownership accommodation ‘ 4,973 4,577
Social housing stock owned ) . 48,812 48,690

The Group manages 4,902 social housing residential units (2015: 4,647) which are owned by other Registered Providers,
The Group owns 1,676 sacial housing units (2015: 1,371) that are managed by another body.

34. TRANSITION TO FRS 102
Explanation of transition to FRS 162 from previous UK GAAP
These are the Group's first financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS 102 and the SORP 2014.

]

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

In preparing the FRS 102 and SORP 2014 financial statements, the Group has ad]usted amounts previously reported in accordance W|th
previous UK GAAP and SORP 2010.

An explanation of how. the transition for previous UK GAAP and SORP 2010 to FRS 102 and SORP 2014 has affected the Group’s
financial position and performance is set out below
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34. TRANSITION TO FRS 102 (continued)

Changes for FRS 102 and SORP 2014
3)  Housing properties and %n—\mi\.:m:» grants

*Social housing grant can no longer be offset against housing properties within fixed assets under section 24 of FRS 102, Instead, as
housing properties are now held at depreciated cost, the grant is measured under the accrual method and amortised over the life of the
noacc:mzﬁ assets m:n is :m_n within Qma_noa. - '

The net impact across the group 3_‘ the change in the treatment on the Statement of Financial Position at 1 April 2014 (the date of
transition) is an increase in revenue reserves of £41,594,000.

In the year to 31 March 2015, grant amortisation income of £13,762,000 has been recognised in the income and expenditure account,
alongside £8,332,000 extra depreciation with a net impact of £5,429,000

In addition HomeBuy n_.m:n of £51,221,000 at 1 April 2014 (the date of am:m_ao:v has been allocated to creditors due in more than one
year rather than being presented alongside the Home Buy Investment.
.

b)  Office properties, de d cost and g grant.

Section 35 of FRS 102 allows first time adopters to elect to measure a class of fixed assets at fair value as a deemed cost, with gains
taken to a revaluation reserve and losses recognised in income and expenditure. As there is a revaluation, the government grant
associated with these properties is recognised under the performance method when grant conditions have been met.

The Group has elected to use this option and the effect on the statement of financial position at 1 April 2014 (the date of transition) is a

reduction in the carrying value of office properties of £11,413,000 with an equivalent reduction in revenue reserves at the date of
transition.

In the year to 31 March 2015, the depreciation and impairment charge has reduced by £265,000.
¢)  Investment property *
Section 16 of FRS 102 requires that properties previously held at depreciated cost less grant, but meeting the definition of investment
_properties should be separately disclosed at fair value, with gains and losses recognised in the income and expenditure account.
The effect of this change in measurement on the Statement of Financial Position at 1 April 2014 (the date of transition) is a reduction in
revenue reserves of £6,515,000.
In the year to 31 March 2015, there was a decrease of £641,000 reducing the surplus for the year as a result of this change
d)  Retirement benefits

FRS 102 section 28 requires the recagnition of the net present value of any contractual agreements to make additional payments for 8
past deficit.

The association has such an arrangement in respect of some employees being ‘members of the Social Housing Pension Scheme.

The effect on the Statement of Financial Position at 1 April 2014 (the date of transition) is the recognition .oﬁ a liability of £14,464,000,
with an equivalent reduction in revenue reserves.

In the year to 31 March 2015, operating costs :m<m been reduced by £290,000 to reflect the ma ity movement in the year and the
interest expense relating to the unwind of the discount on the deficit reduction payments liability.
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34. TRANSITION TO FRS102 (continuéd)

e)  Taxation

FRS 102 section 29 does not allow the recognition of a deferred tax asset in respect of the capitalisation of interest charges.
The effect on the Statement of Financial Position at 1 April 2014 (the date of transmon) is the reduction in debtors of £5,100,000 with an equivalent

reduction in revenue reserves.
In addition the recognitién of a liability for the SHPS pension deficit reduction has resulted in the recognition of a defeired tax asset of £499,000.

The effect on the Statement of Financial Position at 1 April 2014 (the date of transition) is an increase in debtors of £499,000 with an equivalent
increase in revenue reserves. .

In the year to 31 March 2015 taxation credit has been reduced by £19,000 to reflect the movement i n the Social. Housmg Pension Scheme deficit in
the year.

In addition FRS 102 section 29 does not allow the deferred tax asset to be netted against the gross pension deficit. Instead it is presented as a
deferred tax asset within debtors. . .

The effect oni the Statement of Financial Position at 1 April 2014 (the date of transition) is the reallocation of £6,400,000 from the pension Ifability to
debtors ) ’

1] Forwar;d contracts

The Grdup hés_ identified some forward contracts for the purchase of energy in PFPL (Holdings) Limited.

At 1 April 2014 (the date of transition) this has resulted in the recognition of a creditor of £209,000 and an equivalent reduction in revenue reserves.

During the year to 31 March 2015, there was a reduction’in this creditor of £135,000, increasing the profit during the year.

(a) Goodwill

Thé adoptiponvto FRS 102 has prémpted a reduction in the useful economic lives of the components of the Group's goodwill.

This has resulted in a reduction of £37,078,000 in the carrying value of goodwill at 1 Apnl 2014 (the date of transition) and an equivalent reduction in
revenue reserves.

n the year to 31 March 2015, there is an increase in goodwill amortisation of £30,548,000.'
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34. TRANSITION TO FRS 102 (continued) -
' Summary of changes due to adoption of FRS 102
‘ . 2015 2014
Restated consolidated statement of financial position £'000 £'000
Original reserves 280,577 285,038
Housing properties and accruals methad for grant accounting 47,023 41,594
Deemed cost for office properties . (11,145) - (11,413).
Investment Property ‘ (7,156) (6,515)
Retirement benefits - SHPS liability recognised - (14,754) .(14,464)
Taxation (4,577) (4,601) .
Goodwill (67,628) (37,078)
Recognition of forward contracts (74) (209) °
Total effect of transition to FRS 102 dn Reserves (58,311) (32,686)
Restated Reserves 222,266 - 252,352
Restated total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March‘2015 ’ £'000-
Total recognised surplus' and deficits per UK GAAP (4,461)
Housing properties and accruals method for grant accounting 5,428
~Deemed cost for office properties 266
Investment Property (641)
Movement in SHPS liability © (290)
Retirement benefits - Taxation ‘ 24
Swaps 135
Goodwill adjustment (30,548)
_ Restated total comprehensive income for the financial year ended 3i March 2015 (30,087)
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Non-executives
C Phillips
B Dean’
C Garner
N Hopkins
L Lackey
J Lloyd
J Seet
B Shah.
. E Mani

Board of Directors

Executives

D Cowans

P Egan

K Keane

M Parsons

- CRae

S Soin

D Shaw
Company Secretary C Martin
80 Cheapside
London
EC2V 6EE

Registered Office

Bankers
147 Church Street
Preston
PR1 3UD

Registered Auditors KPMG LLP

Group Chairman
(appointed 1 October 2015)

Senior Independent Director

(reéfgned 30 September 2015) '

) Group Chief Executive

Co-operative Bank Plc

Group Director Affordable Homes
Group Director Corporate Services
Group Director Placemaking and Regeneradon

Group Director Development (appointed 24 February 2016)
Group Finance Director
Group Director Development

(appointed 25 May 2016)

(resigned 10 November 2015)

Barclays Bank Plc
38 Fishergate
Preston

PR1 2AD

_ Arlington Business Park

Theale
Reading
RG7 4SD

Registration of the Company

The Company is registered under the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 (Number L4236) and

incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 (Number 3777037). It is also affiliated to the
National Housing Federation.
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